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Corporate Information (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

THE CHINESE PROPERTY MARKET WAS
WEAK IN 2014.

The China property sector showed significant deterioration in
2014. China’s economy slowed during the year, with GDP growth
of 7.4% for 2014 compared to 7.7% for 2013. The government’s
five measures to reduce speculation in the market in 2013 had
a clear impact on market sentiment. Fearing price declines and
tight bank mortgages, buyers held off on purchases. As a result,
transaction volumes dropped, and housing inventory increased.
To clear this inventory, many developers cut prices.

For the Group, the impact has been most apparent in the
disappointing sales of luxury units after introduction of the
purchase control on buyers seeking more than one unit. With the
government measures discouraging buyers owning multiple units,
demand has declined for the larger luxury high rise units and
villas. Sales for larger units in the Group’s Tianjin and Shenyang
markets have therefore been adversely affected, with many
buyers taking a “wait-and-see” attitude.

THE GOVERNMENT IS NOW BEGINNING
TO REVERSE ITS CREDIT TIGHTENING
POLICIES, BUT OUTLOOK REMAINS
UNCERTAIN.

Recognizing the economy was deteriorating more than expected,
the PRC government has recently reversed its stance and has
been more accommodating to the real estate sector. Among the
measures that have been adopted:

o Relaxation on rules governing the maximum number of
homes that buyers are allowed to purchase.

o Relaxation of mortgage restrictions for homebuyers.

o Increase in the number of banks offering discounts to the
benchmark for first home mortgages.

J Cut in interest rates.
o Cuts to bank reserve requirements allowing increase bank
lending.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FREHEE (H)

Although national sales volume strengthened at the end of 2014,
prospects for the first half of 2015 remain highly uncertain given
still large inventories. The Group is hoping that as inventory is
reduced, and with more policy support from the government in
terms of lower mortgage rates, there will be some recovery by
the second half of the year.

THE GROUP IS MAKING PROGRESS
TOWARDS ITS CORE SHANGHAI
COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES.

China’s commercial market has been much less volatile than
the residential market, and the Shanghai commercial market
has been stable, with vacancy rates declining and lease rates
rising moderately. The Group is making progress on its North
Bund and Sichuan North Road Lot 108 projects, two important
commercial projects that account for a significant portion of
the Group’s investments. These two projects, located in a prime
area of Shanghai with good views of the Huangpu River, are
scheduled to complete at the end of 2016. During the year, a
potential stumbling block for Sichuan North Road Lot 108 was
removed when the Group and the Hongkou District Government
came to terms on the resettlement costs for the Piaoying Hotel,
which is located at the south-east corner of the site. The hotel
will now be removed, and there will be no impact on the project’s
construction schedule.

WIND WAS LOWER THAN EXPECTED.

Wind resources for 2014 were lower than expected for most of
the year. As a result, revenues and profits from China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited (“CRE”), the Group’s listed subsidiary,
were lower than in 2013, with revenues declining 14.4% to
HKS97.3 million. Wind utilization rates did improve in December,
and CRE is hopeful that 2015 will experience “normal” wind
conditions.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FREHEE (H)

DEMONSTRATING ITS CONFIDENCE IN
THE GROUP, THE OEI FAMILY INCREASED
ITS STAKE IN THE COMPANY.

The poor environment for the property sector has resulted in
poor sentiment for property stocks. As a result, the Group’s
share price remains depressed. The Oei family believes that the
share price does not reflect the Group’s intrinsic value, and has
confidence in the earnings potential of the Group’s assets. As
demonstration of the confidence in the Company, the Company
and Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”, which is owned by
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and his spouse) jointly announced on 26
January 2015 that Creator agreed to purchase from Promontoria
Holding XXI B.V. and Cerberus International, Ltd. approximately
13.7% of the total issued shares and 16.8% of the total issued
warrants of the Company at HKS0.25 per share and HKS0.08
per warrant. The acquisition was completed on 29 January 2015.
In accordance with the takeovers code, Creator is required to
make mandatory unconditional general offers to purchase all
the issued shares and warrants of the Company (other than
those held by Creator and parties acting in concert with it) at
the same acquisition prices of HKS0.25 per share and HKS0.08
per warrant and to cancel all outstanding share options of the
Company at HKS0.0001 per share option.

OEI Tjie Goan
Chairman
30 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2014, turnover amounted
to HKS881.2 million, a decrease of 38.8% over turnover of
HKS1,441.0 million for the same period in 2013, while gross
profit for the year of HKS318.0 million also represented a
decrease of 25.4% over gross profit of HKS426.2 million in
the same period last year. The Group recorded a net loss
attributable to the equity holders of HKS$87.2 million for the year
under review. The net gain attributable to the equity holders in
the same period in 2013 was HKS72.8 million. Basic loss per
share for the year amounted to HKO.8 cents per share, while
basic earnings per share for the same period in 2013 was HK0.6
cents per share.

The second half of 2014 showed some improvement compared
to the first half as the Group recorded increased revenues and
profits from the sale of Phase 2 units in Jiangmen, and did not
incur any additional impairment losses. However, the impairment
loss incurred in the first half of 2014 had an adverse impact on
the overall result of the Group for the full financial year of 2014.
During the first half, poor homebuyer sentiment resulted in a
sharp decline in sales in Tianjin and Shenyang, particularly for
larger luxury units. Accordingly, given the poor environment, the
Group recorded for the year large impairment losses in the first
half of HKS$206.4 million and HKS17.0 million in the Tianjin and
Shenyang projects, respectively, to reflect the market situation.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's total borrowings
amounted to HKS4,179.4 million, representing a rise of 18.8%
when compared with the equivalent figure of HKS$3,516.9 million
as at 31 December 2013. Total borrowings as at 31 December
2014 included Hong Kong Dollar borrowings of HKS$S323.7
million (31 December 2013: HKS$S180.9 million) and Renminbi
borrowings equivalent to HKS$3,855.7 million (31 December
2013: HKS3,336.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENwmRD N (F)

The maturity dates for most of the Group’s outstanding
borrowings are spread over the next five years, with HKS$1,211.0
million repayable within one year or on demand, HKS1,943.7
million repayable within two to five years, and HKS1,024.7
million repayable after five years.

Most of the Group’s outstanding borrowings take the form of
interest-bearing loans, with floating interest rates. The recent
cut in interest rates should benefit the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had restricted cash of
HK$765.0 million (31 December 2013: HKS1,064.0 million),
mainly related to the sales and pre-sales deposit received from
the contracted sales and the drawdown of bank loans ready for
designated purposes. Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
(includes shortterm bank deposits) amounted to HKS1,102.8
million (31 December 2013: HKS1,364.3 million).

The Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purposes during the year under review.

The Group will continue its efforts to create an optimum
financial structure that best reflects the long-term interests of its
shareholders, and will actively consider a variety of alternative
sources of funding to finance its future investments.

Jiangmen Eka Garden JILF9ZERRIEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENwmRD N (F)

Details of Charges in Group Assets

During the year under review, the Group and certain of its
subsidiaries had charged certain assets worth HKS11,519.2
million (31 December 2013: HK$9,624.8 million) as security for
bank and other loans.

Gearing Ratio

The Group's gearing ratio, defined as total borrowings divided
by total equity, as at 31 December 2014 was 27.7%, compared
with 22.9% as at 31 December 2013. The Group’s net debt ratio
as at year end 2014 was 15.3%, compared with 7.1% as at 31
December 2013. This ratio represents total borrowings minus
cash and divided by total equity.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had contingent liabilities, details are set out in Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS MODEL

The Group is a Hong Kong based property developer focusing
on investing and developing property projects in Mainland China,
and aims to develop high quality products to create sustainable
value for its shareholders.

The Group has a diversified property portfolio model with
investments in both residential projects for sale; and commercial
projects mainly for rental income. The residential projects
currently under development are located in Tianjin, Jiangmen and
Shenyang. The Group’s commercial projects, which are primarily
involved in office buildings and retail malls, are located in prime
business areas in Shanghai, Shenzhen, Beijing and Guangzhou.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENwmRD N (F)

Over the long term, the Group seeks to maintain a balance
between residential development for sale and commercial
investment properties for lease in order to create a sustainable
model with growth potential. Residential properties for sale
generate higher margins over the short term, and fast turnover,
which should enhance return on equity. Investment properties
for lease, on the other hand, create steady recurring income and
cash flow as well as long term capital appreciation. In order to
further diversify its assets and improve shareholder returns, the
Group may consider looking for investment opportunities outside
of mainland China.

The Group adopts a very prudent financial policy, and given
the volatility of the property industry, HKC aims to maintain a
conservative net debt/equity ratio.

The Group has also made an investment in the alternative energy
sector, and believes shareholders may benefit from China’s need
to develop non-polluting sources of energy.

Business Risks

As a China property developer, the Group is subject to Chinese
government property policies, development, marketing, and
other execution risks.

Environmental Policies

The Group aspires to be a leading sustainable Group, and has
therefore invested in the renewable energy sector, and uses
sustainable technologies in some of its property developments,
such as solar panels and heat pump technology where feasible.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENwmRD N (F)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Investment Properties

The Group’s existing property investment portfolio, consisting
largely of premium commercial and retail developments in
Shenzhen, Beijing and Guangzhou, continued to generate a
steady stream of rental revenue for the Group during the year
under review, with leasing revenues rising 18.7% year on year
to HKS123.3 million.

Tianjin

Tianjin Eka Garden is on a prime location in the Nankai District
of Tianjin. The project consists of townhouses and high rise
apartments totaling gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately
150,000 square meters. Construction for all three phases has
been completed. However, for 2014, sales were disappointing
as Tianjin has been hit hard by the poor market sentiment, with
housing inventory increasing to 40 months in 2014. The Group
pre-sold 7,314 square meters of GFA in 2014, resulting in
contracted sales of RMB154.4 million, a sharp drop compared
to the RMB544.0 million in 2013.

For the land bank at Tuanbo Lake in Tianjin, the Group is still
waiting for the government to release the master plan for the
area. The Group anticipates it will be released in 2015.

Jiangmen

Jiangmen Eka Garden is a residential project consisting of GFA
of approximately 189,000 square meters of low rise townhouses
and high rise apartments. The project is located on an excellent
site along a river bank, within walking distance to the Jiangmen/
Hong Kong ferry terminal and an international school. The site
is also close to the Guangzhu Intercity Railway’s Waihai Station
connecting Jiangmen to Guangzhou and Zhuhai.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERENwmRD N (F)

Construction of phase 1 was completed in the fourth quarter
of 2013, and except for the three show flats, all high rise units
have been sold. Phase 2 construction was completed in the
second half of 2014, and presold units were handed over to
purchasers. Construction work has commenced on phase 3,
with piling work completed in November 2014. All three blocks
of townhouses have been topped out. The high rises are now
under construction and currently have reached the fourth to
fourteenth floors. Construction is expected to be completed by
the third quarter of 2016.

Sales of Phase 2 units have been reasonable given the poor
market environment. In 2014, the Group pre-sold 17,857 square
meters of townhouses and apartment units, recording contracted
sales of RMB130.4 million, a decrease of 8.6% compared to
RMB142.7 million in 2013.

Shenyang

Shenyang Eka Garden, located in one of Shenyang's prime
residential areas, is adjacent to Shenyang’s Nanhu Park in the
center of city. The project, subdivided into sites A, B, and C,
consists of GFA of approximately 266,000 square meters of
townhouses, high rise apartments, and a small commercial
center. For site B (GFA: approximately 133,500 square meters),
all towers topped out in 2013. Construction of all four high
rise towers of site B is scheduled to be completed in the first
quarter of 2015. Handover of units is expected in the second
quarter of 2015.

Site C (GFA: approximately 57,500 square meters) is divided into
two portions. One portion consists of two high rise blocks (mainly
for housing resettled residents) and a small commercial area.
Another portion will be developed into townhouses. Construction
of the resettlement flats is near completion. Preparation for
development of site A, with GFA of approximately 75,000 square
meters, is underway. The Group continues to work with the local
government to complete the relocation of the residents on site A.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Shenyang contracted sales have been disappointing as the city
has been hit hard by the poor market sentiment. For 2014,
the Group pre-sold 2,671 square meters of GFA, resulting in
contracted sales of RMB35.4 million, compared to RMB161.3
million in 2013. Sales have been slow for larger luxury units
given the government's emphasis on preventing buyers from
owning multiple units — a group that is generally wealthier and
can afford to purchase luxury units.

Shanghai

The Shanghai commercial market has remained stable. The
vacancy rate decreased to 6.1%, the lowest rate since the
financial crisis in 2008. Rents increased about 4.4% in 2014.
Although multinationals have been cautious, leasing demand has
been supported by domestic companies, particularly financial
institutions. Shanghai is also expected to benefit from the
development of the Shanghai Free Trade Zone and a new
Disneyland which is expected to be completed by 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The Group has two commercial projects. Both are in the
Hongkou District of Shanghai, an area that is benefitting from the
improvement in infrastructure, including the completion of the
International Cruise Terminal, an underground road connecting
to the Bund and a new tunnel linking Hongkou and Pudong. In
addition, the Hongkou District is seeking to attract hedge funds
by establishing a hedge fund park.

The Sichuan North Road Lot 108 development project in which
the Group has a 60% interest, has a GFA of approximately
161,000 square meters (a GFA of approximately 248,000
square meters including basement) office and retail complex.
In late July, agreement was reached with the Hongkou District
Government on the resettlement costs for the Piaoying Hotel,
which is located on the south-east corner of the site, removing
a major obstacle to the project's development. With regards to
construction, work on the superstructure has begun. The West
Tower has now reached the 18th floor, while the East Tower has
reached the 12th floor. The construction of the podium has also
commenced. The entire development project is scheduled to be
completed by the end of 2016. The Group is now developing a
plan for pre-leasing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The North Bund project, in which the Group has a 25% interest,
has a GFA of approximately 259,000 square meters (GFA of
approximately 427,000 sqg.m. including basement) of office,
hotel, and retail space. The hotel tower has topped out. The
curtain wall has been substantially completed, and the fitting out
is in progress. The hotel is expected to be completed by the end
of 2016 with opening scheduled for the second half of 2017,
and will be run by the Starwood Group under the W brand. The
sixty six floor office tower topped out at the end of September
2014, and work on the curtain wall began in September 2014.
The podium is now under construction. The entire project is
expected to be completed by the end of 2016.

Nanxun

The project is a complex of three-story buildings fully completed
as a trading center for wooden floor, furniture and other building
materials. The GFA of Nanxun International Building Materials City
is approximately 180,000 square meters, in which approximately
83,000 square meters are offered for sales and the remaining
GFA of approximately 97,000 square meters are for lease.

The market opened for business in July 2013. Over 90% of the
GFA has been sold or leased out.

Beijing

The Group operates a 17,100 square meters retail complex
at Legation Quarters, the former site of the United States
diplomatic compound in Beijing, which is situated along the
southeast corner of Tiananmen Square. The Group has converted
the compound into a high end retail shop and restaurant
complex. Operating results for the project were down slightly
for 2014 as a couple of units were vacated. The Group is now
negotiating to extend the master lease which is due to expire
by 2021.
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Alternative Energy

All of the Group’s alternative energy projects are under its
subsidiary, China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE").
Wind resources for 2014 were disappointing. National average
wind utilization in 2014 was 1,905 hours, a decline of 6%
compared to 2013. As a result, revenues declined 14.4% in
2014. The government continues to support the sector in order
to reduce pollution, and has accelerated the construction of
ultra-high voltage transmission lines. Three 500 KV substations
were completed in Zhangbei, and could help reduce curtailment
in the Group’s windfarms in that area.

During the year, CRE completed construction of its phase two
49.5 MW Siziwangqgi windfarm in Inner Mongolia, which will
increase the Group’s net wind generating capacity by 17% for
2015. In order to focus on the development of windfarms, the
Group has sold its 40% stake in the Linyi waste to energy plant,
recording a HK$36.9 million profit before tax.

Please refer to CRE’s annual report for more details.

Infrastructure

The Group’s Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT") toll road project in
Guilin, which links up with China's Western Expressway, continues
to make progress. For 2014, traffic revenue increased 36.5%
to RMB55.3 million as vehicle traffic increased.

PROSPECTS

Prospects for 2015 remain uncertain as homebuyer demand
remains fragile, despite the fact that the government is loosening
credit. For 2015, the Group will continue focusing on sales of
its residential properties in Jiangmen, Tianjin, and Shenyang.
Given the market environment, the Group intends to accelerate
its market promotional activities. In Jiangmen, the Group will
focus on sales of phase 2 and phase 3 high rises in the year.
In Tianjin and Shenyang, the Group will continue selling its high
rise apartments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

At the same time, the Group intends to maintain its construction
progress for Shanghai North Bund and Sichuan North Road Lot
108, with the goal of completion by the end of 2016. Both
projects have now commenced plans for pre-leasing activities.
We expect strong domestic demand in the long term, but new
supply could put pressure on office and retail rents.

The Group will continue exploring to sell its non-core properties
and projects which no longer match with the growth direction
of the Group. Management believes these sales will unlock the
value of the Group’s assets and strengthen the balance sheet so
that the Group will be focused on its core business of property
development.

Alternative Energy

The regulatory environment for wind power is expected to remain
favourable given the government’s desire to reduce pollution.
The State Grid has officially approved the construction of twelve
high and ultra-high transmission lines. The Group anticipates that
the completion of high speed transmission lines should begin
to benefit CRE by reducing curtailment in 2015 and especially
by 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The completion of the phase two 49.5 MW Siziwanggi windfarm
will contribute to revenues in 2015. CRE is also making progress
on acquiring rights to develop new wind assets. The Group is
now performing feasibility studies and if the studies are positive,
will seek to obtain the necessary approvals to begin construction
of a 100 MW windfarm in Hebei province. The Group is also
actively negotiating to obtain the rights to develop a windfarm in
Henan province, an area whose curtailment rate is relatively low.

Please refer to CRE’s annual report for more information.

Employees

As of 31 December 2014, the Group employed approximately
436 employees across its operations in Hong Kong and the
Mainland China. All employees are remunerated according to the
nature of their jobs, their individual performances, the Group’s
overall performance and prevailing market conditions.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESREREERE

MR. OEI TJIE GOAN

(Non-executive Director)

Mr. OEl Tjie Goan, aged 70, is the Chairman and an Non-
executive Director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. OEl was a
graduate of the Mathematics & Dynamics Department of Beijing
University where he majored in Computational Mathematics.
Involved in Asia’s pulp and paper, finance, banking, property and
agricultural industries since 1974, Mr. OEIl sits on the board of
two listed companies in Indonesia: PT. Indah Kiat Pulp & Paper
Tbk. and PT. Pabrik Kertas Tjiwi Kimia Tbk. Mr. OEl is the father
of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, an Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

MR. OEI KANG, ERIC

(Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, aged 44, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. OEl is the Chief
Executive Officer and the chairman of the Investment Committee
and Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. OEl also holds
several directorships in other members of the Group. Mr. OEl
was educated in the USA, and obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Economics (with a minor in Electrical Engineering) and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration. Earlier in his career, Mr. OEl
worked with Peregrine Securities Ltd. and PCCW in Hong Kong,
the LG Group in Seoul and McKinsey & Co. in Los Angeles,
USA. Mr. OEl is a son of Mr. OEl Tjie Goan, the Chairman of the
Group. Mr. OEl is also a director and a shareholder of Claudio
Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company.
Mr. OEl is currently an Executive Director, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of China Renewable Energy Investment Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company and the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

ESERSREEE ()

MR. CHAN KWOK FONG, JOSEPH

(Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph, aged 54, has been appointed as
Executive Director of the Company since September 2013. Mr.
CHAN also serves as a director of certain members of the Group
and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company. Mr.
CHAN holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from York
University in Canada. He has over 25 years’ solid experience
in banking and finance field. Mr. CHAN was employed as the
Group’s Chief Financial Officer from August 2006 to October
2009 and served as an Executive Director of the Company
and director of some subsidiaries of the Group for the periods
from June 2007 to September 2009 and from March 2007 to
September 2009 respectively. During the period from April 2008
to September 2009, Mr. CHAN acted as an Executive Director of
China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (formerly known as
J.I.C. Technology Company Limited, stock code: 987), a listed
subsidiary of the Company and the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. CHAN re-joined the
Group as the Chief Financial Officer on 10 June 2013.

MR. LEE SHIU YEE, DANIEL

(Executive Director)

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel, aged 49, is an Executive Director
of the Company since January 2014. Mr. LEE also serves as
a director of certain members of the Group and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. LEE is the
Project Director of Property Department of the Group since
December 2010. Mr. LEE holds a Professional Diploma in
Quantity Surveying (Hong Kong Polytechnic), a Bachelor of Laws
(LLB) degree with honours (City University, Hong Kong) and an
MSc degree in Construction Management (Reading University,
UK). He is a Registered Professional Surveyor, a member of The
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. Mr. LEE has over twenty years
of project management experience in property developments in
Hong Kong and China. Before joining the Group, Mr. LEE was the
General Manager (Property Projects) of the Property Department
of CITIC Pacific Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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MR. WONG JAKE LEONG, SAMMY

(Executive Director)

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, aged 54, has been appointed
as Executive Director of the Company since January 2014. He
has been instrumental in raising funds for the Group and is
currently serving as a member of the Investment Committee
and the Executive Committee. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. WONG is the Investor Relations
Director of the Group and has been with the Group since 2007.
He has also served as a former Chief Financial Officer. Mr. WONG
is an Executive Director of China Renewable Energy Investment
Limited, a listed subsidiary of the Company, the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. WONG received a Bachelor's degree in the geophysical
sciences from the University of Chicago and an MBA from
the Yale School of Management. He started his career as an
investment banker at Kidder, Peabody in New York, where
he was involved in project finance. He moved to Hong Kong
with Bear Stearns, and was involved in a variety of corporate
finance activities, and was involved in some of the first H share
IPOs out of China. Mr. WONG then worked in equity research
at Societe Generale where he was in charge of the research
efforts in Shanghai; and later as Vice President and head of
China Research at Credit Suisse in Hong Kong. Before joining
the Company, Mr. WONG served as a Chief Financial Officer for
DVN Holdings Limited (now known as “Frontier Services Group
Limited”), where he was involved in fund raising and introducing
strategic investors to the company.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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MS. YEN TERESA

(Non-executive Director)

Ms. YEN Teresa, aged 45, is a non-executive director of the
Company since October 2007. Ms. YEN is a Managing Partner of
Radiant Capital, a Northeast Asia focused real estate investment
firm. Ms. YEN brings particular expertise to real estate and
real estate related transactions. She was a Senior Advisor
to Cerberus Asia Capital Management, LLC. (“Cerberus”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company, for 12 years. In her
capacity as Senior Advisor, Ms. YEN is responsible for advising
the Cerberus group on all of its investments in the Greater
China region, including the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan. Prior
to joining Cerberus, Ms. Yen had worked with KPMG real estate
consulting, Sumitomo Bank, Long-Term Credit Bank of Japan
and Heller Financial. Ms. YEN received her undergraduate
degree from University of California at Berkeley and her master
degree in business administration from University of Southern
California, Marshall School of Business. Ms. YEN is currently
an independent non-executive director of Yue Yuen Industrial
(Holdings) Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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MR. CHUNG CHO YEE, MICO

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, aged 54, is an independent non-
executive director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. CHUNG
graduated from the University College, University of London,
England with a Law Degree in 1983. After qualifying as a
solicitor in Hong Kong in 1986, Mr. CHUNG spent 2 years
working with the commercial department of a local law firm.
He subsequently joined the corporate finance department of
Standard Chartered Asia Ltd., the investment banking arm of
Standard Chartered Bank, in 1988.

In 1990, Mr. CHUNG became a director and General Manager
of Bond Corporation International Ltd., leaving to join China
Strategic Holdings Ltd in 1992. In March 1999, he joined the
Pacific Century Group as executive director with responsibility
for the group’s merger and acquisition activities. Mr. CHUNG
is currently the executive chairman of CSI Properties Limited,
a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, and a non-executive director of HKT Limited and HKT
Management Limited (in its capacity as the trustee — manager
of the HKT Trust). Mr. CHUNG was a non-executive director of
PCCW Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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MR. CHENG YUK WO

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, aged 54, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group since July 2004. Mr. CHENG holds a Master
of Science Degree in Economics, Accounting and Finance and a
Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) Degree in Accounting. He is a fellow of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario. His
career includes more than 20 years’ accounting and corporate
advisory services expertise in several listed companies in Hong
Kong. The co-founder of a Hong Kong merchant banking firm,
Mr. CHENG is the proprietor of a certified public accountancy
practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHENG is currently an independent non-executive director of
CSI Properties Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, C.P.
Lotus Corporation, Chong Hing Bank Limited, CPMC Holdings
Limited, Imagi International Holdings Limited, Top Spring
International Holdings Limited and Liu Chong Hing Investment
Limited, all being Hong Kong listed companies. Mr. CHENG
was an executive director of 21 Holdings Limited and an
independent non-executive director of South China Land Limited,
both companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEREREEE ()

MR. ALBERT THOMAS DA ROSA, JUNIOR

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, aged 61, is an independent
non-executive director of the Group since September 2004. Mr.
DA ROSA holds both Bachelor's and Master’s Law Degrees from
the University of Hong Kong. He qualified as a solicitor in Hong
Kong in 1980. He currently is a practicing solicitor and a partner
of Messrs. Cheung, Tong & Rosa, Solicitors, Hong Kong.

Mr. DA ROSA is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute and the Society of Registered Financial
Planners and an Accredited Mediator with certain institutions in
the U.K. and Hong Kong.

He is a non-executive director of TCL Multimedia Technology
Holdings Limited and the company secretary of Y.T. Realty
Group Limited and Yugang International Limited, all of which are
companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. In the past three years, Mr. DA ROSA had
been a non-executive director of eSun Holdings Limited.

Mr. DA ROSA serves as Chairman of the Appeal Tribunal
(Buildings) Panel and the Chairman of Panel of the Board of
Review (Inland Revenue). He served the Solicitors Disciplinary
Tribunal Panel from 1998 to 2014 as member, Deputy Chairman
and ultimately the Tribunal Convenor. He also served as member
of the Academic and Accreditation Advisory Committee of the
Securities and Futures Commission from February 2003 to
March 2009.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, and with its subsidiaries,
collectively, the “Group”) is committed to good corporate
governance principles and practices and its board of directors
(the “Directors” or the “Board”) recognizes that it is essential
to safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers and
employees and uphold accountability, transparency and
responsibility of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions and certain recommended best practices set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”), contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 December
2014, save for the deviations with considered reasons as
explained stated in the following relevant paragraphs.

Board Composition

The Company has at all time during the year ended 31 December
2014 maintained a balanced board with strong independent
element. The Board currently comprises nine Directors with
four Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. Each Director possesses
expertise and experience and provides checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of the Group and the shareholders
as a whole. In addition, the Company had maintained three
Independent Non-executive Directors which formed at least one-
third of the full Board. Biographical details of the Directors and
their relationships, where applicable, are set out in pages 19 to
25 of this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(continued)

Board Composition (continued)

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors was assessed in accordance with the
applicable Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors has provided to the Company an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of them are independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company were exercised by two different individuals. Mr. OEl
Tjie Goan is the Chairman and Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Company. Their responsibilities
had been clearly set out and approved by the Board. The Board
considers that this arrangement facilitates the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximizes effectiveness of its
operation. The Board shall nevertheless review its structure from
time to time and will consider appropriate move to take should
circumstances so required. Mr. OEl Tjie Goan, the Chairman of
the Company, is the father of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, CEO.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs
and formulating business strategies with a view to maximizing
its financial performance and shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities and powers
to the Board committees to assist it in efficiently implementing
those functions specified in written terms of reference.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

Decisions relating to the long-term objectives and viability of
the Company, and any acquisitions or disposal of transactions
and investments of any kind with value exceeding the authority
of the Executive Committee set out in its terms of reference or
the threshold for discloseable transactions for the Company as
defined in the Listing Rules from time to time are reserved for
the Board; whereas decisions on matters set out in the terms of
reference of the Executive Committee and those not specifically
reserved for the Board are delegated to the Executive Committee
and management, as applicable.

Directors are provided with sufficient resources to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at
the Company’s expense and are encouraged to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently. The management
provides monthly management accounts of the Group to the
Directors to apprise them of the Group’s latest performance
and financial position.

Directors are requested to disclose to the Company at the time
of his/her appointment and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments. Such changes
will be updated and published in the annual and interim reports
as appropriate.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on
an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(continued)

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

All new appointment of Directors and nomination of Directors
proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting are
first considered by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. Having due
regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board, the Nomination
Committee will then put recommendations to the Board for
decision. Details of the role and function as well as a summary
of the work performed by the Nomination Committee are set out
under the heading of “Nomination Committee” below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws (“Bye-laws”), the
nearest to but not less than one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation but are eligible for re-election by
shareholders at the annual general meeting provided that every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. New appointments to the Board are also subject to
re-election by shareholders at the next following annual general
meeting.

All non-executive directors of the Company were appointed
with no specific term, but are subject to the aforesaid rotation
requirement in the Bye-laws, accomplishing the same purpose as
being appointed for a specific term pursuant to code provision
A.4.1 of the CG Code. The rotating Directors who are subject to
retirement and re-election at the 2015 annual general meeting
are set out on page 52 of this Annual Report.

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior joined the Group as
independent non-executive director in September 2004. He will
be subject to re-election as Director in the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Mr. DA ROSA does not play any management
role in the Group. The Board considers that Mr. DA ROSA has
maintained independent views in relation to the Company’s affair.

TEERER @
RBRE ZEXIREREE

FIBEAcESRRRKRREA iﬁAﬂ%
FTEE ESZREBVELHREREZES
MFER - RBREEEHKRAE K&
B PEEULKBTRENEHZERRSE
NEFEFFGERBAREEA - EEE
ZRESFENELZTIENTR BRE
BevERERRERRIESZUER
E-RBZEEZACRBEFEAR
FIBTTIEZBMEERTITX[IERBEE

g —f-

REARBZRQ TEﬁZEE\'J(F/ AEE
AR - ABRBEOERADPR=02—
ZEFARERE WREFEERA
RBERBFASERREEET 5T
REFAZVE=FHERT-—R-&F
SRR EESTHAR T —ERRE
FRAEHBREBEET -

ARBZEIFATESL EEEEH -
A %?LLQTEE%E'JZ?%;&&
ME - R B EREEE TSR
1'71<X%A.4.1{%§EE.IEEE/HH$Hﬁ o AR
—E-hFRRBEFREHERINE
BEBEEZEFHNAFHREL2E -

FIRPAER_STNFLAMALE
EERBIYIIENTES  BREARERER
REFASEEETREST -HEXLER
BEAAESENERNERRG BT
RE BAE—"BEHEBARARNER
REBILER o

EBEE (2R) SRAT « —T UFER @



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 8 July 2013.

Below is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. All
appointments of the members of the Board are made on merit,
in the context of the skills and experience the Board as a whole
requires to be effective. In designing the Board composition,
the Company is committed to equality of opportunity in all
aspects and does not discriminate on the grounds, including
but not limited to, ethnicity, gender, age, cultural and religious
background.

The Nomination Committee discussed and agreed the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and
recommended them to the Board for adoption. During the year,
the Committee reviewed the existing composition of the Board
and identified the key business skills and experience required in
line with the business strategy. It also monitored the review of
the Company’s recruitment process to reinforce its commitment
to the principle of equal opportunity.

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

The Directors meet from time to time to discuss and exchange
ideas on the affairs of the Company. The Board has set up
various Board Committees, among others, the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee for
overseeing particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee are available on both the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees
(continued)

During the year, the following meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were held and the attendance of the individual
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:
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Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings held during the term of office
BHEEEHA / WMEERETEEEA
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee

gzg ENZEE #mzEe RzzEE

Executive Directors HIES

Mr. OEI Kang, Eric %

Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph REFLE

Mr. LEE Shiu Yeg, Daniel FEhiEE

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy HER LA
Non-executive Directors FATES

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan "TRAE

Ms. YEN Teresa BaARt
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip BEELE

(resigned on 1 December 2014) (RoE—REF=F—HFHE)

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico BRELE

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo BEMEE

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior BoALE

Note: The Executive Directors attended the relevant meetings as
invitees.

44 272 Notehtz)  2/2 NotefiizE) 1/ (Noteliis)

44 2/2 (Notelits) N/ATER N/ATER
44 1/2 (Notehizt) N/ARER N/ATER
44 1/2 (Noteliti) N/ATER N/ARER

0/4 /AR N/ATER /AR
24 NATER N/ATER N/ATER

3/4 N/ATER 2/2 1/1
3/4 2/2 2/2 /1
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4/4 2/2 2/2 /1
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees
(continued)

Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular
board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers
are dispatched to the Directors or committee members at
least three days before the meetings to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared
for the meetings. When Directors or committee members are
unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known
to the Chairman and/or the CEO prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each
board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date of the
meeting. All Directors have access to the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for ensuring that the board procedures are
complied with and advising the Board on compliance matters.

The Board continues to maintain a culture of openness and
constructive relations between Executive and Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors). In the
absence of the Chairman, the CEO is in the position to facilitate
the effective contribution of Non-executive Directors, and ensure
their views are communicated and heard by the Board. During
the year, the Chairman did not hold any formal meeting with
Independent Non-executive Directors and other Non-executive
Directors without the Executive Directors present (as provided
for in code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code) due to the tight
schedule of the Chairman and Non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee,
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises
three members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG
Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, all of whom
are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for Directors and senior management,
and reviewing their remuneration packages. In arriving at its
recommendations, the Remuneration Committee will consult
with the Chairman and/or the CEO whenever it thinks fit and
take into consideration factors such as the remuneration paid
by comparable companies, skill, knowledge, time commitment
and responsibilities of Directors. The Remuneration Committee
has the responsibility, powers and discretion to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held two meetings to review, inter alia, the remuneration
policy and structure of Directors including those retired and
re-elected at the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company
and approve the year-end bonus and salary increment of the
Executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee also approved
the remuneration packages of the newly appointed Executive
Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. The attendance records of each member at the
meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during his/her
term of office are set out on page 31. Details of the Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee, chaired
by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three
members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk
Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior and, all of whom
are independent. The Nomination Committee held one meeting
during the year, and the attendance details of each member are
set out on page 31.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
identifying suitable candidates for directorship, assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors, and
making recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination
Committee includes the following:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

o reviewing the structure of board committees;

o assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive

Directors and sufficient number of independent directors
to maintain a balanced board;

o assessing the qualification and experience of new
candidates for directorship and making recommendation
to the Board on matters relating to the appointment of
Directors;

o making recommendation to the Board relating to the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors; and

o formulating the Board Diversity Policy, setting the
measurable objectives for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy, and making recommendation to the
Board on the adoption of the Board Diversity Policy.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Company had provided the Nomination Committee sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination
Committee could seek independent professional advice, at the
Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference which have been updated from time to time to
align with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The Audit
Committee, chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director,
comprised three members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico,
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior,
all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors at all time
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to,
inter alia, review and supervise the Group's financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management procedures, as
well as oversee the adequacy of the accounting and financial
reporting resources. While recognized corporate governance
is the collective responsibility of all Directors, the Board has
delegated the corporate governance functions to the members
of Audit Committee who are in an objective and independent
position to oversee the corporate governance compliance.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings together with senior management and external auditor.
The attendance details of each member are set out on page 31.
The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the
year included reviewing interim and annual financial statements,
continuing connected transactions, internal audit reports on the
internal controls and risk management matters, the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance as well as
reviewing and recommending re-appointment of external auditor.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy for employees
to raise concerns, in confidence, with the designated executive
who is accountable to the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, unlawful activities, or
activities violating the Group’s Code of Conduct and Business
Ethics or otherwise amounting to serious improper conduct and
to ensure protection from possible retaliation against any of our
employees who has reported concerns in good faith.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Executive Committee with the
key initiatives to manage the Group’s business activities, and
oversee the operating performance and financial position of the
Group and all strategic business units. The Committee comprises
all Executive Directors and an executive of the Group. Mr. OEl
Kang, Eric is the Chairman of the Executive Committee.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee met
regularly to review the performance of various business units
of the Group, co-ordinate overall resources, made financial and
operation decisions delegated by the Board, review and develop
investment strategy and policies of the Company and make
relevant recommendations to the Board.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Investment Committee with
written terms of reference. The Investment Committee, chaired
by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, comprises three members namely Mr.
OEl Kang, Eric and Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, who are
Executive Directors, and Ms. YEN Teresa, who is Non-executive
Director during the year ended 31 December 2014.

The objectives of the Investment Committee are to oversee
the Group’s investment transactions, including review
of establishment of investment benchmarks and review
of investment performance as well as to report and make
recommendation to the Board in relation to the foregoing
matters.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The management, consisting of the Executive Directors of the
Company and other executives, is delegated with responsibilities
for implementing the strategy and direction as adopted by
the Board from time to time, and conducting the day-to-
day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and senior
executives meet regularly to review the performance of
the businesses of various business units of the Group as a
whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and
operation decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as
to their powers of management including circumstances where
management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiries, the Company has obtained confirmation
from all Directors that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2014.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the
Company’s securities by relevant employees, who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation to
the securities of the Group, on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. In
preparing the financial statements, the Directors have adopted
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 85 to 86.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the fees in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by the auditor
amounted to approximately HKS5.0 million and HKS$2.5 million
respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of interim
results review services and tax advisory services.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

EEI

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous F N ' 2RBEEHELR2HEBERERNEHK
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge 2 %1% &TS'Z EXIHBEEER - IR
and skills. The training programmes included seminars and FEBIEEE KRR WERIEE X
courses, reviewed the updated laws, rules and regulations ARNARGI UNBEMEZEBEHED
and materials on topics relevant to the director’s duties and ﬁﬂ BEARNARNARERESBZ
responsibilities. Directors are requested to provide the Company 1537508k - S EEE X 2 B3I BT &
with their respective training record. The areas of training §|J NN
received by each Director are set out below:
Areas of Training
RIS
Directors’
Corporate Law and duties/
strategy and regulatory governance Risk
businesses compliance practices management
EZRE/
Name of Directors EEp? LERBHNZR ERERE ERER BREE
Executive Directors ynEs
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric ZHEE / / / /
Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph RES 4 / / /
Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel BEML LN /
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy EBRLE / / / 4
Non-executive Directors *HTES
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan - b / / / /
Ms. YEN Teresa BAETT /
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip BlEEs / / 4
(resigned on 1 December 2014) (KR-F—mE+=f—H8)
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico ERELE /
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo gants v / / /
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior EiALE / / /
The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest $” RAEERNESRHEEHEEITCRESE
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and Tﬁ& SRIRRERZEHNERE - UiH
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of BIREFEBITES o WM KRB THH

their responsibilities. In addition, the Directors are regularly
encouraged to enroll in a wide range of professional development
courses and seminars regarding the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements to enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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INTERNAL CONTROLS A B B 12
The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system & $ BEERAEBRE 2 ATELER
and reviewing its effectiveness, while management is charged #% ' W EKN  MEEEBHAER

with the responsibility to design and implement the internal 5T & %?L TAHEETELNEERR X
control system to manage risks and compliance. The Group has & £ & o A% & 2 5% 7 £2C0SO0(the
in place a framework of internal controls that is consistent with  Committee of Sponsoring Organisations
the COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the  of the Treadway Commission)fEZE — &~
Treadway Commission) framework as illustrated below: NEPEEIZEZRME - SR AT ¢

Control Environment

ERRIR

Set the tone of the Group influencing control consciousness and risk awareness of the staff.
BUAEEEREN  NRbEEMNEZEEHE LR -

Factors include integrity, ethical values, competence, authority and responsibility.
MEEARST - BEEE - BEEH  ERAEAHESEHEE -

Foundation for all other components of internal controls.

YRR E b A BB ES A A B 0 RO ELBE o

Risk Assessment

2 B 5 Ak

Identification and analysis of the key risks to achieving the Group’s objectives, including the risks

relating to the changing regulatory and operating environment, are conducted regularly, forming the

basis for determining control activities.

EHBNERSMEERAEBREFRHEENTIEZRAR (BEEEREERKERRE LA
%) - WIAULVE A HIE B IR BB A AL o

Control Activities

=EE

Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out and necessary actions are
taken to address the risks that may hinder the achievement of the Group’s objectives.
HIEBMKREF  BREEREZETEUARTARERLETHEERGXLERNEEENE
=2 b e

Control activities include authorisations, approvals, verifications, performance reviews, segregation of
duties, asset security, access control, documentation and records.

EMREBEERE Bl RE SRS BEES  EERE  FEUELH - XHERER
S o
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued) I*_I ﬁB EF? (&)

Information and Communication

B KRB

o Pertinent information is identified, captured and provided to the right person in a timely manner.
ERF R - R MEE A TIREAEER -

o Channels of communication across the Group and with external parties are established.
BUARNSESEFIEAREINE AT 2 /BREE -

° Channels of communication exist for people to report suspected malpractices or improprieties

relating to the Group.
MEBERPRENSEESHEANERSHX T ETARLBRES

Monitoring

EiEX

o Combination of ongoing and separate evaluations of control system’s performance.
548 % {8 Bl 5T A B 122 R ARHVAE R

o Management and supervisory activities.
EERERTIE-

° Internal audit activities.
NEPEZTIE -

Control Environment EEEIRIR

The actions of management and its demonstrated commitmentto B2 E 21T AR AR HER AN & EH/ ’Eﬁ
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices m/KFREERZRLEZEIAZ

within the Group are transparent to all. The Group strives to FAE R EHY © ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬁ?ﬁ%L
conduct all business affairs based on good business ethics BB TFRMEGETHEEBEE @ I
and accountability. We have in place a formal Code of Conduct BRI IFHXBIEEEBEETRFE - B
& Business Ethics that is communicated to all staff members. EFEEZEETL - REEBEERTEEX
We aim to build risk awareness and control responsibility into £ ARE Y E b B R EEEE - WiRZ
our culture and regard them as the foundation of our internal /%X P BF &a 12 4t 2 £ H -

control system.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

Control Environment (continued)

The internal control system is designed to manage the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss. We maintain an effective internal audit
function, the Internal Control and Risk Management (“ICRM”)
Department, whose main features include:

(i) independence from operational management;

(ii) fully empowered auditors with access to all data and
every operation of the Group;

(iii) adequate resources and well qualified and capable staff;
and

(iv) risk-based auditing, concentrating on areas with significant
risks or where significant changes have been made.

Risk Management

Management has an ongoing process to identify and evaluate
the significant risks facing the Group and prioritise resources
to manage those that arise. Mitigation strategies and plans
with respect to each key risk identified are developed and
implemented with regular review and update, which include
establishing or enhancing internal controls.

Heads of the departments, projects and business units regularly
review and analyse the key risks associated with achieving
the objectives of their particular departments, activities and
businesses to provide reasonable assurance that internal
controls are both embedded and effective within their areas of
accountability.

e HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014

A B EEE (@)
EERRIRIE (@)

W%%%%%%ﬁT%Eﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁ

|

BREZRBMmER  EHRNEEEKNER
@ﬂiﬁ%*mﬁhﬁéﬁﬁ% g¥ 2
R - AEBERFERABEZBE

(B spEE R AR E AR ([ EP e T

#1)) EXBREEaHE
() BIUNEEEHE :

(i) ZEETHESABREN  JEHAAN

SEMARENEEER

(i) EHmARER UREEREHRE
BZET Rk

(v) HEFTARBAAMES I - e
EBAE KRR Y (ELEARD
2§k -

R EE
EBERERFI LT EAEENEY Y
TEAR RECEREENESECE

EZEERAR - AEEDHRFED B
ZEBRERR - HE L BT RN KA MG
2 YEHBASLEH  EREREY
X IN5R A AR BRI FE e o

B BRAMEBEL 2 EETTEH
mEt o EEBEEM  ABRER
BEEAzI2/RE A EMERE
AHEEEREEREEBAREAN

Hb3E1E o



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

Control Processes

The Board maintains a sound and effective internal control
system through the following:

(i) The Board reviews the Group’s strategic plans and
objectives on an annual basis.

(ii) An organisation structure with defined lines of
responsibility and delegation of authority is devised.

(iii) Systems and procedures are in place to identify and
evaluate risks on an ongoing basis. Senior executives
review the risk assessment process and monitor the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management systems.

(iv)  Appropriate policies and key control activities are
maintained with regular review on their effectiveness.

(v) Financial performance is analysed against budget with
variances being accounted for and appropriate actions
are taken to rectify deficiencies.

(vi) Senior executives ensure compliance with relevant laws,
regulations, standards and ordinances, including Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the Listing Rules and
the Companies Ordinance, under their responsibility.

(vii) The ICRM Department reports directly to the Audit
Committee and the CEO, and carries out independent
reviews on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control system in accordance with its annual audit
plan approved by the Audit Committee. Key audit
findings and implementation progress of internal
control recommendations are regularly reported to the
Board through the Audit Committee. Head of the ICRM
Department also serves as the contact person under the
Whistleblowing Guideline of the Company.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

Review of Internal Control Effectiveness

The Executive Directors of the Company conduct reviews
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems, and submit to the Audit Committee a
certification of compliance for effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations bi-annually. The scope of this
review covers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings and
implementation progress of internal control recommendations,
and opinion of the ICRM Department on the control system'’s
performance of the Group. External auditor also reports on any
control issues identified in the course of their audit work.

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee reviews
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system at least
once each year and reports to the Board on such reviews.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed and
considered the Group’s internal control system effective and
adequate for the year ended 31 December 2014. No significant
areas of concern that might affect the operational, financial, and
compliance controls and risk management function of the Group
were identified.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(i) is aware of the obligations under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the applicable Listing Rules and other
statutory regulations with regard to the timely and proper
disclosure of inside information, announcements and
financial disclosures and authorises their publication as
and when required.

(ii) has adopted and implemented its Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.

(i) has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing
the securities transactions of those employees who,
because of their positions, are likely to have access to
confidential or inside information.

(iv) identifies and authorises members of the Group’s senior
management to act as the Company’s spokespersons and
respond to external enquiries.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary reports to the CEO on Board or
committee matters. All Directors have direct access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary for the ongoing
discharge of their duties and responsibilities. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2014, the Company Secretary took
more than 15 hours of relevant professional training organized
by the Stock Exchange and various professional bodies.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has published its updated and consolidated version
of Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company at
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During
the year, there was no alteration on the constitutional documents
of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

GENERAL MEETING

The last annual general meeting of the Company was held on
30 May 2014 (the “2014 AGM”). The CEO chaired the 2014
AGM in the absence of the Chairman of the Board due to the
Chairman’s prior business engagement. The external auditor
attended the 2014 AGM to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report,
the accounting policies and auditor independence.

The attendance record of the individual Directors at the 2014
AGM is set out in the table below:

H’iik%

ZAN/N —RERBFREN_F—
miﬂiﬂ_—i—ﬁiﬁé (T —mEK
RBFAREg]) EFSEXTFERAHEE
EBTHAREHE T —HNERRBEF
RE - RERTHRARER - INEZH
B E —E-NERRABFE RS BE
BREES TIE  REIFFTEI RS R HEA
B BRFBRARE B ESHE °

TRIFJEEEN T OFERBF
REZHFEDE

2014 AGM (note)

Name of Directors BEEHR —E-NERRBFERE (M)
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric =ML AE 1/1
Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph PR [B0 55 St A= 1/1
Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel TEERE A 1/1
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy HHER LA 1/1
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan =HIREAE 0/1
Ms. YEN Teresa BRE LT 0/1
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip SBLBLA 0/1
(resigned on 1 December 2014) (R=F—pF+=H—HEE)
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico EREELAE 1/1
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo ERERAN L A 1/1
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior ZEY\ RS A 0/1

Note: Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors
are required to attend general meetings pursuant to code
provision A.6.7 of the CG Code. All Independent Non-executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors were encouraged to
attend the general meeting to inter-face with shareholders of the
Company but the Non-executive Directors were not in a position
to attend the 2014 AGM due to overseas commitment and pre-
arranged business engagements.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (F)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the shareholders of the
Company to convene a special general
meeting

Under section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, any members holding
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition
(“Requisitionists”).

The written request must state the resolution, preferably
accompanied by a statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution for the Company’s reference and
consideration, signed by the all Requisitionists concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the head office
of the Company at 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75
Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer agent in Hong Kong (the
“Branch Share Registrars”). Upon the Branch Share
Registrars’ confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Company will convene a special general
meeting within two months after the deposit of such
requisition, and will serve sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements to all
members of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act of
Bermuda, either any number of members representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the members, or not less than one hundred members
(“Requisitionists”) can submit a written request to move
a resolution at an annual general meeting or to circulate
a statement of not more than one thousand words in
relation to business to be dealt with in any general
meeting to members of the Company.

If a resolution is proposed by the members, the written
request must state the resolution (preferably accompanied
by a statement of not more than one thousand words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution), signed by all the Requisitionists concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company and preferably with a copy of
such request sent to the head office of the Company
at 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention
of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks before
the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution, and not less than one week in the case
of any other requisition.

The request will be verified by the Branch Share
Registrars. Upon the Share Registrars’ confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, and the Requisitionists
have deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto, the
Company will send the notice of resolution or the
statement to its members.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TRERRE (&)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

iii. Procedures for election of directors of the
Company

The procedures for the shareholders of the Company
to propose a person for election as a director of the
Company are available and accessible on the Company’s
website at www.hkcholdings.com.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board believes regular and timely communication with
shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help our
shareholders understand our business better. Copies of the
annual reports and interim reports of the Company are distributed
to its shareholders in accordance with statutory and regulatory
requirements and also to interested parties recorded in the
Company’s mailing lists. The publications of the Company,
including financial reports, circulars and announcements, are also
available on the Company’s website at www.hkcholdings.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue is considered by a
separate resolution, including election of individual directors, and
the poll procedures are clearly explained. The CEO attended the
2014 AGM in the absence of the Chairman of the Board due to
the Chairman’s prior business engagement. Other members of
the Board, the Chairmen of the relevant Board Committees and
the external auditor of the Company also attended the annual
general meeting to inter-face with, and answer questions from
the shareholders of the Company.

Shareholders can send their enquiry to the Board by the
following ways:

Post:  9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
E-mail: info@hkcholdings.com

Fax: (852) 2722 6266
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Report of the Directors
EEEREFE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Group are property development
and investment, alternative energy investment and operation
and infrastructure. The activities of its principal subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities are set out in pages
236 to 247 of the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2014 by geographical and business segments is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 87.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for development and
investment purposes are set out on pages 249 to 252.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company (“Bye-laws”) and there is no restriction against
such rights under the law of Bermuda.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the distributable reserves of the
Company available for distribution was HKS$730.7 million (2013:
HKS730.7 million), calculated in accordance with the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 248.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made no charitable and other
donation (2013: Nil).
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

* OEI Tjie Goan (Chairman)

OEl Kang, Eric (Chief Executive Officer)

CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph (Chief Financial Officer)
LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel (appointed on 1 January 2014)

H H =

# WONG Jake Leong, Sammy (appointed on 1 January
2014)

R YEN Teresa

& WAN Ming Sun (resigned on 23 January 2014)

@ FAN Yan Hok, Philip (resigned on 1 December 2014)
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico

@
@ CHENG Yuk Wo
@ Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior

# Executive Directors
N Non-executive Directors
@ Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
OEl Kang, Eric, Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph and Mr. Albert
Thomas DA ROSA, Junior will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM") and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as directors of the
Company.

The Company has also received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company considers that all
of them to be independent.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, a Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Company, has voluntarily agreed to waive his annual director’s
fees with effect from 1 January 2010 until further notice to the
Company, and the director’s fee he waived for the year ended
31 December 2014 amounted to HK$100,000.00.

Ms. YEN Teresa, a Non-executive Director of the Company,
will resign after the closing date as stated in the composite
document issued jointly by Creator Holdings Limited and the
Company in relation to the mandatory conditional general offers
in accordance with the Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and
Mergers.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Share Options of the Company

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “HKC Option
Scheme”) was adopted on 16 June 2006. Particulars of the HKC
Option Scheme are set out below:

(a) Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high
caliber Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds an
equity interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”),
to recognise the significant contributions of the Eligible
Persons to the growth of the Group or Invested Entities
by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain ownership
interest in the Company and to further motivate and
give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue to
contribute to the long term success and prosperity of the
Group or Invested Entities.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share Options of the Company (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the Group or any Invested Entity who, in the
sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group
or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares of the Company available
for issue under the HKC Option Scheme is 676,644,707
shares which represent approximately 5.83% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this Annual Report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue;

(ii) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company must not
exceed 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue and not exceed HKS5 million in aggregate
value.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within ten years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as the
Board may specify at the time of grant.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share Options of the Company (continued)

(f)

(g)

(h)

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board must
specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of ten business days from the
date of offer and a consideration of HKS1.0 must be paid
upon acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in daily quotations
sheet on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange'’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) B E @)

Share Options of the Company (continued) KRB ZERE @)

(i)  Remaining life (i) BRTEFH
The HKC Option Scheme has a life of ten years and will BERLREBRETE 2GR
expire on 16 June 2016 unless otherwise terminated in BRIEZTTRIE - BRIBBERER

BASFHRTF  XHR_F—
NENATRBER °

Py BEEBRRBRET AR LY
BRI B BRI T ¢

accordance with the terms of the HKC Option Scheme.

Movements of the share options under the HKC Option Scheme
during the year are as follows:

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding at price
at 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R=2-m% R=Z2-m%
-A-A == BRTEE
#E ERktE WRATE 2R B CH%/ AN WRITE RHAH S (1)
Directors
j £
OEI Kang, Eric Personal 749,757 - - - 749,757 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
L] faA —EEE+-A1EA 14 December 2016
“ZRLET-ATRAR
2 nET-ATRA
1,249,596 - - - 1,249,596 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
ZZEETZATRA 14 December 2016
“ZI\F+-ATHAZ
3 E+-AtmA
399,870 - - - 399,870 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
“23/\#=f-A 31 January 2018
ZZENE-A-RE
Z2-\§-A=1-H
599,806 - - - 599,806 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“ST\EZf-H 31 January 2018
“3-Z%-f-HZ
3 \§-A=t-H
999,676 - - - 999,676 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
—Z2Z)\$-/-H 31 January 2018
“ZT——%-f-R%
3 \§-A=t-H
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
—T-=4MmA+HA 14 April 2016
—REMA+RAZ
ZZ-EmATIA
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
“Z-=%MA+hA 14 April 2017 (note)
“Z-REMATREAZ
“Z-t¥MATMA
(GRS
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
—Z-ZEMmA+EA 14 April 2018 (note)
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

-
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) BIRETE @
Share Options of the Company (continued) KATZBIRE @)
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding at price
at 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R=Z-m% R=%-m%
-A-A Si=A=1-H SRTHEE
i L 3 WRATE R B CH#/ AN WRATE RHAM s (%7
OEI Kang, Eric Family 749,757 - - - 749,757 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
Bl Kk ZEEREHZATEA 14 December 2016
“33tEt-A1EAZE
“EF-EtZATRA
1,249,596 - - - 1,249,596 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
“R3Fr-ATER 14 December 2016
ZZE\F+-ATRAZ
Sy
399,870 - - - 399,870 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
ZZ3)\5Zf-8 31 January 2018
ZEENF-R-RE
~2-\§-A=1-H
599,806 - - - 599,806 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“2S\FZf-A 31 January 2018
“3-2%-f-H%Z
3 \§-A=t-H
999,676 - - - 999,676 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
—23)\¥Zf-8 31 January 2018
—T——%-f-R%
Z2-\5-A=t-H
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
—Z-=#MA+HA 14 April 2016

“3-NERATREAZE
“E3—FmATEA

1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
“Z-=%MmA+hA 14 April 2017 (note)
“Z-REMATRAZ
—Z—+FMATNA
(W)

2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
“E-=%MA+HA 14 April 2018 (note)
ZZ-7"FmA+HAZE
3 \fmA+MA

(izE)
LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel Personal 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
(appointed on (N —Z-=fMA+HA 14 April 2016
1 January 2014) “2-MEMATHEAZ
& ZZ-EmATIA
(R=F-m%-A-H
EZfT) 2,400,000 - - - 2,400,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269

“Z-=%MA+HA 14 April 2017 (note)
“Z-REMATRAZ

“Z-tENATMA

(M)

4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
“E2-CH¥NATER 14 April 2018 (note)
“2-"¥MATERZ
“Z-\EMATRA
(M)
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEREE (A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

B AERTE @)

Share Options of the Company (continued) RATZBIRE (@#)
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding at price
at 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R=2-mF R=Z2-m%
-A-A Si=H=1~-H SRTHEE
i BElE HRTE BRI BT %/ AN HRTR RiHAS figid: (B
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy Personal 6,604,518 - - - 6,004,518 3 July 2007 15 December 2007 to 1.726
(appointed on faA “E3TtELA=R 2 July 2017
1 January 2014) ZERLETZATRAZ
R “2-t%tAZA
(R=%-m%-F-H
EZfT) 3,332,259 - - - 3,332,259 3 July 2007 15 December 2008 to 1.726
“ZTtELAZH 2 July 2017
—ZZ\F+-ATHAZ
“E-t+%+AzH
3,332,259 - - - 3,332,259 3 July 2007 15 December 2009 to 1.726
“22+45+A=A 2 July 2017
ZZEAETZATRAZ
S o s
1,332,903 - - - 1,332,903 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
—Z2\#-A-H 31 January 2018
“IENF-R-RZ
Z2-N\5-A=1-R
1,999,354 - - - 1,999,354 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“ZI\EZA-H 31 January 2018
“2-T%-f-HZ
“F-\$-A=t-H
3,332,259 - - - 3,332,259 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“2Z)\§-f-H 31 January 2018
—2——%-f-R%
“2-\¥-A=t-H
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
—E--fMATHA 14 April 2016
“2-NEMATRAZR
—Z-EmATIA
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
“Z-=%MA+AA 14 April 2017 (note)
“3-AfMATEAZE
“Z—t¥mA+mA
(FezE)
2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
—T-=#MA+HA 14 April 2018 (note)
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) BB AT & )
Share Options of the Company (continued) RNT 2 HERE @)
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding at price
at 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R-g-m& n-g-mE
-A-A Si=H=T1—H BRTEE
%% BRfE HRTHE R B DRE/ B4R HRITHE BHAH ficd (#x)
An Ex-Director Personal 9,914,160 - - (9,914,160) - 1 September 2010 1 September 2012 to 0.443
—ZHES faA “3-TFAR-R 31 August 2014
“R-—FNR-BHE
“F-mENA=T-H
16,523,601 - - (16,523,601) - 1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 0.443
“Z-TEAR-H 31 August 2015
—Z-=fN\R-RZE
ZZ-RENA=1-R
10,000,000 - - (10,000,000) - 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
—2-=4MmA+1HA 14 April 2016
“3-NEMATREAZR
3 EMATEA
15,000,000 - - (15,000,000) - 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
—5-=fmATHR 14 April 2017 (note)
“Z-REMATHAZ
“Z—t¥MATMA
(FzE)
25,000,000 - - (25,000,000) - 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
“2-=%MA+HA 14 April 2018 (note)
2 FMATRAZ
—Z-\FMA+MA
(FzE)
An ExDirector Personal 2,203,146 - - (2,203,146) - 10 June 2011 10 June 2012 to 0.327
—ZHES faA —2-—%5A1H 9 June 2014
“T-—ExATRE
“2-MERANE
3,304,720 - - (3,304,720) - 10 June 2011 10 June 2013 to 0.327
—Z2-—%5A1H 9 June 2015
ZT-=55ATRE
“3-55ANA
5,507,866 - - (5,507,866) - 10 June 2011 10 June 2014 to 0.327
“3——5xATR 9 June 2016
ZZ-MERATRE
Z3ERANA
An Ex-Director Personal 799,741 - - - 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
—ZHES fBA —ZT3)\5=f-H 31 January 2018
“ENF-R-RE
3 \§-A=t-H
1,199,613 - - - 1,199,613 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“2T)\¥=f-H 31 January 2018
—2-35-f-R%
Z2-\§-fA=t-H
1,999,354 - - - 1,999,354 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“23/\#-f-H 31 January 2018
—2——%-f-R%
Z2-\§-A=1-H
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

. -
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) BB REET & )
Share Options of the Company (continued) RNTZHERE @)
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding at price
at 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R=2-mF R=Z2-m%
-A-A i=A=1-H SRTHEE
i BElE HRTE BRI BT %/ AN HRTR RiHAS figid: (%7
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico Personal 799,741 - - - 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
B¥E faA —2Z/\fZf-H 31 January 2018
“EENF-R-RZ
“2-N\5-A=1-R
1,199,613 - - - 1,199,613 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
—23)\¥Zf-H 31 January 2018
“2-3%-f-HZ
“F-\§-A=t-H
1,999,354 - - - 1,999,354 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“2Z)\§-f-H 31 January 2018
—2——%-f-R%
“2-N\§-A=1-H
CHENG Yuk Wo Personal 799,741 - - - 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
sl (N —FZ/\fZf-H 31 January 2018
“EENFR-H
B2 \F-A=1-R
1,199,613 - - - 1,199,613 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“ZT\F-A-H 31 January 2018
“3-%25-f-H
225 \§-A=1-A
1,999,354 - - - 1,999,354 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“2Z)\$=f-H 31 January 2018
—2——%-f-A%
“2-\¥-R=t-H
Albert Thomas DA ROSA,  Personal 799,741 - - - 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
Junior N —FZ/\f-f-A 31 January 2018
BB “ZINFZR-H
E22-\5-A=1-R
1,199,613 - - - 1,199,613 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“ZI\F-A-H 31 January 2018
“3-%5-f-H
E2F-\§-A=1+-R
1,999,354 - - - 1,999,354 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“2Z/\#-f-H 31 January 2018
—2——5§-f-H
E2E-\5-fA=t-H
Sub-total 159,439,287 - (87,453,493) 71,985,794
Nt
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

. .
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) BB AT & )
Share Options of the Company (continued) RNT 2 HERE @)
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding at price
at 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R=2-m% R=Z2-m%
-A-A Si=H=1—H SRTHEE
i BEME HRTE BRI B CH%/ AN HRTHR RiHAS fikid: (#x)
Employees and other 5,598,184 - - - 5,598,184 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
participants “EEE+-ATEA 14 December 2016
EEREMBEAL ZZREETZATRAZ
“E-AFTZATMA
9,663,540 - - - 9,663,540 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
ZZINETZATERA 14 December 2016
—Z3\F+-ATRAZ
“E-E+-ATRA
11,662,901 - - - 11,662,901 15 December 2006 15 December 2009 to 1.066
“ETAFTZATER 14 December 2016
ZZENETZATRAZ
2 FTZA TR
11,329,664 - - - 11,329,664 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
—ZZ\#-A-H 31 January 2018
“ZENF-P-RZ
Z2-N\5-A=1-R
16,994,502 - - - 16,994,502 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
—23)\¥Zf-H 31 January 2018
“2-3F-f-HZ
“F-\§-A=t-H
28,324,186 - - - 28324186 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“2Z)\§=f-H 31 January 2018
—Z——%-f-R%
“2-\$-B=t-H

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

MBS E @)

Share Options of the Company (continued) RNTZHERE @)
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding at price
at 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R=2-mF R=Z2-m%
-A-A Si=H=1~-H SRTHEE
i BElE HRTE BRI BT %/ AN HRTR RiHAS figid: (#x)
Employees and other 5,900,000 - - (1,100,000) 4,800,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
participants (continued) —Z--fMATHA 14 April 2016
EEREMBEAL (8) ZZ-MEMATRAZE
—Z-EMATMA
8,850,000 - - (1,650,0000 7,200,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
“Z-=%MA+AA 14 April 2017 (note)
“3-AfMATEAZE
“Z-t5¥mATmA
(FtzE)
14,750,000 - - (2750,0000  12,00,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
“E--§¥MATHA 14 April 2018 (note)
2 \fNATEAZ
3 \FmATEA
(GE)
Sub-total 113,072,977 = - (5,500,000 107,572,977
Nt
Total 272,512,264 - - (92,953,493) 179,558,771
@t

Note: The share options will be vested and exercisable subject to the

attainment of the performance target as determined by the board
of Directors (the “Board”).

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share Options of the Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted,
exercised, cancelled nor lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2014 under the HKC Option Scheme.

Share Options of subsidiary of the Company

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE"), a subsidiary
of the Company, adopted a share option scheme (the “CRE
Option Scheme”) on 27 May 2008. Particulars of the CRE Option
Scheme are set out below:

(a)

(b)

Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high
caliber Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract
human resources that are valuable to the CRE Group or
any entity in which any member of the CRE Group holds
an equity interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”),
to recognise the significant contributions of the Eligible
Persons to the growth of the CRE Group or Invested
Entities by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain
ownership interest in CRE and to further motivate and
give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue to
contribute to the long term success and prosperity of the
CRE Group or Invested Entities.

Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the CRE Group or any Invested Entity who,
in the sole discretion of the board of directors of CRE,
have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the CRE Group or any Invested Entity.

BARRESTE @)

AATZBERE @)
B EXIEEZEN  REBZ T —NFE+
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AR AR ZERE

ARFIMBARTEBERRIRERR
~E (THEBLERR]) R—FFN\Fh
A+t AEM—BBERESE ([F
BARRBRETS] - PEBERR
FEARERT &8l 2 IR T

(a) B®

TEANREFRBEEES A
BRAL (E&E RT3 AREA
Heh B BAERREBESKE T EM
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share Options of subsidiary of the Company
(continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares of CRE available for issue
under the CRE Option Scheme is 76,353,475 shares
which represent approximately 3.24% of the issued share
capital of CRE as at the date of this Annual Report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The total number of shares of CRE issued and to be
issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the
shares of CRE in issue;

(ii) a substantial shareholder or an independent non-

executive director of CRE must not exceed 0.1%
of the shares of CRE in issue and not exceed
HKS5 million in aggregate value.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as
the board of directors of CRE may specify at the time
of grant.

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share Options of subsidiary of the Company
(continued)

(f)

(g)

(h)

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held

At the time of the grant of an option, the board of
directors of CRE must specify the minimum period(s), if
any, for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the
date of offer and a consideration of HKS1.0 must be paid
upon acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

B AERTE @)
AR B LB ZBRE @)
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(g)
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share Options of subsidiary of the Company
(continued)

B E @)
RATHBA R ZBRE @)

(i)  Remaining life (i) &TEH
. . . AN 0 A = > (&
The CRE Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will i%ﬁ;t{ﬂ BB A RE IR AR AT 8 2 15
. . . ; =, == b T~ =
expire on 27 May 2018 unless otherwise terminated in Zt Bﬁgﬁ{gﬁi&tﬁ EE\'JEP ﬁ;%
accordance with the terms of the CRE Option Scheme. Re IR ﬁJrE'JE/ﬂZ%lO% oL
—E-)\FRA=Z+tHER -
] Ab\‘l\ﬁ e %|
Movements of share options granted under the CRE gg*ﬁg;?%ggéiﬁs u.Jr_J
Option Scheme during the year are as follows: LRI AR L 2 E) 1R '
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding at Price
Nature of ~ at 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name interest 2014 Granted Exercised lapsed 2014 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R=B-mF R=B-0F
-A-A t=ZA=t-H BRITEE
2] BEHE BRI BRI BT Bi#/BAN BRI RHAH k2] (#7)
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Personal 825,000 - - (825,000) - 20 January 2010 20 January 2012 to 0.764
Samuel (note) A “E-ZF-A=1R 19 January 2014
REANEE (M) 3 F-A-tR%E
ZT-mE-ATNH
1,375,000 - - - 1,375,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2013 to 0.764
“2-%F-A-1H 19 January 2015
:?ﬁii*ﬂ:ﬁﬁﬁ
“2-n5-AtNA
An CRE ex-director Personal 1,500,000 = - (1,500,000 = 1 September 2010 1 September 2012 to 0570
—EPEEEERNES A “2-ZFNR-H 31 August 2014
“E-_FNA-RE
“2-mENA=T-R
2,500,000 - - (2,500,000 - 1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 0570
“Z-TEAR-H 31 August 2015
:%—Eiﬁ%—ﬂ%
“T-RENAZT-R
Total 6,200,000 - - (4,825,000) 1,375,000

it

Note: Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel is a director of CRE, the
listed subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted,

exercised, cancelled nor lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2014 under the CRE Option Scheme.

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES EERNESF2ER

At 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the R_-_ZT—FE+_—_HF=+—H  K&E=
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, KARAFTFEBITHABERAKRA A H
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its {E{[/EE A E (T & BB A RHE &N
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the ([EAENRHIEEM |)) EXVIEZR&D - 1B
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded inthe BARMD RESFTHEES LN B A LB E
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or (EHIE3IL2{EIR EFENELM 2 ER KL
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange A& : siiBiE AN B EL4N 2 | 383 Bl bt
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by #x+FiEl I TEITAZEZETEERLS
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in EYIZXE<FRI ([FZX2SFAI]) #HEBME K
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the Company were A &) BB AT 2 AEZE AR IO T

as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying (i) RE2BTRDKREBERGZ

shares of the Company: THa
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shares the existing
and underlying issued share
shares of capital of the
Name of Directors Nature of interest the Company Company
EARRGR EEAQARBREFEHR
EENR EEME HERGHEE TRASNES K
OEl Kang, Eric Corporate 5,684,439,135! 49.022%
== NE]
Personal 50,515,788? 0.436%
& A
Joint 147,430,6133 1.271%
[
Family 8,998,705 0.078%
ENZS
LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel Personal 8,180,000° 0.071%
TS fEA
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy Personal 24,993,5526 0.216%
=HEHR & A
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico Personal 3,998,7087 0.034%
EREE &A
CHENG Yuk Wo Personal 3,998,708% 0.034%
0 g A0 &A
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior Personal 3,998,708° 0.034%
IRl PN

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(continued)

(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying

EENESF2ERE @)

(ii) P22 B LB R 6 & AEE K5

shares of associated corporation of the 2R
Company:
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shares the existing
and underlying issued share
Name of shares of capital of
associated Name of the associated the associated
corporation Directors Nature of interest corporation corporation
LB EERE
MHEZE 2R R EETRA
HEEEER EEnE ERMEE HERGEE BMABE D
China Renewable OEl Kang, Eric  Corporate 1,702,525,81110 72.252%
Energy Investment =l NG|
Limited (“CRE”)
P BB AERREE
BRAR ([
BAEER])
Personal 2,175,0861! 0.092%
fEA
Joint 24,724,35312 1.049%
A
Notes: BsE -
1. The corporate interest of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric represents 1. =ML A2 R Al FE R R Al

an interest in 2,035,222,450 shares of the Company and
an interest in 68,903,400 underlying shares in respect
of warrants of the Company held by Creator Holdings
Limited (“Creator”) and an interest in 2,997,332,404
shares of the Company and an interest in 582,980,881
underlying shares in respect of warrants of the Company
held by Genesis Capital Group Limited (“Genesis”).
Both Creator and Genesis are wholly owned by Claudio
Holdings Limited (“Claudio”), a company owned as to
50% by Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50%
by his wife, Mrs. OEIl Valonia Lau.

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(continued)

(ii)

Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of associated corporation of the
Company: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

2,

The personal interest of Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric represents
an interest in 30,430,902 shares of the Company, an
interest in 6,086,181 underlying shares in respect of
warrants of the Company and an interest in 13,998,705
underlying shares in respect of options granted by the
Company as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section
above.

The joint interest of Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric represents an
interest in 122,858,844 shares of the Company and an
interest in 24,571,769 underlying shares in respect of
warrants of the Company jointly held with his wife, Mrs.
OEI Valonia Lau.

The family interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an
interest in 8,998,705 underlying shares in respect of
options granted by the Company to Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau,
wife of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, as detailed in “Share Option
Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel
represents an interest in 180,000 shares of the
Company and an interest in 8,000,000 underlying shares
in respect of options granted by the Company as
detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy
represents an interest in 24,993,552 underlying shares
in respect of options granted by the Company as
detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico
represents an interest in 3,998,708 underlying shares in
respect of options granted by the Company as detailed
in “Share Option Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo represents
an interest in 3,998,708 underlying shares in respect of
options granted by the Company as detailed in “Share
Option Schemes” section above.

(ii)

EENESF2ERE @)

RA D T LB R0 R AEER G

ZER ()

fas -

2.

(&)

mHIEEZEARBER AR
7130,430,9028% iz 0 B 2 #
7 bA %26,086,181 8% &K 1 & 37
P8 A R 2 R A D #E 2 e
B X [RERERT &l —#ipTRF
AARRBFAFELERERRZ
13,998,705 tERA A {7 et

B A2 R a4 i 1 e
HEFIELLTHARKEZ
122,858,844 X 1~ Al I 1p 2
Rz )2 24,571,769 A A AR
P HEE AR 2 ARR R (D #E -

B EEZRGERDER X
(BT S] — SR
ARMEMEE 2 ETFRZ R
P RE X B9 2. 8,998,705
BARRER (D #E e -

FEREEZEAEIDIE
180,0008% 7 2 =] B 7 4% 25 &2
EX B ER &) — 8T
AARRNBFAFELERERRZ
8,000,000 tHBA R fH #E 5% °
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X El] — st
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(continued)

(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of associated corporation of the
Company: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

9. The personal interest of Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA,
Junior represents an interest in 3,998,708 underlying
shares in respect of options granted by the Company
as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section above.

10. Since as at 31 December 2014, the Company was held
as to approximately 43.40% by Claudio (via its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Creator and Genesis), a company
owned as to 50% by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and as to
the remaining 50% by his wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau,
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is deemed to be interested in the
same parcel of shares of CRE in which the Company is
interested. The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric
represents (i) an interest in 1,275,540,924 shares held
by the Company in CRE; (ii) an interest in 276,065,897
shares of CRE held by Genesis; and (iii) an interest in
150,918,990 shares of CRE held by Creator.

11. The personal interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents
an interest in 2,175,086 shares of CRE.

12. The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an
interest in 24,724,353 shares of CRE jointly held with
his wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code contained in the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
that enabled the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Mr. OEl Tjie Goan is the chairman and a director of PT. Sinar
Mas, a company together with its subsidiaries, associates,
including Asia Pulp & Paper Company, Ltd., and its holding
companies (if any) (the “Sinar Mas Group”) are engaged in,
among other things, general trading and property development
and investment. Save as disclosed above, Mr. OEl Tjie Goan is
not interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, a member of the Oei Family and the
son of Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, does not hold any directorship in the
Sinar Mas Group. Having considered that the Company itself has
its own management supervising the daily operation and making
financial and business decisions, the Company can operate its
business independently from the Sinar Mas Group.

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy are
executive directors of CRE whose principal business activities
are alternative energy business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
respective associate(s) was interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the sections “Connected Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Report of
Directors and “Related Party Transactions” in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' FTERRERREF 2R

INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 December 2014, the following persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO:

R-ZE—WN&E+=_A=+—H  WUTA
T (RRREZEFHEFETHRABRIIN B
ARGz REERNDTHEBEST
RBEHKEBERAIFEIFEREFTENE
S AR -
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares RAQXTRBREBERGO 2HF =
of the Company

Approximate
percentage of
existing issued

share capital
of the Company

Number of shares
and underlying
shares of

the Company

Name of Shareholders Nature of interest

HARATRE
EATRG R 2RITRA
BRES BB ERME HHERDEE BN E DL
OEI Valonia Lau Corporate 5,684,439,135! 49.022%
2= NC
Personal 8,998,7057 0.078%
& A
Joint 147,430,6133 1.271%
H[A
Family 50,515,788+ 0.436%
EN3
Claudio Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 5,684,439,1355 49.022%
E=nEEA
Genesis Capital Group Limited Beneficial owner 3,580,313,285°6 30.876%
ER|EEFRAF EmiEA A
Creator Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 2,104,125,8507 18.146%
BlESEER AR EmiEA A
Cerberus Institutional Associates, L.L.C. Corporate 1,878,417,9798 16.199%
NE]
Promontoria Europe Investments XIl LDC Corporate 1,878,417,9798 16.199%
N
Promontoria Holding Cooperatie U.A. Corporate 1,878,417,9798 16.199%
NE]
Promontoria Holding XXI B.V. Beneficial owner 1,878,417,9798 16.199%
E=EEA
Stephen A. FEINBERG Corporate 1,878,417,9798 16.199%
/N
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares

FTERIRESF 2R @)

REQXBAROREERG 2FR

2,035,222,450 shares of the Company and an interest in
68,903,400 underlying shares in respect of warrants of the
Company held by Creator and an interest in 2,997,332,404
shares of the Company and an interest in 582,980,881
underlying shares in respect of warrants of the Company held
by Genesis. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau are
directors of Claudio.

of the Company (continued) (48)

Notes: MIaE -
The corporate interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents 1. BEL T v RRlEREREIEREZ
an interest in 2,035,222,450 shares of the Company and 2,035,222,4508% AN 2~ & P ) 2 4 &=
an interest in 68,903,400 underlying shares in respect of MEBARRRRREE 268,903,400
warrants of the Company held by Creator and an interest in BMABRMD ZEZARBELFES
2,997,332,404 shares of the Company and an interest in 22,997,332,4048% &~ ~ 7 K B 2
582,980,881 underlying shares in respect of warrants of the HmLEARNARBREZMEEAZ
Company held by Genesis. 582,980,881 X AHEE A 0 2 s o
The personal interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an 2. BIZL T2 AAEREEARART
interest in 8,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options 2 B HEA RS 28,998,705 /% #8 B Ik
granted by the Company to her. 2w o
The joint interest of Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau represents an interest 3. BBA T o ARAERERER XX
in 122,858,844 shares of the Company and an interest in =R SLEXRRE 2122,858,8448%
24,571,769 underlying shares in respect of warrants of the RARIRM 2 EmRBAARR G RK
Company jointly held with her husband, Mr. OEI Kang, Eric. WeRE 224,571, 760 AB A D « #E R ©
The family interest of Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau represents an interest 4. =T o Rk Ts B =M A
in 30,430,902 shares of the Company held by Mr. OEl Kang, A #930,430,9020% & A &) f& 1p 2 #
Eric, an interest in 6,086,181 underlying shares in respect of 7 BEARRRRER 26,086,181
warrants of the Company held by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and an REAERARR D < #E s+ DA KB 3T [ BB A%
interest in 13,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options *%E‘%UJ — FAFT Rl 2N R B [A) 2 W o8 A
granted by the Company to Mr. OEl Kang, Eric as detailed in & BERSHEA 8 2 13,998, 7058 #8
“Share Option Schemes” section above. A il
The beneficial interest of Claudio includes an interest in 5. Claudiow EmtEm BRENEIERE 2

2,035,222,4508% RN B I D 2 s &
BEAADRRIEE 268,903,400
HERGD 2 EZS > UWRBFEAFEZ
2,997,332,404F% KN B I D 2 i X
BRA R AR HEF 2582,980,881
BRI G 2 - R EAEREE
7+ AClaudioZ &=

EERE (BR) ARAT « T MEER @



Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company (continued)

6. The beneficial interest of Genesis includes an interest in
2,997,332,404 shares of the Company and an interest in
582,980,881 underlying shares in respect of warrants of the
Company. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau are
directors of Genesis.

7. The beneficial interest of Creator includes an interest in
2,035,222,450 shares of the Company and an interest in
68,903,400 underlying shares in respect of warrants of the
Company. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau are
directors of Creator.

8. An interest in 1,565,348,316 shares of the Company and
interest in 313,069,663 underlying shares in respect of warrants
of the Company held by certain funds affiliated with and managed
on a discretionary basis by Cerberus.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the
Company had not been notified by any person, other than
Directors and chief executive of the Company, who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which are required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company and its subsidiaries entered into certain
transactions in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms which were “Related Parties Transactions”,
the details of which are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements. Some of these transactions also
constitute “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under the Listing Rules as summarized below.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions entered into by the Group
and subsisted during the year are set out below:

The Company and CRE entered into a subscription agreement
dated 2 November 2012 relating to the issue of a convertible
note in principal amount of RMB75 million at an issue price
equivalent to its principal amount (the “2012 Convertible Note”)
by CRE to the Company. The 2012 Convertible Note, bearing
interest at 6.4% per annum, is due three years from the date
of its issuance and is convertible into a total of 135,584,558
shares of CRE at an initial price of HKS0.68 per share of CRE.
The 2012 Convertible Note was issued to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company on 18 December 2012. Details of
the connected transactions were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 2 November 2012.

The Company is a controlling shareholder and a connected
person of CRE. Apart from the indirect interests in CRE held
through the Company’s shareholdings of about 54.13%, Mr. OE|
Kang, Eric (Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company) and his associates (other than HKC Group) also had
interests in about 19.26% of shares of CRE as at the date of the
subscription agreement. Accordingly, CRE is a connected person
of the Company and the subscription of the 2012 Convertible
Note and acquisition of the shares of CRE upon conversion of the
2012 Convertible Note both constituted connected transactions
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 12 June 2014, CRE has exercised the option on early
redemption to redeem and repay the whole 2012 Convertible
Note in full the principal amount of RMB75 million, together with
accrued and unpaid interest. Since then, the Group does not hold
the 2012 Convertible Note.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by
the Group during the year are set out below:

(i) Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE

The Company has provided, by itself directly or its
wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly, guarantees in
respect of project loan facilities granted by banks to
the relevant project companies, which are subsidiaries
of CRE (the “Guarantees”). CRE is a subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. OEl Kang, Eric (Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company) and his
associates held approximately 19.26% direct interest
in CRE as at 31 December 2014. The provision of the
Guarantees is subject to reporting, annual review and
disclosure requirement under Rule 14A.60 of the Listing
Rules. Details of the Guarantees were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 September
2011.

6 HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014

RERER S
AEBERT L2 BEMER S FHER
ST

(i)

B EBERRZHE AT
RmREER

ARREEEXRBBEZENBAR
A ERRTREBRERE 27 (B
PEBLERKBAR) BTHIE
EERmERHER(ER]D -
PREBEEREARGNBAR
RZFE—WF+ZA=+—8 " &
NRIRITESRITRAR =R L E
REBEATFEREBERRY
19.26%M EZ i xm - IRIEERA
BT AR RSB 14A.60168 T &
W FEBRARBEENRE - ER
MEBERARARIBHA-T——
FAAZTHNRMIFE -



Report of the Directors (continued)
%géiﬁﬂ:i (nﬁ)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS ##EBRERS @)
(continued)
(i)  Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (i) AFEBEERZHELT
(continued) %.E{ﬁﬁ'f% (&)
The salient particulars of the Guarantees are set out BRZEBEFHFBHIWOT :
below:
(1) Date . 28 August 2006
B & —EEXENA=-FTNH

Project company : ZME NEBH S IT)ER A F (Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company
(borrower) Limited), which is currently a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CRE.
HERARA (B7) TMEANES (BT BRAR - BRIRTRBERRZIFEZEMBAR -

Amount secured : The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the

BEIRERE bank to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company
to the lending bank under the loan facility, including the principals, interests
accrued and other losses, damages and monies payable under the loan
facility.
MIEE ARIEL ZERTIABRITASEA  BREEEFREETER
RITEWEERFZMENE  PREEFREBTAS B EREME
B BRREMNRE -

The loan in the sum of RMB200 million (approximately HKS250 million) was
originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried interest
at such annual rate as agreed with lending bank, determined by reference
to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the same grade and tenure. The
interest rate will be adjusted annually on each anniversary of the related
advancement (and, in relation to an extended term agreed by lending bank,
on each anniversary of the date falling immediately after the original maturity
date) based on the PBOC Benchmark Rate then in effect as prescribed in the
facility agreement.

REELRER2EHREE A AR 200,000,000t (49250,000,000/%
TL) c ERATEHER  REGRBITHECEBERNEFE  £2EHEA
REBTIHERNSEERFRAZER 2 EEFRET - B BEWREMIH - FIX
HIRERBEARRITERER 2 ELENE - NE@ERBF 2B —AFEH (X
RERBITHECEREAME @ BERIHAREZE—RFER) KFAR -

As at 31 December 2014, the total outstanding principal was RMB106
million (approximately HKS133 million); and the extent of the Guarantee was
for the same amount.

REZE—NF+-A=1+—H  REEXSEFEHARE106,000,0007T (4
133,000,000%7T) - EREREINEAER o

Repayment and  : The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan as
maturity dates provided in the facility agreement, with the final maturity date falling on 30
of loan facility August 2021.

ERRE 2B EREHZAT  BEXRERBHASHESR  SRIBEEA-ZT=-_—FN\A
KEIEAR =+H-
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEREE (A)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS REBREEXZ @)

(continued)

(i)  Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (i) APEBERERZHE QT

(continued)
(2) Date
=Rt

Project company
(borrower)
HB QA (BH)

Amount secured
BEIREEE

Repayment and
maturity dates
of loan facility

EREE 2 ER
REHH

REER @

: 3 March 2006

—ZETRF=A=H

: BAEANBEERBE)ER AT (Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) Company

Limited), which is currently a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CRE.
BEBRNES (BK) BRAR - BAIATRBLERRZIEZENBAR -

. The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the

bank to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to
the bank under the loan facility, including the principals, interests accrued
and losses, damages and other monies payable under the loan facility.
MULIEE ARIEL 2 BRTIABRITAZ A BREEERBEIR TRIT
EWEBRARIZAARE  BEEXRBREETNAS B A B REE - BX
R E A TR o

The loan in the sum of RMB200 million (approximately HKS$250 million)
was originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried
interest, settled quarterly, at such annual rate as agreed with lending
bank, determined by reference to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the
same grade and tenure. The interest rate will be adjusted annually on
each anniversary of the date of related advancement (and, in relation to
an extended term agreed by lending bank, on each anniversary of the date
falling immediately after the original maturity date) based on the PBOC
Benchmark Rate then in effect, as prescribed in the facility agreement.
RAERE RFER 2 ERETE A AR®200,000,0005T (49250,000,000/%
TL) e ERAREHER - mEGHRITHECEBER R ELIRFEERE &
S2EZRBARRTBBERERRFR 2 ER 2 EENEETE - BB EHR
FIRE  FIEBIREBEFBRIARBITERER I ELEFE  REBRR T A
FE2H (IRERRITHECLERPHE  BRRIBABER 2 —BFEH) &
FHE -

As at 31 December 2014, the total outstanding principal was RMB106
million (approximately HKS133 million); and the extent of the Guarantee was
for the same amount.

REZZE—NF+=-A=1+—0H ' KEEXLEFERAR106,000,0007T (4
133,000,000 7T) - &R EIEER -

. The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan

as provided in the facility agreement over the term of the loan, with the final
maturity date falling on 27 February 2021.

RERPALRBERZRT  EXRERBASBER  fEINHAA=Z
Z—FZAZ++H-
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS REBREEXZ @)

(continued)

(i)  Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (i) AHPEBEERZHNEQF
(continued) RHEER @®
(3)  Date : 22 December 2008
B —FRN\E+-A=+=H

Project company : BE#ae/RIF ErEREFEER AR (Hong Kong New Energy Si Zi Wang Qi
(borrower) Wind Power Ltd.), which is currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRE.
HE AR (&7) BRI T EEREERA AT - BRI ATRBARERZZ2EMNBAR -

Amount secured : The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the

EReRE bank to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to
the bank under the loan facility, including the principals, interests accrued
and other losses, damages and monies payable under the loan facility.
MUEE ARIEL C ERIIABITAIEEA  BREEEZRREETER
RITEWEERF CMENE  PREEFREBETAS B EREME
B BRREMNRE -

The loan in the sum of RMB300 million (approximately HK$S375 million) was
originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried interest
at such annual rate as agreed with lending bank, determined by reference
to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the same grade and tenure. The
interest rate will be adjusted annually on each anniversary of the date of
related advancement based on the PBOC Benchmark Rate then in effect, as
prescribed in the facility agreement.

RAERE RER 2 EFREEE A AR300,000,0005T (49375,000,000%
T0) e ERAERER  REBRRITBELBBEENEGTE - KRERHA
RBIHERAERRFR2ER 2 EEFRET - T EWRMIH - FIE
HIRBRRARBITERERCEEFNE  REERRCE—BAFERERSF

As at 31 December 2014, the total outstanding principal was RMB175
million (approximately HKS219 million); and the extent of the Guarantee was
for the same amount.

REZZE—NF+-A=1+—H REEXSEFEHARE175,000,0007T (4
219,000,000/ 7T) « #EREEINEHER ©

Repayment and : The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan
maturity dates as provided in the facility agreement over the term of the loan, with the final
of loan facility maturity date falling on 22 December 2021.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS &z

(continued)

(i) Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE
(continued)

Opinion from the Independent Non-executive
Directors on the continuing connected
transactions

In accordance with rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
Independent Non- executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed and approved the continuing connected
transactions described above (“Continuing Connected
Transactions”) and confirmed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions were carried out in accordance
with the following principles:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms no less favourable
than terms available to (or from) independent third
parties;

(c) in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements governing the Continuing Connected

Transactions; and

(d) on a fair and reasonable basis and in the interest
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(i) Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE
(continued)

Report from the auditor on the continuing
connected transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance
with the Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Apart from those disclosed under the heading “Related Party
Transactions” in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales for the year
attributable to its major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

The largest supplier 39.2%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 65.4%
Sales

The largest customer 5.6%
Five largest customers in aggregate 16.9%

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of their
associates, or shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers or customers noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2014, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 26 to 49.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Group are also subject to compliance
with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.
A Code for Securities Dealings by Employees has also been
adopted in this regard.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&A)

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is set
out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

REVIEW OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive directors with written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules, and reports to the Board. The audit committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for
the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (&)

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the
information of the Directors since the date of the 2014 Interim
Report are set out below:

Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. FAN resigned as an independent non-executive director,
a member of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company with effect from 1 December 2014.

On behalf of the Board

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

OEl Kang, Eric

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
¥ 3 A% B4 ED

_B
pwc

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HKC
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 87 to 247, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

By ZHERE ()

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE T NWE+-_A=1+—HIFE

2014 2013
—2-mF —E—=F
Note HKS Million HKS Million
B 5T BEET ER-:w
Revenue & 5 881.2 1,441.0
Cost of sales SHE A (563.2) (1,014.8)
Gross profit EF 318.0 426.2
Other income H A 6 120.3 51.7
Fair value adjustments on KEYE
investment properties NEEFE 16 351.5 1.7
Provision for impairment BERE
losses on assets E5tE B 7 (223.4) (16.1)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R D A (44.4) (65.2)
Administrative expenses THRER (183.7) (198.1)
Other and general expenses Hih e — &R (72.0) (115.3)
Operating profit BERF 8 266.3 84.9
Finance income B URA 9 48.8 36.7
Finance costs BB R A 9 (151.6) (135.5)
Finance costs —net ®&E&AF® N (102.8) pue (98.8)
Share of profits less losses of FE(LEE 2 N A
associated companies i 1) ek 5 18 22 65.4 100.5
Share of profits less losses of A N
joint ventures i 1) ek 5 18 23 (10.9) 75.9
Profit before income tax P 8% A& 218.0 162.5
Income tax expense FTiSfix 12 (168.7) (85.0)
Profit for the year A B Al 49.3 77.5
Attributable to: LAF FEAL :
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEA 13 (87.2) 72.8
Non-controlling interests e i 136.5 4.7
49.3 77.5
(Loss)/earnings per share RATEZZFEA
for (loss)/profit attributable FE1E (B518) %R
to equity holders of the 28K (BR)BF
Company, expressed in DA BB 5w
HK cents per share 14
Basic HK (0.8) 0.6
Diluted #E (0.9) 0.6
Dividends BRE 15 - -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SLEEHERR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—_ZT-—NWE+-_A=1+—HIFE

2014 2013
—Z2-mF —E—=F
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEER BEAT
Profit for the year NEERF 49.3 7788
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Htt2mE (FE) WA
Items reclassifiable to profit or loss FHEEHFH/EEEHMNER
Translation of financial statements of B G INE TS B TS 2R %
foreign operations
— Currency translation differences —[ENhE = (351.1) 556.4
— Currency translation differences —RNEBREHER
reclassified to profit or loss upon BENOEEERZ
liquidation and disposal PE e =58 (26.3) -
Investments available for sale AR ERE
- Gain in fair value — RN ERE 2.1 0.9
Items not reclassifiable to TEENIPEEEZNER
profit or loss
Gain on property revaluation =R 11.7 =
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ZAEEHMW2E (FE), WA -
for the year, net of tax HERFLE (363.6) 557.3
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AEEZH (FA), WAL
for the year (314.3) 634.8
Total comprehensive (loss)/income DUTEERE (FHR) WABE:
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RAFIERFAA (396.1) 570.8
Non-controlling interests FEE R RE 81.8 64.0
(314.3) 634.8
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SeBEERER

As at 31 December 2014
R=ZF—mFE+_-_A=+—H

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
—E-NE ZE—=F
+=—A=+t—-H +=ZA=+—H
Note HK$ Million HKS Million
B &E BEBR BEBT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties BEME 16 8,044.1 6,771.1
Prepaid land lease payments BT A ER 17 1,720.8 2,601.6
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RE
— Other property, plant and equipment — H¥E - s R 18 1,282.8 1,025.5
- Construction in progress —FEETR 18 0.5 250.9
Intangible assets BEE 19 1,183.7 1,226.8
Properties under development BRBYE 20 644.8 1,7435
Interests in associated companies N NG ol 22 1,223.3 1,325.6
Interests in joint ventures A RUNGIVA: 2o 23 2,225.0 2,218.8
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESREE 24 26.8 26.1
Prepayments and other receivables T 15 3 R L b e Ui X 28 258.2 466.4
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 16,610.0 17,656.3
Current assets REEE
Properties under development BRPYE 20 1,554.7 =
Inventories 55 6.1 6.6
Properties held for sale ESHERBZME 26 2,240.9 1,730.6
Financial assets at fair value BRATEEEERIEL
through profit or loss SREE 27 14.2 14.5
Trade and other receivables JE U B 20 R L A B Y 3R 28 229.8 285.5
Restricted cash ZRHFE S 29 765.0 1,064.0
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFEYD 30 1,102.8 1,364.3
Total current assets B EERE 5,913.5 4,465.5
Total assets BEEMAH 22,523.5 22,121.8
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

ReBERER (A)

As at 31 December 2014
R-E—NF+—_A=+—H

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
—EF-nmF —F=F
+=B=+-8B +=ZA=+—H
Note HK$ Million HKS Million
B sE BEABT BEATT
EQUITY &
Capital and reserves attributable to AATEBEEA
equity holders of the Company BB R
Share capital BRZR 31 116.0 112.4
Reserves i 32 12,587.4 12,924.3
Equity attributable to equity holders ARAFERFFFA
of the Company PE{h RS 12,703.4 13,036.7
Non-controlling interests FEiERRER 2,392.8 2,312.4
Totalequity &, MmN ] 15,096.2 [ 15,349.1
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Borrowings (RN 33 2,968.4 3,098.4
Other non-current payables HIEmEN R 13.7 13.7
Deferred income tax liabilities BERBHEE 35 1,198.3 1,124.4
Total non-current liabilities ~~  snmhfes 41804 | 42365
Current liabilities nmBEE
Trade and other payables FERTBR IR R L i FE - 3¢ 34 1,854.0 1,953.2
Borrowings (R 33 1,211.0 418.5
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFT SR B & 181.9 164.5
Total current liabilities =~~~ whAfs® . 32469 | 29362
Totalliabilites .~~~ S#&®{ 7,427.3 RSN
Total equity and liabilities ExkEEHEE 22,523.5 22,121.8
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,666.6 1,929.3
Total assets less current liabilities EEATRASEE 19,276.6 19,585.6
OEIl Kang, Eric =m
Chan Kwok Fong, Joseph BR B 55
Directors EE
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Balance Sheet

BERER

As at 31 December 2014
R=ZF—mFE+_-_A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—F —E—=F
Note HKS Million HKS Million
o5 BHEBT BEET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KM@ AEzEE 0 2t 1639 1698
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE s B BB A )38 21 9,732.9 9,857.8
Other receivables o E YR 28 0.4 0.7
Cash and cash equivalents He RIBEEEEY 30 0.7 39.2
Totalcurrentassets =~~~ wBEF@&® = 000 97340 | 98977
Total assets BEEHAE 9,897.9 10,067.5
EQUITY %
Capital and reserves attributable to &R TEZIZFEA
equity holders of the Company EEERE #FE
Share capital [N 31 116.0 112.4
Reserves fh 32 9,777.3 9,951.2
Totalequity =~~~ #=®&® 9,893.3 10,063.6
Current liability REEE
Other payables H b 3k 34 4.6 3.9
Totalliabitty .= &f@#®& 4.5 NS 3.9
Total equity and liability ERkBEHAE 9,897.9 10,067.5
OEIl Kang, Eric =m
Chan Kwok Fong, Joseph R B 5
Directors EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meERZER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—_T-—NFE+-_A=1+—HBItFE

Attributable to
equity holders  Non-controlling
of the Company interests Total equity
NG|

ERBEAES FERES ERes
Note HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million

HizE N BEET HEAT
Balance at 1 January 2013 ©  R=®-SECACHEHR 00000 124630 220965, | 14,7126
Comprehensive income 2EHBA
Profit for the year KEFEH 72.8 4.7 71.5
Other comprehensive income H2EMA
Translation of financial statements of BRESINERE R
foreign operations
~ Currency translation differences -ERREEE 32 497.1 59.3 556.4
Investments available for sale MEHERE
— Gain in fair value - AV ERE 32 0.9 - 09
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ZFE2EMARE 0000 08 0 634.8
Transaction with owners BERAZRS
Employee share option benefits EEERERF 32 29 (1.2) 1.7
Total transaction with owners ~~~~~ REAA0RZE 000 0000000 29 na L7
Balance at 31 December 2013 RoE-=&#+-F=1+-A&% 13,036.7 2,312.4 15,349.1
Balance at 1 January 2014 R-g-mE-A-AEH 13,0367 77777777 2,3124 7777777 15,3491
Comprehensive (loss)/income 20 (B8)/ WA
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (BR)/ %7 (87.2) 136.5 49.3
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hit2E (F8) /B
Translation of financial statements of BERINEBHBRR
foreign operations
- Currency translation differences -ERBEER 32 (296.4) (54.7) (351.1)
- Currency translation differences reclassified to  — AEERIHEREHHE
profit or loss upon liquidation and disposal RERCERREES 32 (26.3) - (26.3)
Investments available for sale EEHERE
~ Gain in fair value gain - A HEYE 32 2.1 - 2.1
Gain on property revaluation VEEARY 6 32 117 - 11.7
Total comprehensive (loss)/income REERE (BR)/ WAEE
oveyr S ey me
Transactions with owners BREAZR S
Exercise of bonus warrants TEAFIR R & 31, 32 60.2 - 60.2
Employee share option benefits EEBRERH 32 1.2 - 1.2
Release of reserve upon cancelled/ BT /K
lapse of share options BiifE 32 1.4 (1.4) -
Total transactions withowners =~~~ SMgsA2REe® 000000 0 0 0 0 68 4 614
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZB-ME+-A=1—-H&H 12,703.4 2,392.8 15,096.2
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

meERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE—F-—MF+-A=t+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
Note HKS Million HKS Million
P aE BHEATR BEET
Cash flows from operating activities RKEEKFEB2RERE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &% %% (Fif),/ FisHE 4 39 (4.6) 24.4
Income tax paid, net B SHFEE (58.3) (54.1)
Net cash used in operating activities i@%%i}%ﬁﬁ}ﬂﬁ@ééﬁ (62.9) (29.7)
Cash flows from investing activities RETBzRERE
Interest received B UFI 8 32,5 36.7
Dividend received B2 93.9 125.9
Development costs paid for investment ENERPEREMEZ
properties under development R A (982.9) (328.8)
Additions to prepayment for property, s MEREE AR
plant and equipment and investment BERBEEYERN
properties under development REIMER BRI (62.5) (211.6)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment FEE#2 « #E L HE (121.8) (81.0)
Proceeds from the disposal of & PSR IA
- Property, plant and equipment — W WEREHE 0.4 1.9
- Available for sale financial assets —AHEEEREE 1.0 2.5
- An associated company — —HEE AT 78.7 =
Increase in advances to a joint venture R —fEA & AR FIE N (50.0) =
Net cash used in investing activities KRB EEARE FE (1,010.7) (454.4)
Cash flows from financing activities FEEH HERE
Proceeds from exercise of bonus warrants {7{# 4L Rl ;AR HEE 2 FriS 5008 60.2 -
Repayment of bank borrowings and ERBITEAREMER
other loans (477.9) (876.4)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ZREABLHL S (Em) 299.0 (749.9)
Increase in bank borrowings and HRITHE R E A B 3R N
other loans 1,219.4 1,282.8
Interest paid BRFE (241.3) (208.5)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBHGE,/(FA)
financing activities R 859.4 (552.0)
Net decrease in cash and BeRBESSEYRD FE
cash equivalents (214.2) (1,036.1)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January RW—A—BZE&NEELEEY 1,364.3 2,317.9
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  EXRgg)y g2 (47.3) 82.5
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt+=—A=+—Hz2
31 December e RIBEEEY 1,102.8 1,364.3
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GENERAL INFORMATION

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company” or “HKC") is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the business of
property development and investment, alternative
energy investment and operation and infrastructure.
The investments of the Group are mainly located in the
Mainland China.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The ultimate holding company is Claudio
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands since 29 January 2015.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in million of Hong Kong dollars (HKS Million), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
March 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of HKC
(Holdings) Limited have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of investment properties,
available-for-sale financial assets, and financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instrument) at fair value through profit or loss,
which are carried at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with the applicable requirements of
the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32)
for this financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

(a) Amended standards and interpretation
adopted by the Group

HKAS 32 Financial instruments:
(Amendment) presentation — offsetting
financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKAS 36 Impairment of assets
(Amendment) - recoverable amount
disclosures

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

The adoption of these amendments to
standards and interpretation have no
significant effects on the Group’s financial
information.

(b) Amended standards mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning
1 January 2014 but not currently relevant
to the Group (although they may affect
the accounting for future transactions and

events)
HKAS 39 Financial instruments:
(Amendment) recognition and
measurement —
novation of
derivatives

HKFRS 10, 12 Consolidation for
and HKAS 27 investment entities
(2011)

(Amendment)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEESHBERME @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEZE @)
Changes in accounting policy and SHBEREECEE (&)
disclosures (continued)
(c)  New standards, amendments and (c) R-ZF—PHF—H—H
interpretations have been issued but FIE < B LR B AR
are not effective for the financial year 18 155 7K 4 2% A 7K B g
beginning on 1 January 2014 and have IR E IRz FER)
not been early adopted EET AR 2 FE
The following standards and amendments LT AEEMEMmANE
to standards have been published and E-_Z—HF—A—
are mandatory for the Group’s accounting B AERIE 2 ANE
periods beginning on or after 1 January B 2 51 HA R ok 51 1% B
2015 or later periods, but the Group has MR H A BEAE
not early adopted them: W ERF RN £

A RS2 R| 25T -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

TR
P&l
S HBEN
Annual improvements project Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle 1 July 2014
FEYHEER “T-TEE-T- R FRWE “E-PEF+A-H
Annual improvements project Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle 1 July 2014
FEYHEER T GFE-T--FRB/FEYE “E-MFLA-A
HKAS 19 (2011) (Amendment) Defined benefit plans: employee contributions 1 July 2014
BEGHEASLN (Z2——F) AEENHE: EEHER “Z-mE+A-H
(E3TR)
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
DA EICACHES) e HE] - %-A-A
HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 28 Investment entities: applying the consolidation exception 1 January 2016
(Amendment)
BPUBHMEEAEI0N  F125k REEE: RRAHESE —T-~%-A-A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 ESTEERME mw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REE%E @)
Changes in accounting policy and SHBEREECEE (&)

disclosures (continued)

(c) New standards, amendments and (c)
interpretations have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2014 and have
not been early adopted (continued)

R-ZFE—@mF—H—H
6 < BB EJZ B A7
18 [5f R 43X A K2 E 7
LRI FTER -
EETRZ2FE (&)

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

T3 B H
ZERRZ
S HEEN
HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting on acquisition of interests in joint operation 1 January 2016
BRMBREEAEIE (BFA)  YEBae5BER 84 2 "5-A-H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2016
EAMBREEAE14R EERILE 2 §¥-A-H
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendment) ~ Clarification of acceptable methods 1 January 2016
of depreciation and amortisation —Z-xF—A-H
BESHEAZI6RRBERTELN BENEREENITETE
F38%: (E314)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendment) ~ Agriculture: bearer plants 1 January 2016
BESHENZL6RRABE; B EENEY —E-5-A-AR
ERIFALS (BFTA)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment) Sale or contribution of assets hetween 1 January 2016
an investor and its associate or joint venture I
ABNBREEASIRRESSS REEAEREIECE ANEELELER
ERIE285: (BATX)
HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity method in separate financial statements 1 January 2016
BESERE2TH (BF]4) BUABaR ERE —F-"5-A-H
Annual Improvements project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 cycle 1 January 2016
FEYEER ZE-CHECT-MERH FENE “E-R"¥-A-A
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2017
BBMBREERE1OR EF& 0k “E—t5-A-A
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (hedge accounting and 1 January 2018
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39) “Z-\5-A-H
BRI BIMEERER SRIA et REBMBREENEN
ERUBREENETRREAGHEEI0R .
{B3T)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued)

(c) New standards, amendments and
interpretations have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2014 and have
not been early adopted (continued)

The Group has not early adopted the
new standards and amendments to
standards, which have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2014. The Group
has commenced an assessment of the
related impact but is not yet in a position
to state whether any substantial changes
to the Group’s accounting policies and
presentation of the financial information

will be resulted.

(d) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

(Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come
into operation as from the Company’s first
financial year commencing on or after 3
March 2014 in accordance with section
358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in
the process of making an assessment of
expected impact of the changes in the
Companies Ordinance on the consolidated
financial statements in the period of initial
application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it
has concluded that the impact is unlikely
to be significant and only the presentation
and the disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements will be

affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method
of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are measured at either fair value or the
present ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis
is required by HKFRS.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is
less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee's net assets
including goodwill.

Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associated
company, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests
in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions -
that is, as transactions the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as
an associated company, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d)

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over
which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associated companies are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method of accounting,
the investment is initially recognised at
cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee
after the date of acquisition. The Group's
investment in associated companies
includes goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership
interest in an associated company,
any difference between the cost of the
associated company and the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associated
company’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associated
company is reduced but significant influence
is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d)

Associated companies (continued)

The Group’s share of its associated
companies’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in profit or loss, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associated
company equals or exceeds its interest
in the associated company, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associated company.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the
associated company is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the
associated company and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to
share of profits less losses of associated
companies in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d)

(e)

Associated companies (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associated companies
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interests in the associated companies.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associated
companies have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in
investments in associated companies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are
recognised within other income or other
and general expenses in profit or loss.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity which is
subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control
over the economic activity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(e)

Joint ventures (continued)

Investments in joint ventures are accounted
for by the equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes
the Group’s share of the results of joint
ventures for the year, and the consolidated
balance sheet includes the Group’s share
of the net assets of the joint ventures
and goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment loss) on acquisition.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures
have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”").
The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the
Group’s most senior executive management that
makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The Company’s
functional currency is Renminbi and the
Group’s presentation currency is Hong
Kong dollars to facilitate analysis of the
financial information of the Group, which
is listed in Hong Kong.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security, and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in
profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified
as available for sale are included in other
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (continued)

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associated company that
includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to
the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014

2

FESTHEHME @)

2.4 HNEBRE (@)

(c)

(d)

SELQF (&)

(i) FTBELZER
EEGNEME
AR HERR o

R U B 5N B T
EZHEERATESA
B HREREND
AzEERAMEE
A E A 2
MERHE o X%
CEL P
AR -

HEBMIREBERBD
HE

R EEINER (A
HEARKEREINE
B b~ 2P
EREH-—HEAE
SNRIER B AR 2
RHIEZHE  FR
REH-—HARBEI
EBHEERAZH
[ 22 I 4 2 h & - =X
BRREH—HBEE
BINETE R B A
ZEAFENZHE)
B BLAN D AR
SRA ARIGZES
MR ERAR R 2
BELEZEBREF DR

£184 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.5

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal (continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is,
reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associated companies or joint
ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Properties are interests in land and buildings
other than investment properties. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease, buildings, electric
utility plant and equipment, other plant and
equipment, comprising plant and machineries,
motor vehicles and furniture and fixtures are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

FESTHEHME @)

25 Y- HERRE @

(continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease
commences amortisation from the time when the
land interest becomes available for its intended
use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as
finance lease and depreciation on other assets
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified shorter of
as lease finance lease remaining
lease term
or useful life
Buildings 50 years
Electric utility plant and 20 years

equipment
Other plant and equipment 3 to 15 years
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

All direct and indirect costs relating to the
construction of property, plant and equipment,
including borrowing costs during the construction
period are capitalised as the costs of the assets,
which are classified as construction in progress.
No depreciation is provided on construction in
progress until such times as the relevant assets
are completed and available for intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying
amount of the asset or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within other income or other
and general expenses in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields and is not occupied by the Group.
Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

Investment properties (continued)

Property that is being constructed or developed as
investment property is carried at fair value. Where
fair value is not determinable, such investment
property under construction is measured at
cost until either its fair value becomes reliably
determinable or construction is completed
(whichever is earlier).

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition
at cost, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined
at each reporting date by external valuers. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If
the information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. These valuations are reviewed
annually by Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight
Frank”), an independent professional valuer.

The fair value of investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current
leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market
conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis,
any cash outflows that could be expected in
respect of the property. Some of those outflows
are recognised as a liability, including finance
lease liabilities in respect of land classified as
investment property, others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

Investment properties (continued)

Subsequently expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Changes in fair values are recorded as part of a
valuation gain or loss in fair value adjustments on
investment properties in profit or loss.

The Group transfers a property from investment
property to property, plant and equipment and
prepaid land lease payments when and only
when there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of owner-occupation. The deemed
cost of the property, plant and equipment and
prepaid land lease payments is the fair value of
the property at the date of change in use.

The Group transfers a property from property,
plant and equipment to investment property when
and only when there is a change in use, evidenced
by end of owner-occupation. Any difference
resulting between carrying amount and the fair
value of the property at the date of transfer is
treated as the same way as a revaluation under
HKAS 16. Any resulting increase in the carrying
amount of the property is recognised in income
statement to the extent that it reverses a previous
impairment loss, with any remaining increase
recognised in other comprehensive income
and increase directly to equity in revaluation
surplus within equity. Any resulting decrease in
the carrying amount of the property is initially
charged in other comprehensive income against
any previously recognised revaluation surplus,
with any remaining decrease charged to income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent
prepayments for leasehold land held under
operating leases, which are stated at cost and
subsequently are amortised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
or when there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in profit or loss. During the course of
the properties development, the amortisation is
included as part of the costs of the properties
under development.

Completed properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are initially measured
at the carrying amount of the property at the
date of reclassification from properties under
development. Properties remaining unsold at the
end of the year are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost comprises land and development costs
attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value represents the management’s
estimated selling price based on prevailing market
conditions less costs to be incurred in selling the
property.

The Group transfers a property from investment
property to properties held for sale when and
only when there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of development with a view to
sale. The deemed cost of the properties held for
sale transferred from investment property is the
fair value of the property at the date of change
in use.

® HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Properties under development

Properties under development including the
properties developed for resale comprises
development cost of properties which are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified under
current assets when they are expected to be
realised in the Group's normal operating cycle
and comprise development costs of properties
and the costs paid to acquire land use rights
which are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. On completion, the properties
under development are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs
to completion.

Development cost of properties comprises
construction costs, borrowing costs and
professional fees incurred during the development
period.

Construction in progress

Costs directly attributable to the construction
of property, plant and equipment including
borrowing costs during the construction period
are capitalised as the costs of the assets, which
are classified as construction in progress. On
completion, the construction in progress is
transferred to property, plant and equipment
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
No depreciation is provided on construction in
progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net

assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination
is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units ("CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. Each unit or group
of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment
undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential
carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently

reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

(c)

Concession rights

The costs incurred for the construction
or upgrade work or the acquisition of the
toll road under the service concession
arrangements of the Group with relevant
local governments are accounted for an
intangible asset if the Group receives a
right to charge users of the toll road.

These expenditures are amortised on an
units-of-usage basis, making reference to
the proportion of actual traffic volume
achieved for a particular period over the
total projected traffic volume throughout
the periods within which the Group is
granted the rights to operate the toll
road. The total projected volume of the
respective concession right is reviewed
regularly with reference to both internal
and external sources of information and
appropriate adjustments are made should
there be a material change.

Land use rights acquired in conjunction
with the service concession arrangement
which the Group has no discretion or
latitude to deploy for other services other
than the use in the service concession are
treated as intangible assets.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired in a
business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Other
intangible assets have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment and amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of five
years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries, associated companies,
joint ventures and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets which are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Construction contracts

Contract costs are recognised as an expense
by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the balance sheet date. When
the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable. When the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably and it is probable that the contract will be
profitable, contract revenue is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the
stage of completion. When it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,
the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Construction contracts (continued)

FESTHEHME @)

2.13ZFEESH @)

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to
the extent that may have been agreed with the
customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.

The Group uses the “percentage of completion
method” to determine the appropriate amount
to recognise in a given period. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to contract
costs incurred up to the balance sheet date as
a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection
with future activity on a contract are excluded
from contract costs in determining the stage of
completion. They are presented as inventories,
prepayments or other assets, depending on their
nature.

The Group presents the net contract position for
each contract as an asset when the gross amount
due from customers for contract work for all
contracts in progress for which costs incurred
plus recognised profits (less recognised losses)
exceed progress billings. Progress billings not
yet paid by customers and retentions are included
within trade and other receivables.

The Group presents the net contract position
for each contract as a liability when the gross
amount due to customers for contract work for all
contracts in progress for which progress billings
exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits
(less recognised losses).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held
for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more
than twelve months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group's loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables”,
“cash and cash equivalents” and “restricted
cash” in the balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBERBE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.14 Financial assets (continued) 214 MEE (&)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose
of the investment within twelve months of
the balance sheet date.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in profit or
loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBERBE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.14 Financial assets (continued) 214 MEE (&)
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value [T ANEEEEERYEZ
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit SREE| BN A EEE

or loss” category are presented in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Changes
in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available for sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
profit or loss as other income or other and general
expenses.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss as part of other
income which the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBERBE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.14 Financial assets (continued) 2.14cmERE @)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

For the purposes of assessing the fair value of
unlisted securities, the Group established fair value
by using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference
to other instruments that are substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis and option
pricing models, making maximum use of market
inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
In the case of equity securities classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost is considered as an indicator that the
securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is
removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss on equity instruments are not reversed
through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

Derivative financial instrument

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value
at each balance sheet date. The change in the fair
value is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinguency in payments are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The amount of the provision is recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against other expenses in profit or
loss. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to other income in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan
to the extent that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

Borrowing costs (continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of
any qualifying asset are capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23

2.24

Financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss is financial liability held for trading. A financial
liability is classified in this category as designated
by the Group upon initial recognition.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss” category are presented in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associated
companies and joint ventures operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Current and deferred income tax

FESTHEHME @)

2.24 NEA R IEFE RS HE (@)

(continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies and joint ventures, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.25 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Defined contribution plans

The Group uses a mandatory provident
fund scheme (“MPF”) and employee
pension schemes established by municipal
government in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") for the eligible employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Defined contribution plans (continued)

The Group’s and the employees’
contributions to the MPF comply with
the related statutory requirements. The
Group has no further payments obligations
once the contributions have been paid.
The Group’s contributions to the MPF
are expensed as incurred and are not
reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave MPF prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available. The
assets of MPF are held separately from
those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The Group’s contribution to the
employee pension schemes in the PRC
is at a percentage in compliance with
the requirements of respective municipal
governments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the
entity recognises costs for a restructuring
that is within the scope of HKAS 37
and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more
than twelve months after the balance sheet
date are discounted to their present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (continued)
(d)  Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled,
share-based compensation plan in which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments of
the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options
granted, including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entitly’s share
price), excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period) and including the
impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees

to save).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (continued)

(d)

Share-based compensation (continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable.
At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to become
exercisable based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
and a corresponding adjustment to equity
over the remaining vesting period.

In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore
the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense
during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHBERHE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Provisions 2.26 % 1E
Provisions are recognised when the Group has EAEERCEACEMNM
a present legal or constructive obligation as EXRERNEZEXEEES

a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Where the Group expects a provision
to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in the same class
of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 ESTHHERME m
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.27 Revenue recognition 2.27 W EHERR

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods, properties and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown
net of business tax and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities as described below.
The amount of revenue is not considered to
be reliably measurable until all contingencies
relating to the sale have been resolved. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Revenues from infrastructure and
alternative energy are generated from
electricity supply and the toll road. They
are recognised based on the following:

(a) Revenue from alternative energy
is recognised based on power
dispatched during commercial
operation. Commercial operation
starts when obtaining a Power
Purchase Agreement, safety
certificate from the State Electricity
Regulatory Commission (“SERC") or
Provincial Grid Authority, and 240
hours commissioning. Revenue
attributable to the sales of electricity
generated during construction and
testing period is not included in
the electricity sales revenue, but is
offset against the cost of property,
plant and equipment.

(b) Revenue arising from toll road
is recognised when services are
rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Rental income from investment properties
is recognised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the
respective leases.

Revenue from individual construction
contracts is recognised under the
percentage of completion method.

Sales of food and beverages are
recognised in the income statement at the
point of sale to customer.

Revenue from sales of properties is
recognised when the risks and rewards
of the properties are passed to the
purchasers. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are included
under current liabilities.

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Property management fee income
is recognised when the services are
rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases

(a)

(b)

Finance leases (leasee)

Leases that substantially transfer to
the Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve
a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in liabilities. The finance charges
are charged to the income statement over
the lease periods so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor or are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.29

2.30

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s major
financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, amounts due from an associated
company and a joint venture, restricted cash,
cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial
instrument, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets,
trade and other payables, bank loans and loans
from non-controlling shareholders. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes.

It is the policy of the Group not to enter into
derivative transactions for speculative purposes.
The derivatives held are not for speculative
purpose and cannot be traded in the market.

The Board of Directors focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in the
Mainland China. Entities within
the Group are exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and
monetary assets and liabilities that
are denominated in a currency
that is not the entities’ functional
currency.

The Group currently does not
have any foreign currency
hedging activities. However,
the management of the Group
monitors the foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

If Renminbi had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the Hong
Kong dollars and US dollars as at
31 December 2014 with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s
profit before income tax would
have been HKS13.4 million (2013:
HKS12.6 million) higher/lower.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMKEBERE @
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEAEEE @&
(a)  Market risk (continued) (a) TEHERRE (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FE/E

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises REE 2 F=ER
from bank borrowings. Borrowings b R B R 17 8
issued at variable rates expose e BRIRITTH
the Group to cash flow interest HRERD - I%
rate risk due to fluctuation of the FENF R 2
prevailing market interest rate. The BREHAREE
Group’s income and operating cash AR RE
flows are substantially dependent FREE o s
of changes in market interest rates. FIREBEARE

REREBEK

& o
The Group does not use any 2N 55 (BN 5 R
derivative contracts to hedge its EAPTES L
exposure to interest rate risk. B ¥ 2 FI =
However, management will consider BBz - A E
hedging significant interest rate BEBREER
exposures should the need arise. & R E XA

As at 31 December 2014, if R-ZE—HEFE+
the interest rate had increased/ —A=+—8"
decreased 100 basis points with all SR 2= 3% hn Sk
other variables held constant, the AH1001E2, - ™
Group’s profit before income tax e EmRAE
would have decreased/increased SIS
by HK$19.7 million (2013: HK$17.9 & 2 FriS B AT &a
million). FRER A, 150
19,700,000/%
. (—_F—=
4 : 17,900,000
BIT) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)
(iii) ~ Price risk

The Group has minimal exposure to
price risk during the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2014.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in its
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables.

The carrying amount of restricted cash,
cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables, represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets.

To manage the credit risk associated
with restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents, most of the deposits are
mainly placed with certain state-owned
banks in the PRC which are high credit
quality financial institutions and banks with
high credit rankings in Hong Kong.

To manage the credit risk associated
with trade and other receivables, the
Group adopts risk control to assess
the credit quality of the customers and
debtors, taking into account their financial
positions and past experience. The Group
has monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)

For alternative energy business, the Group
is exposed to significant concentration
of credit risk in terms of electricity sales
as the Group’s sales of electricity were
made to state-owned provincial power grid
companies. The Group normally does not
require collateral from trade debtors. It
normally grants credit terms of 30 days
to these power grid companies. However,
part of the trade receivables due from
the power grid companies relate to
government subsidy which are subject
to government allocation of the tariff
surcharge for renewable energy. Based
on past experience and industry practice,
these tariff premiums are generally paid
in 6 to 12 months from the date of the
sales recognition. Ageing analysis of the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in
Note 28. Management makes periodic
collective assessment as well as individual
assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the

relevant debtors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

Other than alternative energy business,
there is no concentration of credit risk
with respect to trade receivables from third
party customers as the customer bases
are widely dispersed in different sectors
and industries.

In addition, the Group and the Company
monitor the exposure to credit risk in
respect of the financial assistance provided
to subsidiaries, associated companies and
joint ventures through exercising control
or significant influence or joint control
over their financial and operating policy
decisions and reviewing their financial
positions on a regular basis.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group
is unable to meet its current obligations
when they fall due. The Group measures
and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratios regarding
the liquidity structure of the overall
assets, liabilities, loans and commitments
of the Group. The Group also maintains
a conservative level of liquid assets to
ensure the availability of sufficient cash
flows to meet any unexpected and material
cash requirements in the course of ordinary
business.

During the year, the Group complied
with all externally imposed loan covenant
requirements to which it is subject to.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 UBERERERE @
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B¥REREEE @

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) HARBESEK (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s TRIMAEERR
and the Company’s contractual maturity NAlEMBEZEYD
for their financial liabilities. The amounts BFHAH - TREEZ
disclosed in the table have been drawn up REBIRERERFL
with reference to the undiscounted cash RABEBENGFZHZR
flows of the financial liabilities based on the HElS @B &2 kB
earliest date on which the Group and the B RBEE o
Company can be required to pay.

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
=3 -ERE ZEEE BENL a5
HKS Million ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Milion
BERT BERT BEAT BEET BERT
Group 34}
At 31 December 2014 R-B-ME+-A=t-H
Borrouings B3t 14226 9515 1,422.6 1,175.9 49726
Trade and other payables ERERREAMEN 1,392.4 - - - 1,392.4
(ther non-current payables EE RN 0.9 141 - 05 155
Financial guarantee for credit SRR EERERENBER
facilties granted (Note 38(b)) (Hz38(b)) 150.1 - - - 150.1
Financial guarantee for mortgage ~ HRETNEEFRLH
facilties granted to certain RIERERIEE
property buyers (Note 37(b)) IR (EE370) 307.6 - - - 307.6
At 31 December 2013 W=B-ZE+-A=t-A
Borrowings izt 6305 908.1 1,677.8 1,108.1 43245
Trade and other payables EREAREHERR 14224 = = - L4224
Other non-current payables Btk REER 09 09 141 05 16.4
Financial guarantee for credit SEREEREREHEER
facilties granted (Note 38(b)) (F5£3810) 165.0 - - - 165.0
Financial guaranteg for mortgage ~ HAETAZEFRLA
facilties granted to certain RARERIIBER
property buyers (Note 37(b)) (F5E3700)) 170.2 - - - 1702
Company K27
At 31 December 2014 R-E-mE+-A=1-A
Other payales Al 46 - - - 46
Financial guarantee for credit FEREEREREEER
facilties granted (Note 38(b) (HrzE38(0) 1,028.0 - - - 1,028.0
At 31 December 2013 W-E-=Et-A=t-A
(ther payables Bl ERE 39 R _ . 39
Financial guarantee for credit FEREEREREHBAR
facilties granted (Note 38(b)) (Mz£38(0)) 7464 - - - 746.4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, raise new debt financing,
issue new shares, share options and warrants or
conduct share buy-backs.

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its gearing ratio and cash flows
requirements, taking into account of its future
financial obligations and commitments for this
purpose. The Group defines gearing ratio as total
debt divided by total equity. Total debt is the
aggregate of current and non-current borrowings
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet and
total equity is also as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 UBERERERE @
(continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (continued) 3.2 EXEBEE @)
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2014 and N-ZE—NFEN_—_FET—=4%
2013 were as follows: —f—_ﬂ_‘i' AzBEEXR
=R -
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-pmE —T=F
HKS Million HKS Million
HEHBT BEBBT
Current borrowings BN 8 X 1,211.0 418.5
Non-current borrowings IETmIER 2,968.4 3,098.4
Total borrowings Rk 4,179.4 3,516.9
Total equity MR 15,096.2 15,349.1
Gearing ratio BEBEAR =
(total debt/total equity) (BfEesE e 27.7% 22.9%
The increase in the gearing ratio during 2014 AEBR-_ZT—NFz&E
resulted primarily from the new bank borrowings ﬁﬁth”x’i“ MEEREHIR
and loans from non-controlling shareholders (Note TERRIIEERBRREER
33). (WE33)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MKERERE @
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 A¥{EME

The table below analyses financial instruments TREBEEEHEATE

carried at fair value, by valuation method. The SR Z SRl T BEITON -

different levels have been defined as follows: TRFRISFEMT -

= Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active — A BERAEESA
markets for identical assets or liabilities BERERmSE Z2®RE
(Level 1). (REFE) (BLAR) °

F Inputs other than quoted prices included -  REIFFFAZFREMN
within level 1 that are observable for the ShE] B B (BNiE BB
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as %) sk (A& eE
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from BELEE) BREE
prices) (Level 2). HBEMBIRAEE

(5B28%) »

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not — N7 JE 3% 7] B 2R T i 8
based on observable market data (that is, % (B FEER R AT 152
unobservable inputs) (Level 3). HABH) 2EEK

BE®AEAB (F3
&) o
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREIINAKERR-_Z—T
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair F+-_H=+—HBEAFE
value at 31 December 2014. HEYLMEAENRARE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1% 25| F3 b
HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million  HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT

Assets BE

Available-for-sale financial assets At HES FEE - 7.2 19.6 26.8

Financial assets at fair value BRATEEERR

through profit or loss FIBE v &SRB E 0.2 - 14.0 14.2

Total assets BEAE 0.2 7.2 33.6 41.0

Liability =

Financial liabilities at fair value %A TEEBZE

through profit or loss FEE7SRBE - - 297.8 297.8

Total liability BEAE - - 297.8 297.8

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMEERRERE @
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 A¥EMEF @
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREINAEFR -_ZT—=
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair F+—_A=1+—HB%A¥E
value at 31 December 2013. HECERMEERARE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1H 28 F3R ]
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEATT BEBTT BEAT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE - 8.6 17.5 26.1
Financial assets at fair value BATEERER
through profit or loss FIEE 2 & REE 0.2 - 14.3 14.5
Total assets BEMAE 0.2 8.6 31.8 40.6
Liability =L
Financial liabilities at fair value — RALEEEZ*
through profit or loss FIEv S RERE - = 279.0 279.0
Total liability BEAE = - 279.0 279.0

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1. Instruments included in Level
1 comprise primarily equity investments classified
as trading securities under financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HHEEKRERE @

(continued)

3.3 A¥EMRF @

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

The valuation techniques and inputs used in the
fair value measurements within Level 2 and Level
3 are as follows:

AEEEBRMSEESRT
HZ R FEDRBRBEZEE
o BREGHEREMEH
B RA LR A KA E RS
EGETR - L EEET AR
BEMRABEMIZEUE ©
AE-BIAZAVERS
E X AR 2B E A &
R BRETAESHAS2E -

il — {8 3 2 8 = X 8 A BUR
I SRR AR A R 52 T 35 BUR AT
B AEITAESHAEI -

F2M R EBIR AT ETTEFRR
{0 A 2 1l B B i K 8 A (B 10
T

Valuation technique Significant inputs

fEE i PN PN ¢
Available-for-sale financial Quoted market prices for Observable quoted market
assets (Level 2) similar instruments prices
AHEESEE (F240) A T EMMISHRE AIER TS R(E
Derivative liability (Level 2) Binominal model Observable quoted market

price, risk-free interest rate
and volatility level

PTETABRE (F240) —IAAER AIERMiGHE - ERRF X
A
Available-for-sale financial Net asset valueMo® Not applicable
assets (Level 3)
AHEEeEE (F34R) & g NEA
Financial assets at fair value Net asset valugMote Not applicable
through profit or loss (Level 3)
BEATEEBERRIIERZ BEFE WD i

SEMEE (F38%)
Financial liabilities at fair value Discounted cash flow
through profit or loss (Level 3)

Discount rate and expected
recoverable amount of
underlying project

BAFEREERRIIKRZ FRBAERE BRI R R IRHMRR TR E B
TRBE (B3R RDEEE ¢

Note: The Group has determined that the reported Wit AREBRAEUNREEE
net asset value represents fair value at 31 FEARRNR-_Z—WF
December 2014. +ZA=Z+—HZA¥F

& -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HERRERE @
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 A¥EMEF @

Additional information about fair value
measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3):

EREAEEER NS A MRS
($38) 3 B AT EHED
E¥

Significant
unobservable inputs Range
EAEEBENT A RS gE
Financial liabilities at fair value Discount rate 10%
through profit or loss®ote) Ah37 =
BAFEEBRRIRZ Expected recoverable amount Not applicable
TRLE R WD of underlying project

TEHIMARE IR B &y R e B SR

Note: The valuations are performed and reported at
each of the Group's reporting dates to Group
management. The higher the discount rate, the
lower the fair value. The higher the expected
recoverable amount of underlying project, the
higher the fair value.

There were no changes in valuation techniques
during the year.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013, there were no significant transfers of
financial assets between Level 1, 2 and 3 fair
value hierarchy classifications.

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014

i H

MiaE: RAKE R HmEAHME
THELRAAREEE
BER FBRIAS -
A ERE - BHAH
HEMA K ERER

5 AFEES -

FR - HERMLEES -
AEENBRENBREMF

FEHERNBRE LR
ZH HERBARBHQF

BER-

HE_Z-—NFER-_ZT—=
F+_A=Z=+—HLFE"
AFEFEERAFL 2K
MW EeMEE RN ES
RNEEE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ARE M RRMEE (&)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BMKERERE @
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 DA EMEF @
The fair value of the following financial assets and NTeREERBECATF
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts: EHRHEEEERS
e Trade and other receivables o JEUTAR TR B A e IR
* Amount due from an associated company, net o [EU—FEIEEE A RIFUIRFEE
e Amount due from a joint venture o B —FEEARIRIE
e Cash and cash equivalents e BERIBEEEY
* Restricted cash o XRHIRE
e Trade and other payables o BRI EAMERNRK
e Borrowings o &
e Other non-current payables o HMIERENER K
The following table presents the changes in Level TREJEE-_ZT—EOFR
3 instruments for the years ended 31 December —E—=f+-_RA=+—H
2014 and 2013. IFFEZEIRTAEE -
Financial Financial
Available- assets at liabilities
for-sale fair value at fair value
financial  through profit through
assets or loss profit or loss Total

BAYEE EOYEE
THEE  BERNRz  RERIK

SREE SREE tREE ag
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEBAT BEBT BEET BEATL
At 1 January 2013 W-E-=%-f-H 17.7 13.9 (260.5) (228.9)
Disposal HE (0.8) - - (0.8)
Net unrealised loss recognised RERRRRLALR
in profit and loss BEFHE = - (11.3) (11.3)
Net gain/(loss) recognised REERERZ
in reserves it/ (B8) 548 0.6 04 (7.2) 6.2)
At 31 December 2013 RZB—=F
+-A=1+—H 17.5 14.3 (279.0) (247.2)
At 1 January 2014 R=F-m&—A—AH 17.5 14.3 (279.0) (247.2)
Net unrealised loss recognised REEFERZALE
in profit and loss BRFE - - (26.6) (26.6)
Net gain/lloss) recognised RREERERLZ
in reserves ki / (B8) 58 2.1 (0.3) 7.8 9.6
At 31 December 2014 RZE—F
+=A=+-H 19.6 14.0 (297.8) (264.2)

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Valuation of investment properties/
recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments

The fair value of each investment property, and
the recoverable amount of prepaid land lease
payments portfolio excluding the property
development projects achieved pre-sales
stage as at 31 December 2014 and 2013, are
individually determined at each balance sheet
date by an independent valuer based on a market
value assessment. Knight Frank was engaged
to carry out the independent valuation of the
Group's investment property and prepaid land
lease payments portfolio as at 31 December
2014 and 2013. This valuation was carried out
in accordance with the Valuation Standards on
Properties of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
which defines market value as “the estimated
amount for which a property should exchange
on the date of valuation between a willing buyer
and a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction
after proper marketing wherein the parties had
each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without
compulsion”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

Valuation of investment properties/
recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments (continued)

Knight Frank has derived the valuation of the
Group’s completed investment property portfolio
by capitalising the rental income derived
from existing tenancies with due provision
for reversionary income potential and where
appropriate, by reference to market comparable
transactions. The assumptions are based on
market conditions existing at the balance sheet
date.

For the prepaid land lease payments excluding
the property development projects achieved
pre-sales stage, management determined the
recoverable amount based on the valuation report
prepared by Knight Frank. Knight Frank has valued
the investment properties under development/
recoverable amount of prepaid land lease
payments on the basis that the properties will
be developed in accordance with the information
provided from management. It is assumed that
approvals for the development scheme will be
obtained without any onerous condition which
would affect the value of investment properties
under development/recoverable amount of prepaid
land lease payments. In arriving the opinion
of value, Knight Frank has made reference to
comparable transactions in the locality and has
also taken into account the construction costs that
will be expended to complete the development and
the quality of the completed development in the
development scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Valuation of investment properties/
recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments (continued)

Management has reviewed the Knight Frank
valuation and compared it with
assumptions, with reference to comparable
sales transaction data where such information
is available, and has concluded that the Knight
Frank valuation of the Group's investment property
portfolio and prepaid land lease payments is
reasonable.

its own

If the valuation of the investment properties had
been 10% higher or lower than the value stated
on the valuation report, the fair value adjustment
for the year arising from the Group's investment
properties would have been increased or
decreased by HKS804.4 million (2013: HKS677.1
million).

Provision for properties held for sales,
properties under development and
prepaid land lease payments

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of
properties held for sales, properties under
development and prepaid land lease payments
according to their estimated net recoverable
amount based on the realisability of these
properties, taking into account of costs to
completion based on past experience and net
sales value based on prevailing market conditions.
Provision is made when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be realised. The assessment requires the
use of judgement and estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

Estimated impairment of concession
right - toll road

The Group tests annually whether intangible assets
have suffered any impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy. The calculations use pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management.

The unit prices used for the analysis are
determined by management making reference
to the agreements approved by the government
authorities. The average growth rate used are
consistent with the forecasts expected in the
industry. The discount rates used are pre-tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.

The Group has performed impairment assessment
by using the discounted cash flow model with
the assumptions that traffic flow would increase
by 8.6% every year on average, the tariff rate
would increase by 7.5% every five years and
the discount rate is 9.8%. According to the
impairment assessment using value-in-use model,
the recoverable amount of Guilin Tollroad is higher
than the carrying value as at 31 December 2014.

If the discount rate used in the value-
in use calculation had been 10% higher than
management’s estimates at 31 December 2014
and 2013, there would be no further impairment
on the Group’s concession right (toll road).
Similarly, if the traffic flow of the toll road is
10% lower than the management’s estimates at
31 December 2014 and 2013, there would be
no further impairment on the Group’s concession
right (toll road).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

Estimated impairment of property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land
lease payments and interests in
associated companies

Plant and equipment are reviewed by management
for impairment losses whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount
is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use of the plant and equipment.
Management makes judgements on whether
such events or changes in circumstances have
occurred, and makes estimates in determining
the recoverable amount. In the situation where
the value in use of plant and equipment cannot be
assessed due to the uncertainties of the operation
model in the future, management has assessed
the respective recoverable amount solely based
on the fair value less costs to sell. Provision is
made when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recovered.

The Group tests whether property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease payments and
interests in associated companies engaged in the
alternative energy businesses (“Alternative Energy
Projects”) have suffered any impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable in
accordance with the accounting policy in Note
2.12. The Group reviews certain indicators of
potential impairment such as actual electricity
dispatched, tariff of electricity, market unit price
of Certified Emission Reduction (“CER”) and other
general market conditions.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

Estimated impairment of property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land
lease payments and interests in
associated companies (continued)

If an indication of impairment is identified, the need
for recognising an impairment loss is assessed by
comparing the carrying amount of the assets, to
the higher of (i) the fair value less cost to sell,
and (ii) the value-in-use on a project-by-project
basis. The fair value is either determined by
referring to recent transactions or by independent
valuers whenever appropriate. The value-in-use
of the assets represents estimated future cash
flows from the continuous use of the assets,
and requires complex assumptions and estimates
such as future electricity dispatched, tariff of
electricity, market unit price of CER and discount
rates. The discount rates used to discount the
estimated future cash flows are based on the
relevant industry sector risk premium and the
gearing ratio.

During the year, the Group has performed
impairment assessment on the Alternative Energy
Projects. The value-in-use calculation was based
on the key assumptions, including i) average
annual tariff increment at approximately 3%
(2013: 3%) based on management’'s expectation
on market development and general inflation, ii)
projection of volume of electricity dispatched
based on the operational feasibility reports and
historical performances, and iii) assuming the
contributions from CER is of negligible amount.
The pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash
flow projections are between 11.29% and 13.65%
(2013: 11.06% and 13.37%) per annum.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Estimated impairment of property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land
lease payments and interests in
associated companies (continued)

Based on the impairment assessment, the
recoverable amounts of subsidiaries operating
wind farms and interests in associated companies
are higher than their respective carrying amounts.

With all other variables held constant, if there
is an average annual tariff increment at 1.5%
throughout the operating period, the profit before
taxation would have been decreased by HK$36.2
million (2013: decreased by HKS$52.9 million).
Similarly, with all other variables held constant, if
the volume of electricity dispatched is 10% less
than management expectation, the profit before
taxation would have been decreased by HK$53.7
million (2013: decreased by HK$84.8 million).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in the
Mainland China. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determined is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for potential tax exposures
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will affect
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(f)

(g)

(h)

Fair value of financial assets/liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and
other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods
(including but not limited to discounted cash flow
analysis) and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date.

Determination of fair value of share-
based compensation

The Group uses the Binomial Model to determine
the fair value of share options issued during the
year. Under this model, the value of the share
options is subject to a number of assumptions
such as the risk-free interest rate, the expected
life of the options and historical volatility based
on annualised volatility of the closing price of
the share. Therefore the value may be subjective
and would change should any of the assumptions
change.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of receivables
and management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the credit worthiness and the past collection
history of each customer.

4
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(f)

(g)

(h)
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WIHNERMSEE 22 R’
TAQAFE  AEEFAE
Ee ASKEERHAEEES
BHE(BREARRAR
BeREDN) LEER
BREEERAZMHERE
SEH R -

B2 DA R £ 4 SR 2 2
F@

AEERA -—AAGEEEN
EEFACETEEEZR
FE - RIFUR - BRE
BEXZERKZE  WE
R A =R - 3 AR 18 8 4 1
A R R 3% B A U T 1B 8 IR
tEat & 2 B AR E o Fit
FRBEFRERIE 1Te
PEE I RREAMES -

RIRRBRE

REE 2 RERBEFHERRTY
RIE S UK AT W B2 E 2
At MARE DT AR EIRE
ZHAEME o FHEZF R W
R BRREERRIFLARE
HE - BREEPZEER
B WRACER ©

EBEE (2R) SRAT « —T UFER @



SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information disclosed in the annual report
has been prepared in a manner consistent with the
information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between segments.
In this regard, the Group is organised into the following
segments: Properties development (for sale or lease upon
completion of construction work), Property investment
and leasing, Infrastructure, Alternative energy and Other
operations.

The Group’s most senior executive management
assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on operating profit/(loss) after interest income
and expenses, taxation and share of profits/(losses)
of associated companies and joint ventures. Corporate
expenses mainly include the employee expenses of the
head office, interest income and expenses arising from
the holding companies and other administrative expenses
of the head office.

The Group’s segment assets exclude financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale
financial assets which are managed on a central basis.
These are part of the reconciliation to total balance sheet
assets. Corporate assets mainly include the cash at bank,
property, plant and equipment and other receivables
held by the head office. The assets of each reportable
segment comprise the inter-segment receivables.

Sales between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions. The revenue from external parties reported
to management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated income statement. Total segment
revenue also represents the Group’s turnover.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 oHES @

The segment information for the reportable segments HE_ZT—NUER_ZT—=F+=
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is A=1T—HBLEFEAEHRIBZD

as follows: HEBAT

Properties development
NERR

Shanghai Property Total
and investment Alternative Other reportable
Zhejiang  Shenyang Tianjin  Jiangmen  Shenzhen and leasing Infrastructure energy operations  segments
NERE S
LERIT b b4 it Rl RHEE BB BRER RfEg AuE

HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Millon  HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEET EBEET HBEBT BEET  EEET  BEER BEET EEET BERT  FARER

Year ended 31 December 2014 ~ BE=-F-mE

tZB=t-ALEE

Revenue from external customers RENRRE 2Hit 134 - 3190 256.3 47 1233 67.2 97.3 - 881.2
Inter-segment revenue PEEsE - - - - - 15 - - 154 169
Total revenue et 134 - 319.0 256.3 47 124.8 67.2 97.3 154 898.1
Operating proft/loss) g% /(58) 1229 (L) (074) 246 19 329 27 79 31 2775
Finance income BHIA 6.2 2.1 6.5 13 - 12 0.3 5.3 28 25.7
Finance costs BEKA - - (28.2) (0.1) - (8.4) (74.6) (37.]) (1.1)  (149.5)
Share of profits less losses of FEfRBE AR

associated companies HAlEEE - - - - - 41 - 613 - 65.4
Share of profits less losses of ElEAERT

joint ventures aAlREE (10.9) - - - - - - - - (10.9)
Profit/(loss) before income tax FRERARN/ (58) 418.2 (39.0  (229.]) 25.8 19 298 (41.6) 374 48 208.2
Income tax expense FEHE (109.2) - (6.6) (8.2) (2.2) (6.4) - (8.5 (245)  (165.6)
Profit/[loss) for the year REEER/ (BB) 3090 (390 (235.7) 176 (03) 234 (41.6) 89 (197 426
Depreciaton i L) .3 02 (03 - 02 03 L) 07 (66
Amortisaton B3 04) -y - Y (159 (05 (01  (388)
Fair value adjustments on RENE

investment properties AFEHRE 430.6 - - - - (79.1) - - - 3515
Provision for impairment losses RESERE - (17.0)  (206.4) - - - - - - (2234)

ERER (2R) ARAT « —TFEH @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ARE M RRMEE (&)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 2HER @
Properties development
NEER
Shanghai Property Total
and investment Alternative Other  reportable
Ihejiang ~ Shenyang Tienjn ~ Jiangmen ~ Shenzhen and leasing Infrastructure ~ energy operations ~ segments
NERE EES

BRI &5 b3 il Ml REE £ BREE EtEn  S9EE
HKS Milion  HKS Million ~ HKS Milion  HKS Millon  HKS Milion  HKS Millon ~ HKS Milion  HKS Millon HKS Milion  HKS Millon
BT BSEn AEAT BEAT ABEAT AEAT . BEAT ABEST AEAT BEAL

Year ended 31 December 2013  HZ-E-=%

TZAZ+-RLEE

Revenue from external customers — RESMREP 2 Mz 1179 - 758.2 267.7 - 103.9 49.2 1137 304 14410
Inter-segment revenue 2 HREE = - - - - 03 - - 158 161
Total revenue gt 1179 - 7582 267.7 - 104.2 492 1137 462 14571
Operating profit/{loss) BEEA /(58) 2.3 (29.8) 394 497 - 9338 241 340 (474) 1891
Finance income A 10.2 12 71 13 - 29 08 2.4 11 210
Finance costs BENA (4.0) (0.1) (0.1) (0.1) = (79 (776)  (42.0) 31 (1349
Share of profits less losses of ERBERR

associated companies EARER - - - - - 220 - 785 - 1005
Share of profits less losses of EHARAT

joint ventures BARER 7.9 - - - - - - = - 79
Profit/(loss) before income tax & RiATER / (B8) 1074 (28.7) 464 509 - 1108 (52.7) 729 (494) 2576
Income tax expense PR (1.7 - (41.7) (.8 - 48 - 84 (1260 (850
Profit/(loss) for the year REEERR/ (B8) 9%.7 (28.7) 47 451 - 106.0 (52.7) 64.5 (62.0) 1726
Depreciation g (1.0) (6.3) (85) (2.1) - 0.4 03 (584) (660 (836)
Amortisation B (04) = (213 - - (05) (11.5) (05) 01 (343
Fair value adjustments on HEVIES

investment properties NERR 17.0 - - - - (15.3) - - - 1.7
Provision for impairment losses HEEERE - - (16.1) - - - - - - (16.1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ARE M RRMEE (&)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 2HER @
Properties development
NERR

Shanghai Property Total

and investment Alternative Other reportable

Zhejiang  Shenyang Tianjin ~ Jiangmen  Shenzhen and leasing Infrastructure energy operations  segments

NERE S

ERRIT & X2 it el kg B2 EBRMER HtER oU4E

HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Millon  HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BBEn BEET FARET FEEET BEER  BEER BEET REET FEET HEAT

As at 31 December 2014 W-g-mF
t=A=t-H
Total assets BEES 84956 22724 35801 6558 2041 46469 11941 23545 85 234120
Total assets include: EELERE:
Interests in associated companies REENR 2 ER - - - - - 4737 - 749.6 - 1,233
Interests in joint ventures RABAT R 2,225.0 - - - - - - - - 22250
Totel ablties afeE 20094 15782 26311 3728 - 6625 16977 7916 499 97932
As at 31 December 2013 W-g-=%
+=f=+-8
Total assets HEEE 74019 20710 42085 6071 2115 48452 12502 24252 97 230503
Total assets include: EELERE:
Interests in associated companies REEAR 2 R - - - - - 501.2 - 824.4 - 1356
Interests in joint ventures RABRNTER 22188 - - - - - - - - 22188
Totel abltes afEuE 11622 12908 29734 3300 -8l 17218 7185 583 9161
A reconciliation of profit for the year of reportable AI2MRO 2 F N mFEAEEF
segments to profit for the year of the Group is provided Wig M B RRA T -
as follows:
2014 2013
—E—-NEF —E—=F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBTL
Profit for the year of reportable segments 7] 23R % [ 4 A3 7l 42.6 172.6
Unallocated amounts: ROMEEH ¢
Corporate expenses, net TERTFERE (50.2) (106.8)
Gain on disposal of an associated BRREHE
company, net of tax BN F) 2 W as 33.8 =
Gain on completion on liquidation TERMIBARBE Y
of subsidiaries — net WS F 58 16.7 2.8
Intra group elimination S BRI E B 6.4 8.9
Profit for the year of the Group 7R £ B 4 35 49.3 77.5

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total

assets as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

2014 2013
— —F=F
HKS Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBT
Total segment assets DEPEEBEE 23,412.0 23,050.3
Head office assets B EREE 863.3 746.9
Intra group elimination AR (1,792.8) (1,716.0)
Available-for-sale financial assets AIEEESREE 26.8 26.1
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEBEER
profit or loss SRz S RLE E 14.2 14.5
Total assets per consolidated mEBEEBER
balance sheet Fr5) & EfREE 22,523.5 22,121.8
Reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total AEHRHAEREERBHERNOT ¢
liabilities as follows:
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—
HK$ Million HKS Million
HEHBT BEET
Total segment liabilities DEPBELREE 9,793.2 9,116.1
Head office liabilities RPrEERBE 758.1 316.2
Intra group elimination &= B P 30 4 (3,124.0) (2,659.6)
Total liabilities per consolidated mEBEBER
balance sheet F3 & E@ s 7,427.3 6,772.7

Non-current assets other than available-for-sale financial
assets are mainly located in the Mainland China.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 TEER @)

Analysis of revenue by category: o EE D 2 WaE DT
2014 2013
—E—-F —E—=F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHEATR BB

Sales proceeds from properties HERFIEHEEME

held for sale FriS 588 593.3 1,143.8
Rental income from investment properties H&EWEHE WA 123.3 103.9
Alternative energy BREEIR 97.4 113%7.
Infrastructure HiE 67.2 49.2
Others Hih - 30.4
881.2 1,441.0

HE-_Z—MNF+-A=+—H1t
FE - KAPERBINRATE 2K
#= /881,200,000 £ (= &E — =
F :1,438,400,000/%% 7©) - & =
—E—NFE+-_A=+—HItHF
B WERBEMBEIINATFEZ
Wz (ZF— =% :2,600,000/%
JT) ©

Revenue from external customers in the Mainland China
for the year ended 31 December 2014 are HK$881.2
million (2013: HKS1,438.4 million) and there is no
revenue from external customers in other areas for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HKS2.6 million).

HE_Z—NUFE-_F—=F1+=
A=+—BLEFEE XBERBE—
IARBEEZNFBBNFRE Y
10% °

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there
is no revenue derived from a single external customer
exceeding 10% of total revenue.

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER {E}



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

OTHER INCOME 6 HftlA
2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=
HKS Million HKS Million
BEER BEAT
Property management fee income MEEEBIA 22.5 23.2
Income generated from properties REIEHEREZ
held for sale LEPAON 12.8 12.3
Gain on disposal of property, HEWZE - W REHE
plant and equipment — net ZWa — FEE 0.4 -
Gain on disposal of an associated HEHENR Y
company Was 36.9 =
Gain on completion of liquidation TERMTEBARSE Y
of subsidiaries — net et — F58 16.7 2.8
Write back of costs provision [B] 8 i AR 2 B S - 1.6
Net exchange gain 0 5 W a5 58 2.7 -
Profit on completed construction contract B T T4 4 25.6 -
Others H Al 2.7 11.8
120.3 51.7
7 PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 7 EERBEEERE
ON ASSETS
2014 2013
—E-NmEF —=—=F
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEBET BEET
Provision for impairment losses on BB E B
— properties under development (Note) —BREAWE (M) (206.5) (16.1)
— properties held for sale —{EHERG M (16.9) =
(223.4) (16.1)
Note: Certain of the properties under development were Wit BEFERERYER_ZFT—NF
classified as properties held for sale as at 31 December +=—A=+—HEDEAEH
2014. EREZYE -
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OPERATING PROFIT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

Operating profit is arrived at after (charging)/crediting MEREFE (k%) e T E
the following items: H :
2014 2013
—E-ng —E—=F
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEATT
Employee benefit expenses (Note 11) EEEBANEYS (F:E11) (113.2) (127.1)
Employee share option benefits, EEBERERT -
net (Note 11) F88 (fisE11) (1.2) (1.8)
Amortisation 5
— prepaid land lease payments — FEf i
(Note 17) MER (WeEL7) (23.1) (23.1)
— intangible assets (Note 19) —\EpEE (M1FE19) (16.0) (11.6)
Depreciation of property, plant and M - e KR
equipment (Note 18) e (H3E18) (68.8) (86.6)
Cost of inventories FEKA (2.4) (11.3)
Cost of properties sold BEEMERA (464.4) (894.5)
Direct operating expenses arising from AT ERERAE € WA
investment properties that generate ZIREYEEE
rental income ZHERERZ (3.7) (4.0)
Auditor's remuneration — audit services ZEMME — HERK (5.0) (5.9)
Operating lease payments RERERE (8.4) (13.5)
Net exchange gain/(loss) N/ (BE) 38 2.7 (17.6)
Fair value loss on financial assets and BAFEEBERRIIER
financial liabilities at fair value through CERMEERSHBARE
profit or loss — net NP EEE - B8 (18.8) (16.3)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWSE - W RF
plant and equipment — net ZWa /(E8) — F58 0.4 (1.2)

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

9 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 HBWARMERAEK
2014 2013
—E-ImE —T—=F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHEATR BEET
Interest expenses: FEMAX :
Bank loans wholly repayable HARAFRNE I
within 5 years BB ZIRITER (136.3) (86.4)
Bank loans not wholly repayable BARAFANEEL
within 5 years BEZRITER (94.6) (113.3)
Other loans wholly repayable HARNAFAEEL
within 5 years EiE s HthEX (0.9) (0.9)
Other loans not wholly repayable BARAFRNEEL
within 5 years BB HMER (8.4) (7.9)
(240.2) (208.5)
Less: capitalised in properties under B BEERMER
development and construction ERIRERNL
in progress =i 88.6 73.0
Finance costs BB A (151.6) (135.5)
Finance income BT A 48.8 36.7
Net finance costs BB A AR F R (102.8) (98.8)
Note: The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed was W : B2 —WF+_-_A=+—

between 4.86% to 7.38% (2013: 5.40% to 7.21%) per
annum during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

(a)

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 10 EERSHREEEME
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM=
The remuneration of every director and chief BFEERITBEZREEC
executive officer for the year ended 31 December T—mFE+-_A=+—81t
2014 is set out below: FENMEMT -
Employer's
Salary and contribution
other Discretionary to pension Share-based
Fees benefits honuses scheme Sub-total compensation (7) Total
HeR BAREHH
Name i3 ik EfifEA BERL  ZEXBR NGt RABET) ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tn TEn TEn Tn TEn TEn TEn
OE! Tjie Goan ESR - - - - - - -
OEI Kang, Eric* (1) &Hl* (1) 175.0 11,410.7 1,608.4 335 13,221.6 268.3 13,495.9
CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph (2) REF(2) 100.0 2,209.5 276.8 16.8 2,603.1 - 2,603.1
LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel (3) FEHR) 100.0 2,400.0 500.0 16.8 3,016.8 256.7 3,2135
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy (3)  ZER(Q3) 175.0 2,328.0 291.0 16.8 2,810.8 160.5 2,971.3
YEN Teresa e 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
WAN Ming Sun (4) FERILE) 6.0 - - - 6.0 - 6.0
FAN Yan Hok, Philip (5) SELEE) 2013 - - - 201.3 - 201.3
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico ERs 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
CHENG Yuk Wo g5 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior ~ 251i& 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
15173 18,348.2 2,676.2 839 22,625.6 685.5 233111
& chief executive officer * TN

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 10 EEREREEENE @
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EE=EME @
The remuneration of every director and chief BZEERITHBHEREE
executive officer for the year ended 31 December T—=F+=HA=+—H1L
2013 is set out below: FEMMSOT :
Employer's
Salary and contribution
other  Discretionary to pension Share-based
Fees benefits bonuses scheme Subtotal  compensation (7) Total
e Riketal
Name 5 k3 At MiEEL  ZEEER Nt ROHED g
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ThT THL TAT THT THL THL TAT
OEI Tjie Goan BER - - - - - - -
QEI Kang, Eric* (1) &l (1) 175.0 83318 1,300.6 30.0 9,837.4 238.3 10,075.7
CHANG Li Hsien, Lesfie (1) FiuE() 175.0 9,928.3 2,954.0 30.0 13,087.3 8343 13,921.6
CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph (2) ~ FREI5(2) 33 720.0 216 50 9599 - 959.9
CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick (6) EER6) 50.0 2,765.8 - 15 28233 (388.7) 24346
YEN Teresa Hak 1000 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
WAN Ming Sun (4) FHUE) 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
FAN Yan Hok, Philip (5) B0 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico ] 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
CHENG Yuk Wo gan 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior  Esli 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
15133 21,7459 4,456.2 125 21,7819 683.9 28471.8

*

appointed as chief executive officer with effect
from 1 January 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

Mr. CHANG LI Hsien, Leslie retired as chief
executive officer and executive director and Mr.
OEl Kang, Eric was appointed as chief executive
officer with effect from 1 January 2014.

Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph was appointed as
an executive director on 1 September 2013.

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel and Mr. WONG Jake
Leong, Sammy were appointed as executive
directors on 1 January 2014.

Mr. WAN Ming Sun resigned as a non-executive
director with effect from 23 January 2014.

Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip resigned as an
independent non-executive director with effect
from 1 December 2014.

Mr. CHUNG Wai Sum, Patrick retired with effect
from 1 July 2013.

The balance represented the recognised portion
of the estimated value of share options granted
to the directors under the share option schemes
of the Company and a subsidiary. The value of
these share options is measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions and, in accordance with
that policy, includes adjustments to reverse
amounts accrued in previous years where grants
of equity instruments are forfeited prior to
vesting.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013, Mr. OEI Tjie Goan voluntarily waived annual
director’s fee of HK$100,000

10 EEKEH

EEEME @

(a) EE=EME @
B -

1. E-Z—HWHF—HF—H
MRV B ERMTITH
BERBITES ME
Ml EZ T BITHE
ﬁ °

2. REFEER_-_T—=
FLA-—BEZERH
TEF -

3. TEMEEREERSE
ER-_ZTE—WF—AF—
HEZEXARNITES -

4. FRHUEEB -FT—N
F-—HA-t=BREE
FEMITES -

5. EBLEBEERE TN
F+ZH—BEEEIE
VIEHITES -

6. BEERLEB T —=
F+HA—BiRE -

7. HEHEREBEAQFMEH
BRARZERETEIRE
ERHERED RS
ZhEHEE - ZFHEAE
Z BETREAREE LR
IR B 2 G5t BERE
B MREZBEK @ B
B 7373 B 4 i PR
ATAERBBAIE 2
BEFERFMIEN 2
= o

HE-_ZT—NHFEER_ZT—=
¢+_ﬂ =+—HILEFE -
BELRAEEEREFEE
£#4£100,000 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include four
(2013: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining one (2013:
two) individuals during the year are as follows:

(b)

10 EENESREEEMES @

EEMEBRSAL

FR - AEBREZRESFA
ITBEEENE (T —=F:
ZR)EZ BEZHEE
NEXE5 2D R - F
NENB T —R(ZZ2—=
F:WmA) BAALTZHME
R

2014 2013

—E-NF —T—=F

HK$ Million HKS Million

BEATT ER-:w

Salary and other benefits Ha MEMET 2.2 4.3
Discretionary bonus B IS TEAT 0.3 0.9
Share-based compensation R E 0.1 0.3
2.6 5.5

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

MEeSEIMWT

No of individuals

AE
2014 2013
—E—F —F—=
Emoluments band (in HK dollar) AR (Bo)
HKS$2,500,001 — 2,500,001/% T —
HKS$3,000,000 3,000,000/& 7T 1 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

11 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 11 EEEARAX

2014 2013

—Z-mF —F-=F

HKS$ Million HKS Million

BEATR BEET

Wages, salaries and other benefits T8 #F&hHMEH (111.2) (124.5)

Employee share option benefits, net BEBRERF - 8 (1.2) (1.8)

Pension costs — defined contribution BIRE A — EREMER

plan (Note a) =t& (Kisxa) (2.1) (2.6)

Write back of unused annual leave REEAFREED 0.1 =

Charged to income statement, net BElmRINRIERE (114.4) (128.9)
Notes: BT

(a)

(b)

The Group uses the MPF scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is
a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to June 2014).
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately. The
Group's contribution to the employee pension schemes
in the PRC is at a percentage in compliance with the
requirements of respective municipal governments.

Contributions totalling HKS0.1 million (2013: HKSO.1
million) were payable under the MPF scheme at 31
December 2014.

(a)

AEERRBRBERGIMELTER
HEMEDIZ R E R —HBE
it 8 RBRBEEBERED
XEZEEMR - BiESF 3
ERBIYERAEE 2 EBEH
REREFHE - RIEBRES
A8l BEREESHARRK
& B B U A 25%m 5t &l 1F
HER : B A ZBERA
30,0008 L (=T — M XA
Z B 725,000/ 7T) & LR -
B RBEENERENES -
AEE A BESRKESFE
ZHERTIIEN A EEHRAR
EZBADLIEL -

RZE—HWHF+—_A=+—H
BERESHEESERE
100,000 T (= & — = F :
100,000 7T ) °

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER {ﬁ}



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

12

PEWRME (B)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group has no assessable profit for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013. Mainland China income tax
includes corporate income tax which has been provided
on the estimated assessable profits of subsidiaries
operating in the Mainland China at 25% (2013: 25%),
and which withholding tax has been provided at 10%
(2013: rates ranging from 5% to 10%) on income sourced
from the Mainland China by the Group’s non-tax resident
enterprises, including profit on direct or indirect equity
transfer transactions, interest and dividend income
received and receivable.

Mainland China land appreciation tax is provided at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 40% (2013:
rates ranging from 30% to 40%) on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds of sale of properties
less deductible expenditures (including costs of land use
rights and property development expenditures).

12 FEdi<

HRAEBRRBZE T —HFER_
E—=F+_A=+—HIFEL
ERRABGHN - RALERFEFF
MAEHL R - PEIAMAENR (8
REEMEN) RRETBE AL
LB AR 2 AEHERTUEN - 1R
25% (B — =4 :25%) 2 H X
tEh R MBMBREA R EIE
EREXEHBEARMMAERARL
10% (ZZ — =% : 5%=10%) <
MERELEE  SRERERIMEE
PEEER S 2mN - UM ER
MENMBEEWA -

o B P 3 - 2 SR (B A - 3 THE AR
NF30%ZE40% (ZFE—=F: N
F30%E40%) 2 BHET KB -
T THERN L EMERMBRIERE
AR (B L BRER A
MY EBERAS)

2014 2013
—E—OF —F—=
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
Current income tax BNHAFT1S A¢
Mainland China income tax R B A 4 BT 1S R (50.7) (61.5)
Mainland China land appreciation tax FR B A b+ 3R (E R (24.5) (60.5)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (75.2)  (122.0)
Deferred income tax (Note 35) FRIEPTEHE (MI7E35)
(Charged)/credited to the (#0BR), E
,,,,, income statement ~ H#\E=mx 0 (935 370
(168.7) (85.0)

Note:

The share of income tax expense of associated companies
amounting to HKS17.3 million (2013: HKS$18.8 million) and
the share of income tax credit of joint ventures amounting to
HKS2.4 million (2013: share of income tax expense of HK$26.3
million) are included in the Group’s share of profits less losses
of associated companies and share of profits less losses of joint
ventures respectively.

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

12 FIBEHXXH @\
KEBFREHMAERN, (BE) 2
FiIE - EEER B ANAE 15 B R 1 i
REFLERN(BE) 22w

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax of the Group's profit/(loss) before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits/

(losses) of the consolidated entities as follows:

I - EZFME

2014 2013
—2-IF —T—=F
HKS Million HKS Million
BEER BEBT
Profit/(loss) before income tax and share  Fr/S®iATHF| /(&i8)
of results of associated companies VA% FE (R Bt 8 2 | &%
and joint ventures SENRIFEE 163.5 (13.9)
Tax (charge)/credit calculated BEBBEBERAZ
at the domestic rates applicable to Ca ),/ B 18 iE
(profits)/losses in the EMBESE 2
respective countries BIE (k) K% (41.1) 3.5
Expenses not deductible for taxation LR
purposes & (100.7) (31.1)
Income not subject to tax BARRIA 30.7 21.8
Tax losses and temporary differences RIER 2 FHIEEE R
not recognised HTREERE (27.7) (45.0)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised 1 A 25 BT AR FERR
tax losses RIEEE - 34.6
Withholding tax TEFR (8.5) (9.0)
Mainland China land appreciation tax FR B P bt R E AR (24.5) (60.5)
Deferred tax reversed on undistributed R EAE 2 IELE
profits P8R B o 3.1 0.7
Tax expense HRIEZ (168.7) (85.0)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 25.1%

(2013: 25.2%).

— =% :25.2%) °

INAEF B AN K 325.1% (= F

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

13 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of HKS7.8 million (2013: HKS47.7 million),
including provision for impairment losses on investment
in subsidiaries and amounts due from subsidiaries
amounting to HKS17.3 million (2013: reversal of provision
for impairment losses amounting to HKS31.6 million).

14 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the

13 ARRAEaFAABEE

&
ADREEBE AR B R
7,800,000% T (= F — = & :

47,700,0007% 7T) M & X & 81 %
HEREE - BERHEARZKE
R JFE T PR 8 /xR SR IR (B e 18 B4
17,300,000/ T (= F — =% :
R (B /5 18 3 /s 7% [2131,600,00078
7T )4

14 5K (BE) BF
(a) EX

FREXRER) &AM
RBADBIESRE ARE
(BB, aFRFANE BT
BB G E -

year.
2014 2013
—Z2-mF —F-=fF
(Loss)/profit attributable to RARERFEEA
equity holders of the Company FEfE (E518), & F
(HKS Million) (B8BT) (87.2) 72.8
Weighted average number of ordinary =277 @AY 2
shares in issue (Million) InEFEHE (58) 11,308.5 11,241.9
Basic (loss)/earnings per share FRRER (F8),/
(HK cents per share) AT (FRBI) (0.8) 0.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

14

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(continued)

(b)

Diluted

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares including the
share options. A calculation is made in order to
determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market share price of the Company’s
shares during the year) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number
of shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the share options.

14 S (E5E)ZF @)

(b)

e

s (B1R), BN TE
BB RTTE A I
T8 - RF A EE
EEBER (BREERE 15
EEREmAE - BHEE
THARIE = R AT 158 3 P 4 P B
RERZEKEEEL B
NEEREIARFE (BE
BEARRRR 2 FHT
BIRE) W2 A -
EXEHEZRMNEB TIRR
RBBERETEMD HTLZ
B BB FLLER -

2014 2013
—E-NOF —E-=F
(Loss)/profit attributable to RARERFEEA
equity holders of the Company FEfE (E518), & F
(HKS Million) (BE#T) (87.2) 72.8
Effect of assumed conversion of 2% iR mH
convertible preference shares and M AR BT
convertible notes issued by AR AR (B SR
subsidiaries (HKS Million) KAl
ZEE (BEBT) (16.0) (1.7)
(103.2) 71.1
Weighted average number of STESIREE
ordinary shares for calculation (B18) &Flz
of diluted (loss)/earnings TR A N E
per share (Million) IHg (B&) 11,308.5 11,241.9
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SEE (B8),/
(HK cents per share) EF (FRB) (0.9) 0.6

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

14 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(continued)

(b) Diluted (continued)

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
December 2014 did not assume the exercise
of the share options and bonus warrants of the
Company and the share options, convertible notes
and subscription rights for convertible preference
shares of subsidiaries outstanding during the year
since the exercise would have an anti-dilutive
effect.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2013 did not assume the exercise of
the share options of the Company and the share
options, convertible notes and subscription rights
for convertible preference shares of subsidiaries
outstanding during the year since the exercise
would have an anti-dilutive effect.

15 DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2014.

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 REY=
Group
REH
2014 2013
—ZT-mF —F=F
HKS Million HKS Million
BEER BEAT

At 1 January R—HA—H 6,771.1 6,182.1

Currency translation differences PEHIRE =58 (152.7) 174.5

Additions = 1,039.9 373.8

Finance lease payments capitalised BEMREREAR - 28.2

Transfer from prepaid land lease payments & 58+ S 29.1 =

Transfer to prepaid land lease payments EHEFEN T HEER - (11.8)

Transfer from property, plant and equipment @82 - #22 & B 5.2 25.4

Transfer to property, plant and equipment B ZE %3 - #e2 M RE - (2.8)

Fair value adjustments, net NFEFHEFEE 351.5 1.7

At 31 December Rt+t=-—A=+—H 8,044.1 6,771.1

Notes: B s -

(a) At 31 December 2014, investment properties in Mainland (a) RZZTE—WmWF+ = A=
China of HK$6,861.4 million (2013: HK$5,535.1 million) +— B 7 Wi B '
were pledged as securities for the Group’s borrowings 6,861,400,000 T (=& —=
(Note 33). 4 :5,535,100,0007% 7T) < #%

BWE CHERASHEMER
R (PFE33) -

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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16

PEWRME (B)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16 REWZE @

Notes: (continued) BisE : (&)

(b) The Group’s interests in investment properties at their (b) AEBREEYM X 2 ERKRE
carrying values and the lease terms are analysed as FREEREBESTOT
follows:

2014 2013

—E-mF ==
HKS Million HKS Million
BEABT BEATT

In Mainland China, held on: RPEAMREE

Leases of between 10 to 50 years NFI0ES0E S 7,746.0 6,397.7
Leases less than 10 years PRIOFEZHE 298.1 373.4
8,044.1 6,771.1

(c) Fair value hierarchy (c) NEEER
An independent valuation of the Group’s investment REBEREMENBLMHEL
properties was performed by the valuer, Knight Frank EREEMBEHEIT UEE
to determine the fair value of the investment properties REMER=-_Z—NOFR_-F
as at 31 December 2014 and 2013. The following table —=F+ZA=t—RHz2r¥
analyses the investment properties carried at fair value B TRERKAERNEZLHR
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair B ABE (F34%) (ERAFER
value measurements. %ZT§@$@§H,@\EZ&L?§%¥

HEITDHT ©
At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
R=-ZT—F RZZE—=%F
t=A=t+-8 +=ZA=+—AH
HK$ Million HKS Million
HEET EEBT
Investment properties: "EYE -
— Commercial properties under — R EEHNEREF
development in Shanghai EEME 5,622.2 4,249.8
— Commercial properties in Nanxun, —REE - dbm R
Beijing, Shenzhen and Tianjin RREEEYZE 2,421.9 2,521.3
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and AREBHBEENEREE L
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date BEREENBELIBEEE L

of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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P WRME (&)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2014 and 2013 has been determined
on the basis of valuations carried out by an independent
qualified valuer not related to the Group, who holds a
recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the locations and segments of
the investment properties valued. The Group employed
Knight Frank to value its investment properties. For
all investment properties, their current use equates
to the highest and best use. Discussion of valuation
processes and results are held between the Group’s
senior management and valuers at least once every
six months, in line with the Group’s interim and annual
reporting dates. At each reporting date the Group’s
senior management:

- verifies all major data inputs to the independent
valuation report;

- assess property valuations movements when
compared to the prior period valuation report;

- holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are also analysed at each
reporting date by the Group’s senior management.

16

BREWZE @)
AEBZEERF

REERATEFEEREDE -
REER-_ZE—NER=_T—=F
+—A=+T—BZBREMEZRF
BENRENEEVERE S BUE
BERGHEMETHHEMSL %
HEMBFEEARITEXER - I
¥ AT BRI & 1) 55 /) 1D 6 A0 R 15
BB - AEBRERTHH
REMEETHE - RABEREY
¥ HEAWMEASERESSNE&
TR - R ASEMFR NS
EREAE  AEBrSRERERE
HiEEMELCENEARE— R
FAmEEREMEEER - RE®
HEH - AEBCSREEE

- REUBYGERSHFAE
BEXFEBA

S 1 E L
ERELE TOED

— BBV HERETR o

REBZSRERETSESRE
BEIDHTEIRAFEZEH -

EERE (BR) ARAT « T MEER @
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PEWRME (B)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs

Fair values of completed commercial properties in
Nanxun, Beijing, Shenzhen and Tianjin are generally
derived from using the income capitalisation method. This
valuation method is based on the capitalisation of the net
income and reversionary income potential by adopting
appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived from
analysis of sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation
of prevailing investor requirements or expectations. The
prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
been referenced to recent lettings, within the subject
properties and other comparable properties.

Fair values of commercial properties under development
in Shanghai are derived from using the residual method.
This valuation method is essentially a means of valuing
the project by reference to its development potential
by deducting future development costs together with
developer’s profit and risk from the estimated capital
value of the proposed development assuming completed
as at the date of valuation.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation techniques (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (continued)

16 REWZE @)
CRERSEIRE )

RABAEZBENGABBET

WATFENE (8

Range of
unobservable Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable inputs (probability- unobservable
Description technique(s) inputs weighted average) inputs to fair value
BLEERAUEEE BLEERAYER
AP fhER BLRZGA\UE (Bi=mET5E) AYENEE
Commercial properties Residual method Market unit rate RMB26,700 (2013: RMB26,700) The higher the market
under development square meter for retail unit rate,
in Shanghai portion, and RMB60,700 the higher the
(2013: RMB60,700) square fair value
meter for office portion
and RMB250,000
(2013: RMB250,000)
per unit for carparks
REBZRRTEENE  #EE miEEfEE TENHGTARARE26,7007T MEEMEEDS
(ZF—=%: AR%26,7007) ALERR
RREA GEAARARE60,7007T
(ZT—=%: AR%60,7007)
REAEEARE250,0007
(Z2—=%F: AR%250,0007)

Interest rate 6.00% (2013: 6.15%) The higher the interest
rate, the lower the
fair value

i|= 6.00% (ZZ—=F : 6.15%) M=  AFEAR

Estimated costs RMB1,649.0 million (2013: The higher the estimated

to completion RMB1,844.0 million) costs, the lower
the fair value

FRR TR AK®1,649,000,000 (Z2—=%F: BHAMARS

AR#1,844,000,0007T) AYEERE
Estimated profit 8.00% (2013: 8.00%) The higher the profit
margin required margin, the lower
of the development the fair value

BRATCEGAEE  8.00% (Z2—=% : 8.00%) MEERR -

AEERE
Commercial properties Income capitalisation ~ Capitalisation rate 4.85% - 6.75% The higher the

in Nanxun, Beijing,
Shenzhen and Tianjin

method

RE3 AR FIRKE KRABKE

A3

LUN(d

Average market
rental (square
meter per day)

FmEHe
(BAZFAX)

(2013: 4.80% - 6.50%)

capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair value

4.85% - 6.75% BRI ERR
(ZZ—=%F: 4.80%—6.50%) AEERE

RMB0.9 - RMB8.3 The higher the daily rental
(2013: RMB2.2 - RMB8.8) value, the higher the
per square meter per day fair value

FRFFARARE0ILE GHEEEERS
ARESITL (Z5—=F: ALERS

ARB22TEAR%S.8T)
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17 PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17 BALHBEER
The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land use rights KEERHEEL Rt HERES
representing prepaid operating lease payments and their HEREEN TR ER  HEESE
net carrying values is analysed as follows: EafaT :
Group
PN |
2014 2014 2013 2013
“Z-mF —E-NE —E-—=F =T-=fF
HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEBAT L BEAT BEAT
At 1 January ®—A—H 2,601.6 3,214.4
Currency translation differences  [EH & =% (57.6) 89.7
Additions NE 110.8 23.5
Transfer to properties BHEEHE
held for sale BigzhE (377.4) (670.7)
Transfer to investment properties #EH =% EME (29.1) =
Transfer to properties under BHEERRYE
development (499.9) -
Transfer from investment BREA
properties REME - 11.8
Transfer from construction L3
in progress BETR 4.1 -
Disposals HE - (0.6)
Gain on revaluation ELnyen: 16.7 -
Amortisation i
- Capitalised in properties - BRBEERYE
under development BAL (25.3) (43.4)
— Charged to income - ERlEE
statement (Note 8) e (KfzE8) (23.1) (48.4) (23.1) (66.5)
At 31 December ®“+=-A=+—H 1,720.8 2,601.6
In Mainland China, held on: REBENEE
Leases of over 50 years HiBS0FE  HE 1,288.8 1,339.6
Leases of between NF10E505F
10 to 50 years ZHE 432.0 1,262.0
1,720.8 2,601.6
Certain bank borrowings are secured by the Group’s AEERMEET79,900,000% T (=
prepaid land lease payments with carrying values of =T — =4 :735,500,000/& ) 2
HKS79.9 million (2013: HK$735.5 million) (Note 33). BN LA SRS ERARGE T
|ITER (FIFE33) ©
i) HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18 #% - #38RR1E
Group
F5HE
Electric
utility QOther
Construction plant and plant and Land and
in progress  equipment  equipment buildings Total
E2EHR Hfh
FRIR R KBEREE THRET k]
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million ~ HKS Million
BEAT ARBT BEAL AEBAT  BEAL
At 1 January 2013 R=Z-=§-5-A
Cost KA 69.3 1,239.6 315.6 281.3 1,905.8
Accumulated depreciation and ZHIER
impairment BB - (318.8) (272.6) (136.5) (727.9)
Net book amount REFE 69.3 920.8 43.0 144.8 1,177.9
Year ended BE-E-=F
31 December 2013 TZA=T-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENRAZE 69.3 920.8 43.0 1448 1,177.9
Currency translation differences ERHEZER 4.7 24.7 0.8 1.8 32.0
Additions hE 182.2 0.3 3.1 - 185.6
Transfer from investment properties ~ EEERENE = - - 2.8 28
Transfer to investment properties EHERENE - - - (25.4) (25.4)
Disposals il - - (1.9 (8.0) 9.9
Transfer from/(to) ) /(&) (5.3) 5.3 - - -
Depreciation & - (56.8) (24.4) (5.4) (86.6)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 250.9 894.3 20.6 110.6 1,276.4
At 31 December 2013 R=E-=%+-A=t-H
Cost KA 250.9 1,280.2 106.3 1273 1,764.7
Accumulated depreciation and ZHIER
impairment B - (385.9) (85.7) (16.7) (488.3)
Net book amount REFE 250.9 894.3 20.6 110.6 1,276.4

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

18 I3 - HBRFHE @)

Group
r5E
Electric
utility Other
Construction plant and plant and Land and
in progress  equipment  equipment buildings Total
ERK Hitr
EEIR R BBREE  LHRET B
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT HBET BBAT BEAT
Year ended HZ-E-mE
31 December 2014 TZA=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNEAFE 250.9 894.3 20.6 110.6 1,276.4
Currency translation differences ~ ERHEEE (3.9) (23.8) (0.3) (0.6) (28.6)
Additions NE 112.2 0.1 1.3 - 113.6
Transfer to prepaid land EHERN
lease payments THHER (4.1) - - - (4.1)
Transfer to investment properties & F#%&EH% - - - (5.2) (5.2)
Transfer from/to) #)\/(&1) (354.6) 354.6 - - -
Depreciation & - (56.6) (9.4) (2.8) (68.8)
Closing net book amount FREMFAE 0.5 1,168.6 12.2 102.0 1,283.3
At 31 December 2014 R-B-ME+=A=+-H
Cost XA 0.5 1,603.7 96.7 120.4 1,821.3
Accumulated depreciation ZHTER
and impairment HE - (435.1) (84.5) (18.4) (538.0)
Net book amount REFE 0.5 1,168.6 12.2 102.0 1,283.3
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ARE M RRMEE (&)

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18 #¥1¥ - #2E R&HE @)

(continued)

Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the AREBEBRMEEL246,700,000% 7T
Group's properties, plant and equipment with carrying —F — =4 :1,224,800,000/%
values of HK$1,246.7 million (2013: HKS1,224.8 million) TT) ZETHE - #HERREEK
(Note 33). ARG E TRITER (HF:E33) ©
The Group’s interests in land and buildings at their AEENIZRAEEY R i R 1E
carrying values and the lease terms are analysed as FiEmA KRBT
follows:
2014 2013
—E2-NF —F—=
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBTL
In Hong Kong, held on: REBRE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NFI0E50F 2 E 78.0 80.1
In Mainland China, held on: RARBERHFE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NFI0E50F 2 FHE 24.0 30.5
102.0 110.6
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e MR R (F)

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 BEEE
Group
PN |
Concession Other
rights - intangible
Goodwill toll road assets Total
YRFRE -
[k KEAKR HtBFEE ok

HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million ~ HKS Million
BEARL BERL BEEL BEAL

At 1 January 2013 R=Z-=f-H—-H
Cost A 409.5 1,724.5 0.8 2,134.8
Accumulated amortisation ZEtEER

and impairment RE] (409.5) (520.4) (0.3) (930.2)
Net book amount REHE - 1,204.1 0.5 1,204.6
Year ended BE-Z-=F%

31 December 2013 +ZA=1+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount ERERE - 1,204.1 0.5 1,204.6
Currency translation differences B & =% - 33.8 - 33.8
Amortisation (Note 8) B (ME8) - (11.5) (0.1) (11.6)
Closing net book amount EREEEFE - 1,226.4 0.4 1,226.8
At 31 December 2013 RZB-—=&

T=H=S—H

Cost B A 409.5 1,773.2 0.8 2,183.5
Accumulated amortisation REEER

and impairment BB (409.5) (546.8) (0.4) (956.7)
Net book amount REFE - 1,226.4 0.4 1,226.8
Year ended BZ-_Z-—DmF

31 December 2014 +ZA=t+—-HILEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE - 1,226.4 0.4 1,226.8
Currency translation differences [ & =% - (27.1) - (27.1)
Amortisation (Note 8) B (H3E8) - (15.9) (0.1) (16.0)
Closing net book amount FREMFE - 1,183.4 0.3 1,183.7
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-MF

r—H=1-—H

Cost N 409.5 1,733.8 0.8 2,144.1
Accumulated amortisation ZEHEHER

and impairment VRE] (409.5) (550.4) (0.5) (960.4)
Net book amount EEFE - 1,183.4 0.3 1,183.7
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e MR ME (8)

20 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20 Rz

Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-lNEF —T—=%
HKS Million HKS Million
HEBT BEET
Properties under development comprise: ERPYESE
Construction costs and FREEA AR K
capitalised expenditure B X 1,636.3 1,635.8
Amortisation of prepaid land TEfT L i
lease payments THE Y 563.2 107.7
2,199.5 1,743.5
Less: Current portion B OmEE D (1,554.7) -
644.8 1,743.5
The properties under development are all located in the BRPMEDEBLAAFE A o
Mainland China.
Properties under development of HK$1,554.7 million 2% & B ) %1,554,700,000% 7T
(2013: Nil) are expected to be completed and available TE—=F ) BHRARKT+
for sale within next twelve months. At 31 December ZEAANTERK - BREHEE - RN
2014, certain bank borrowings are secured by the Z—NF+-_A=+—H8 ' x5E
Group’s properties under development with carrying BR® E1,433,200,0008 ¢ (= &
values of HK$1,433.2 million (2013: HK$1,097.1 million) — =% :1,097,100,000/ &) 2
(Note 33). BRAYEDERUIRGSE TR

&k (FEE33) o
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e

21

PEWRME (B)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

21 REBLARZREREWR

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES B B A B 7R IE
2014 2013
—F-HNF —F=F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BBET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LAk D « AR 227.6 232.7
Provision for impairment losses VeI =t (63.7) (62.9)
T 163.9 B, 169.8
Amounts due from subsidiaries LR EENGI /S 10,109.5 10,219.3
Provision for impairment losses BB (376.6) (361.5)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 97329 = 98578
9,896.8 10,027.6

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free, and repayable within the next twelve months. Their
carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The
balances are mainly denominated in Renminbi.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 236 to 245.

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December
2014 is HKS2,391.8 (2013: HKS2,312.4 million), of
which HKS800.3 million (2013: HKS$794.3 million) is
for China Renewable Energy Investment Limited and
HKS1,670.2 million (2013: HKS1,577.9 million) is
attributed to Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate Development
Company Limited. The profit allocated to non-controlling
interests of China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
is HK$29.7 million (2013: HKS11.8 million) and Shanghai
Guangtian Real Estate Development Company Limited is
HKS128.1 million (2013: HKS0.5 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The ownership interests held
by non-controlling interests of China Renewable Energy
Investment Limited and Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate
Development Company Limited are 45.87% and 40% as
at 31 December 2014 and 2013. The non-controlling
interests in respect of these subsidiary companies are
material to the Group.

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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MR+ — @A REE - HEREE
BENFERS - BHREBUAR
BEtE -

TEMBRARZFHBRNF236E
2455 -

ERFERES

R-FE—NE+-_A=+—RH23#
22 A% HE 25 48 %8 52,391,800,00058
T (ZZF — =4 :2,312,400,000
A t) 0 HEA800,300,0007% It (=
T — = : 794,300,000/ JT)
AEPBRBEERREER AR
1,670,200,000/& C (=E—=4 :
1,577,900,000% 7t) kK B8 - /8 &
HEHWERZEERAR HE-ZT
—NE+—_A=+—HIFEE 5
EFHBIBERERIEEERAARL
FEEREHEREER AR ZIE
12 % 2= 95 71 9 B1) 529,700,000
B (ZZ—=4:11,800,000%
7t) %128,100,000& ¢ (Z&—=
£ : 500,000/87C) - R—ZT—UF
KZF—=F+=-A=+—H " H
BEERREEEGRARIN EEE
HEMERZEAR QA JEEMRERE
BEZEAEEZD B 545.87% %
40% - BRIZ SN B A A 2 IEFER%
BEEHAERMEBERX -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

21

P WRME (&)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 21 RAKMBARZEREREW
AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES Bt /8 X B FRIE ()
(continued)
Material non-controlling interests (continued) BEAREEZERER )
Set out below are the summarised financial information TXHINEBEHAEEMSBEEAXN
(before inter-company eliminations) for each subsidiary ZIERESZMBARISERA
that has non-controlling interests that are material to AIFEEHEAZMBERRE -
the Group.
Summarised income statement for the year ended BEt+t-A=+t—HLEEZEH
31 December REE
Shanghai Guangtian
China Renewable Energy Real Estate Development
Investment Limited Company Limited
FEBELERFRERRAT TEEAERERRARAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=F —E2-mF 2=
HKS Million HKS Million ~ HKS Million HKS Million
BEAT BEAT BE#ET BEAT
Revenue g 97.3 113.7 - -
Profit for the year KE LR 13.0 27.6 320.3 1.2
Total comprehensive 20 (BR)/ WA
(loss)/income ks (32.5) 70.7 230.6 109.4

Dividends to non-controlling NE 32
interests BRRE

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @
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21

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Material non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December

S

22 RE R W

AIFRIE (@)

21 RKE
M

BERFERES &)

RtTt-A=+—HZEEEEX
BE
Shanghai Guangtian

Real Estate Development
Company Limited

China Renewable Energy
Investment Limited

HEBERRREERAH TEEREHERREERA

2014 2013 2014 2013

~¥-mE  ZF-=Ff —®2-mF —F-=F

HKS Million HKS Million ~ HKS Million HKS Million

BEBT BEATL BEBATL BEAT

Non-current assets ERBEE 2,188.5 2,324.5 5,716.0 4,405.8
Current assets REEE 388.4 371.3 351.8 585.1
Total assets BEESE 2,576.9 2,701.8 6,067.8 4,990.9
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 624.0 602.2 1,473.0 701.0
Current liabilities MENAE 194.0 308.2 420.2 345.8
Total liabilities aEeE 818.0 910.4 1,893.2 1,046.8

Summarised cash flows for the year ended

31 December

BET-A=T-HLFEZRE
REWE

Shanghai Guangtian

China Renewable Energy Real Estate Development

Investment Limited Company Limited
REBEERREERAR FEEAEHERRERAR
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-QmF —2-=F —E-MF —E-=F%
HKS Million HKS Million ~ HKS Million HKS Million
BEAT BEEAT BEATL BEET
Net cash generated MEET
from operating activities PSR e %58 66.2 109.1 14.7 247.8
Net cash generated from/ REEHFRE,/
(used in) investing activities (FR) Be 8 335 (45.0) (918.1) (507.2)
Net cash (used in)/generated BEEE (FA)/
from financing activities S e 558 (88.3) (48.5) 915.3 (322.6)
Net increase/(decrease) in ReRBSEEN
cash and cash equivalents 2/ (5d) B8 11.4 15.6 11.9 (582.0)
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e

22

P WRME (&)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED

22 REBERTR RS

COMPANIES

2014 2013
—E-NEF —E—=4
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBRL BEET
Group’s share of net assets I E R 1,084.0 11863

Amount due from an associated JRE iy — P B A
company, net RIEFEE 139.3 139.3
1,223.3 1,325.6

Amount due from an associated company is unsecured,
interest free and not repayable within the next twelve
months. The balance is denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The following financial information, after making
adjustments to conform to the Group’s significant
accounting policies, represents the Group’s aggregate
share of revenue and results of associated companies,
all of which are unlisted, and is summarised as below:

FE UL — T HgE = 2 A SRR |
REEBEARART —_EARE
B HRRBMABTHEE -

THHBEN (RNEAKEEX
SABERMARR) RRAEEA
HEEBERR (2M/IFLHE
%) 2WsmBRERAmT

2014 2013

= Lk —F=F

HKS Million HKS Million

BHEBTT BEETT

Revenue Wzs 271.4 325.9
Profit before income tax PS5 A& A 82.7 119.3
Income tax expense R i (17.3) (18.8)
Profit for the year REF[F i F 65.4 100.5

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @
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22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED

COMPANIES (continued)

Material associated companies

Hong Kong Construction SMC Development Limited,
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company Limited
and CECIC HKC Wind Power Company Limited are the
associated companies that are material to the Group.

Details of principal associated companies are set out on
page 246.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for the material associated companies. The information
reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements
of the associated companies adjusted for differences in
accounting policies between the Group and the associated
companies.

Summarised income statement for the year ended

22 MNEBENT 2R @)

ERBELQT

EERRBERRARAF - ¢%
s (Hm) BNEEARA
R o A RB RS (Rt
B2 A A B = B A 2 B
B .
CYNOEETE

TEH &N 5246

=

TXEINEAEERRZHBEER
HE - AREFRRER 2 QA8
MBHmERAZIN AR - LEHRA
SEEBEARZHASIHRRNE
EEHFE -

BE+-A=t—-HLFEZE#

31 December ®EE
Hong Kong CECIC HKC CECIC HKC
Construction SMC (Gansu) Wind Power Wind Power
Development Limited Company Limited Company Limited Total
ERERER AR (HE) B MERERRNEE
BRERAA ERRAH (&) BRAR #g
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 213 2014 2013
ZF-mE ZF-=F CF-ME -F-F C%-ME -3-SF ZEF-ME CT-=F
HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Million  HKS Millon ~ HKS Million  HKS Milion
BEET BEET BEMn  PEEn  ABMn  AERT  AERn  AEER
Revenue e 108.3 106.6 198.6 240.2 246.6 2934 553.5 640.2
Profit for the year TEERT 10.2 5.0 46.9 695 86.3 119.6 1434 2441
Other comprehensive (oss)/income Hﬁﬂ%@ )/ WA (26.9) 392.1 (17.9) 217 (18.2) 23 (63.0) 436.1
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EE)/ A gE (16.7) 471 29.0 91.2 68.1 141.9 80.4 680.2
Dividends from the associated BENFIRE
companies ke 2.7 3.1 24.1 183 429 60.5 81.7 1139
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22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED

COMPANIES (continued)

Material associated companies (continued)

Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December

22 MNEBENT 2R @)

BEARBE QT @)
R+T-RA=+—HZEEEEBR

BE
Hong Kong CECIC HKC CECIC HKC
Construction SMC (Gansu) Wind Power Wind Power
Development Limited Company Limited Company Limited Total
ERERAR PERER (HR) ED THRERRNRE
BRARLF BEARLH (E) BRAT g
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 213 2014 2013
“g-mE -F--f -3-MF -3-=f -%-Bf C-T-=F <C-F-MF -E-=F
HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Milion ~ HKS Million  HKS Millon ~ HKS Million  HKS Milion
BEET AEAT BE®T  BEEAT  BE%n  BEET AEERRT BRI
Nor-current assets FiEEE 1,530.3 15765 14776 16283 13734 L4747 43813 4679.5
Current assets THEE 49.3 95.6 3449 401.6 256.9 310.5 651.1 807.7
Total assets BELR 1,579.6 16721 18225 20299 16303 17852 5,0324 5,487.2
Nor-current liabilties EiE 699.4 7023 - - - - 699.4 7023
Current liabiliies naafk 442 5.3 10439 12201 842.6 9585  1930.7 2,239
Total liabilties AR 7436 7676 1,039 1,220.1 842.6 9585  2,630.1 2,946.2
Net assets BEFE 836.0 904.5 778.6 809.8 181.7 826.7  2,402.3 25410
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information BEASEREERBE AR
presented to the carrying amount of the Group's interests REEINNFOEER S ZHE
in its material associated companies: R
Hong Kong CECIC HKC CECIC HKC
Construction SMC (Gansu) Wind Power Wind Power
Development Limited Company Limited Company Limited Total
ERRRAR PERAR (HE) BD MEREERNEE
ERERAR ERRAH (E) BRAT #g
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z2-mF - Z3-MF -%-Zf ZB-BF C-B-=F CF-MF -3-=F
HKS Million  HKS Millon ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Million  HKS Milion ~ HKS Million  HKS Millon
BEEn AEAT  HEERn  BEEAn  HEBn  BEET  EEBRT BEMR
Closing net assets EREEFE 836.0 9045 778.6 809.8 181.7 8267 24023 25410
Group's share of net assets (40%) REREEAEFE (40%) 3344 361.8 3115 3239 315.1 330.7 961.0 1,016.4
Amount due from an associated JE-FEBELR
company, net TERE 139.3 139.3 - - - - 139.3 139.3
Carrying amount FEE 473.7 501.1 3115 3239 315.1 3307 1,100.3 1,155.7
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22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED 22 REE QT ZER @)
COMPANIES (continued)
Material associated companies (continued) BEXEEQT @)
The Group has interests in a number of individually A& B % EE Rl I FE 2 K B &
immaterial associated companies. The following table RNEEE#ELZ - TRBEGZER
analyses, in aggregate, the share of profit and other ERaMmENEREMEEmEAS
comprehensive income/(loss) and carrying amount of (E518) REREEMND T -
these associated companies.
2014 2013
—E—MfF —T—=F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
Share of profit for the year FE(GARFEE 5T 8.0 2.9
Share of other comprehensive EihEMmEm
(loss)/income (EB#8),/ WA (4.2) 4.7
Share of total comprehensive income JE(EZE R A M58 3.8 7.6
Carrying amount of interests in these N /N o
associated companies M BRTE 123.0 169.9
23 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23 REEQTZER
2014 2013
—E-mF T —=F
HKS Million HKS Million
BEATR BEEL
Group’s share of net assets REEREEEFE 2,003.8 2,060.4
Amount due from a joint venture EM—RE& & R RIIE 221.2 158.4
2,225.0 2,218.8

As at 31 December 2014, amount due from a joint
venture is unsecured, of which HKS204.7 million is
interest bearing at 8% per annum and the remaining
balance is interest free. The balance is denominated
in Renminbi and not repayable within the next twelve
months.
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RE B RNE (&)

23

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

As at 31 December 2013, amount due from a joint
venture is unsecured, interest free and not repayable
with the next twelve months. The balance is denominated
in Renminbi.

There are no material contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures and no contingent
liabilities within the respective entities as at 31 December
2014 and 2013.

The following financial information represents the Group’s
aggregate share of results of the joint ventures and is
summarised as below:

23

REENTIZER @)

R-ZE—=F+-A=+—H &
W—HEERRIFALEER %
& B AENK R+ — {88 NRE -
BRI A RBHE -

RZE—WHER=T—=F+_H
=+—8 UEEMEAERNREE
NAElzERmzERKAAE @ i
AERSEENEIAGE-

TISMBEENRRAKE S KRG
BERRZEERAMT

2014 2013

—E—MfF —=—=F

HKS Million HKS Million

BEATR BBEBT

(Loss)/profit before income tax FriS®iaT (B518), %7 (13.3) 102.2

Income tax credit/(expense) FrigiEse /() 2.4 (26.3)

(Loss)/profit for the year RNEEF (B518) %7 (10.9) 75.9
Material joint venture BEAKEENT

Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real Estate Company
Limited is the joint venture that is material to the Group.

The Group has interests in a number of individually
immaterial joint ventures. The share of results of these
joint ventures for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013 and the share of their carrying amounts as at
31 December 2014 and 2013 are nil.

Details of the principal joint ventures are set out on page
247.

EBEBIINEERFRARAY
AEBMEBERNGERA e

AEBRZEERLIEFEANEE
NelEEERN HE_T—NER
—E—=f+-_A=1+—HIHFE
BEZEEEREERN =S —
NER—ZT—=F+=-_H=+—H
BEZERLEARIRABEAT -

TBASNT T BN E2AT
EO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

23 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23 REERQTZER @)
(continued)
Material joint venture (continued) EXESE QT @)
Set out below are the summarised financial information TXEHINEAEEMEBEANEG
for the joint venture that is material to the Group. LNAINFERRE - BHEERK
The information reflects the amounts presented in the MESZE AR PEREKAZTIHK
financial statements of the joint venture adjusted for WK AREESGE QR ZH
differences in accounting policies between the Group and SETBRAEEELAEE -
the joint venture.
Summarised income statement for the year ended BE+-A=1+—HLFEZER
31 December REE
Shanghai Jingang
North Bund Real Estate
Company Limited
EEEBENEEERGRLAT
2014 2013
—E-mF T =%
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEAT EF-:v
Revenue & - -
Depreciation and amortisation e K 5 (11.0) (11.0)
Interest income B UL A 0.5 0.2
Interest expense A EFZ - =
(Loss)/profit before income tax FiS®inl (E518), &7 (53.4) 408.9
Income tax credit/(expenses) FisfiEe, (i) 9.7 (105.2)
(Loss)/profit for the year RNEEZ (B518), %7 (43.7) 303.7
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hi2m (BE), WA (196.8) 239.7
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2| (518)  WABEE (240.5) 543.4
Dividend from a joint venture —HEERARAIKEZRE - -
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23 REEQTIZER @)
(continued)

Material joint venture (continued)

Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December )i

Shanghai Jingang
North Bund Real Estate
Company Limited
EBeBLMRBEEBRAR

2014 2013
—2-mF —E=F
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEBT A28
Non-current assets ~ SEa®EzE 13,3100 = 12,567.5
Current assets mE & E
Cash and cash equivalents HehREeFEEY 560.0 9.2
Others Hep 42 7777777 18
Total currentassets ~ #aBAEEs® °64.2 L7 11.0
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Financial liabilities (excluding TREE (TeREERN
trade and other payables and BR S EL A FE S 5K
provisions) LA K ) 2,232.6 1,727.6
_Othersiuuumg R A 1,324.5 ' 13645
Total non-current liabilites ~ JFmEAfAesE 3,557.1 3,0921
Current liabilities mEIBE
Financial liabilities (excluding TREE (TeREERN
trade and other payables and BR S EL A B S 50
provisions) LA TR 4 ) - -
_Others A 2,301.8 | 11,2448
Total current liabilites ~ ‘W®AGEE®m 00000000 2,301.8  1,244.8
Net assets BEFE 8,015.3 8,241.6
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23 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23 REELTZER @
(continued)
Material joint venture (continued) EXESE QT @)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information EASEREERGE AAERM
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest REEINGHTFEREEZHER
in its material joint venture: N

Shanghai Jingang
North Bund Real Estate
Company Limited
EEEBIIMEBEXERAR

2014 2013

—E—F —T—=F

HKS Million HKS Million

BHEER AEBTT

Net assets BEFE 8,015.3 8,241.6
Group's share of net assets AEEEGEEFE

(25%) (25%) 2,003.8 2,060.4

Amount due from a joint venture e —FA& & A RIFKIE 221.2 158.4

Carrying amount REE 2,225.0 2,218.8
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24 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 24 THtHEEREE
ASSETS
Group
rEE
2014 2013
ik —F=F
HKS Million HKS Million
BEET BEATL
At 1 January S Al — B 26.1 27.5
Currency translation differences [EHinE = (0.4) 0.5
Disposal HE (1.0) (2.8)
Net gains recognised RIESFER 2 W ek
in equity (Note 32) FEE (F13E32) 2.1 0.9
At 31 December = =1~ 26.8 26.1
Available-for-sale financial assets include A ESmEERTE
the following: 5% :
Unlisted securities IELETFES
Equity securities — PRC JEARFE S — 19.6 17.5
Club debentures SHESH 7.2 8.6
26.8 26.1
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the At EESFEE T EEHE -
following currencies:
2014 2013
—E—NF —T—=F
HKS Million HKS Million
BEET BAEATT
Hong Kong dollars BT 6.7 8.1
Renminbi AR 20.1 18.0
26.8 26.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 25 ZERESsz2EMIA
CATEGORY
Group
x&H
Assets at Available-
Loans fair value for-sale
and through financial
receivables profit or loss assets Total
BAVEE
EXR BaRIk AfHE
P ZEE SHEE “m

HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million
HEET HEET HEER HEER

Assets as per consolidated SEBEEER

balance sheet ZEE

At 31 December 2014 R-Z—NF
+-A=+—H

Available-for-sale financial assets At HESREE

(Note 24) (Wt3E24) - - 26.8 26.8
Financial assets at fair value BATFEERRRIEZ

through profit or loss (Note 27) S B&E (HE27) - 14.2 - 14.2
Amount due from an associated  fElk—FREE & A F1FE

company, net (Note 22) 588 (1322) 139.3 - - 139.3
Amount due from a joint El—HagAd

venture (Note 23) 08 (MHE23) 221.2 - - 221.2
Trade and other receivables BB R A EUBR R

under current assets (Note 28)  Jz H el zr (Ffiz128) 229.8 - - 229.8
Other receivables under FRBEERMEM

non-current assets (Note 28 (h)  FEURZr (H528 (h) 22.6 - - 22.6
Restricted cash (Note 29) ZBREHBES (F13529) 765.0 - - 765.0
Cash and cash equivalents RELRAEEEY

(Note 30) (B5E30) 1,102.8 - - 1,102.8
Total g 2,480.7 14.2 26.8 2,521.7
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%&

+-A=1+—H

Available-for-sale financial assets At ESFEE

(Note 24) (HtsE24) - = 26.1 26.1
Financial assets at fair value BRATEEBERIRZ

through profit or loss (Note 27) & B&E (FiizF27) = 14.5 - 14.5
Amount due from an associated  JEUK — B & A 7 FUB

company, net (Note 22) B (M522) 139.3 = - 139'3
Amount due from a joint [l —FEERR

venture (Note 23) 8 (MHE23) 158.4 = = 158.4
Trade and other receivables BB 2R A R UER 3R

under current assets (Note 28) R E f ezt (Fizr28) 285.5 - = 285.5
Other receivables under FRBEERMEM

non-current assets (Note 28 (h)  fEULZR (Hi£28 (h) 24.3 = = 24.3
Restricted cash (Note 29) SREESE (F3E29) 1,064.0 - = 1,064.0
Cash and cash equivalents ReLAEEEY

(Note 30) (K#3£30) 1,364.3 - > 1,364.3
Total mEs 3,035.8 145 26.1 3,076.4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 25 ZEREPZ2EMIAE @)
CATEGORY (continued)
Group
x&E
Liabilities at
fair value Other financial
through liabilities at
profit or loss amortised cost Total
BATEE REHEH A
BRRIIE STEZHM
ZE8fE tRAE ok
HK$ Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEAR BEER BEER
Liabilities as per consolidated HZAEEERR
balance sheet 28
At 31 December 2014 RZE-—NF+-_A=+—H
Borrowings (Note 33) &3k (PE33) - 4,179.4 4,179.4
Trade and other ERERHR
payables (Note 34) HA R (fiFE34) 297.8 1,556.2 1,854.0
Other non-current payables HioJEne e = - 13.7 13.7
Total ki) 297.8 5,749.3 6,047.1
At 31 December 2013 RZZ—=F+ZRA=1—H
Borrowings (Note 33) faR (f#E33) - 3,516.9 3,516.9
Derivative liability THETRBE > = a
Trade and other FERBRF K
payables (Note 34) Hio e (FirE34) 279.0 1,674.2 1,953.2
Other non-current payables HiIERE T - 13.7 13.7
Total ek 279.0 5,204.8 5,483.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 25 ZREFESZE/mMITE @m)
CATEGORY (continued)
Company
¥ NS
Loans and
receivables
Bk ERRK
HK$ Million
BEBT
Assets as per balance sheet EEABRZEE
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries, B30 B 185 1 1% B U FfT /B8 1 )
net of provision (Note 21) 2738 (HE21) 9,732.9
Other receivables (Note 28) H A UK (FIzE28) 0.4
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 30) e RREEED (H7£30) 0.7
Total HBE 9,734.0
At 31 December 2013 R — == 5 =q-—[§
Amounts due from subsidiaries, B HIBR 4 14 FE L BT S 1 B
net of provision (Note 21) ZRAE (MisE21) 9,857.8
Other receivables (Note 28) H b UK (B 5E28) 0.7
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 30) BeRESEEY (HE30) 39.2
Total wEE 9,897.7
Company
PN
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R R AR
SEZHA
cHMas
HK$ Million
BEBT
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEAGERZARE
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MNFE+—-F=+—H~
Other payables (Note 34) Him sk (Fizk34) 4.6
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=H=+—H
Other payables (Note 34) H b B R (BI5E34) 3.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

26

27

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

At 31 December 2014, certain properties held for
sale with carrying value of HKS1,538.1 million (2013:
HKS991.4 million) was pledged as securities for the
Group’s borrowings (Note 33).

26

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

27

EHERB ZYE

R-Z—NF+-_A=+—8" &
H1E 41,538,100,0008 &= F
EHER B ZYE (ZE—=F:
991,400,000 T) tEAASEEFT
BEfER 2 EA (FIFE33) -

BAVEHEERRIKRZ
TREE

Group

rEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$ Million HKS Million
BHEBET BEAT

Equity securities: IRAFE S

— Listed in Hong Kong at market value —B/AELM  EZmE 0.2 0.2
- Unlisted —3EEm 14.0 14.3
14.2 14.5

The fair value of listed equity securities is based on the
current bid price quoted in the market at the balance
sheet date.

EMIRAREZ 2 R FHETRER 4
BEHMSMREREAETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

28 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER 28 AR - EWERFKREAM

RECEIVABLES AN
Group Company
KEH RAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE —E—=F —E-0OF —T—=F
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEET BAEAT BEET BEATT
Non-current IEFRE
Prepayments and other AR R EM
receivables (Note h) FEU R (FfsEh) 258.2 466.4 - L
Current TED
Trade receivables JE U BR 5K 94.7 86.4 - -
Less: provision for B EUBR R
impairment of receivables 5 {E# & (8.3) (10.9) - -
Trade receivables — net  EUBRZEE 86.4 75,8 - =
Bills receivable FE U =% 2.1 2.0 - -
Retention receivables FEUIR BB =X 0.7 15.7 - -
Prepaid taxes FER R TR 20.1 12.0 - -
Prepayments, other FEFFR - Efh
receivables and FEUR K
deposits, net of e
provisions (B Hpr#EE) 120.5 180.3 0.4 0.7
229.8 285.5 0.4 0.7
488.0 751.9 0.4 0.7
Notes: M5
(@) The ageing analysis of trade receivables by the Group’s (a) RELHB RAEFEWREDR
rense oot e EE BRI I AR ALk
' i IR ZBRER D ATAO T ¢
Group
NEE
2014 2013
—T-mF —T—=F
HK$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBIT
0 to less than 2 months Tz LA 21E A 39.5 27.0
2 to less than 6 months 22 LR6ME A 12.5 8.7
6 to less than 12 months 6= LR121E A 0.6 2.3
12 months and more 1218 RLA £ 33.8 37.5
86.4 585
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

28 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice due
date at year end, net of provision for impairment, was

FEWEER #®)

BfsE : (&)

(@  (#&)

28 FEMN - BWRISRH A

REZB  REZIHMBED
i 2 HIBR BLAE 5 4 12 18 W AR 3K

as follows: ZHREOITWAT
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-MmF —T—=%F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEET BEATT
0 to less than 2 months == PR 2ME A 69.3 54.9
2 to less than 6 months 22 LR6MEA 0.8 =
6 to less than 12 months 62 121E A8 0.6 1.6
12 months and more 12{E A R BA £ 15.7 19.0
86.4 75.5
(i) For alternative energy business, the Group (i) ?ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%?ﬁ%ﬁ%@g'
allows a credit period of 30 days to its trade AEERES %ﬁfg?ﬁr
customers. The electricity tariff receivables due HAH30E 2 EEH -
from the government have to go through an F’Eéﬂg;tﬁlﬁ?@%ﬁ(\ A %%
approval procedure before issuing invoices, FRIZABBEL N
which the related receivables of which invoices ZT-MFE+_A=+—
were not issued as at 31 December 2014 of = ﬂiﬁ'ﬁ ) % 52 O 1 B e
HKS59.0 million (2013: HKS36.1 million) are ”51 /Ti)( 18 /7%59,090,000
classified as O to less than 2 months in the BIL(ZF — = F:
ageing analysis. Trade receivables that are 36L100'0007% L) R
less than 30 days past due are not considered RERODMADBRTE
impaired. As at 31 December 2014, trade L R2(E A - EH R
receivables of HK$13.8 million (2013: HK$16.3 30 H 2 & o B SR 4 AR
million) on alternative energy business were fERE - R=_F— W%
past due but not impaired. These relate to the +; A=+—H' & Eﬁ
government subsidies on the electricity tariff B B TR X 15 FE WAR 3R
which have not been allocated and distributed. 13,800,000 7 T (=
Based on past experience and industry practice, =% : 16,300,000
these tariff premiums are generally paid in &7 E 8 8 18 KR
6 to 12 months from the date of the sales 18 » JERIB BN K
recognition. The amount included HKS$13.8 ’JJ“\@E&?)K?’??E’\JE& & &
million (2013: HK$14.8 million) trade receivables B o ERBELR K
on alternative energy business being past due TRER WEEEM
over 12 months. No impairment has been By — AR 6 & 758 B 1
provided for these receivables as the balances T ET6Z12(E A X 11
are not in dispute and there is no indication that w% < F8 B 45 16 H B i 12
the amount will not be collectible. fAzBReEREKIE
g Bk = 413,800,000
BL(ZT — = F:
14,800,000/ JT) - M
REZEHRT S KA F
HUWETRETE B
BB E -
okt e R R IE R
BB -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

28 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(ii)

Other than alternative energy business, various
group companies have different credit policies
depending on the requirements of their markets
and the businesses which they operate. Trade
receivables that are less than 12 months past
due are not considered impaired. As at 31
December 2014, trade receivables of HKS1.9
million (2013: HKS4.2 million) on other business
were past due but not impaired. These relate to
a number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default.

Other than alternative energy business, there is no
concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of HK$8.3
million (2013: HKS$10.9 million) were impaired and fully
provided for.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, trade
and other receivables are denominated in the following

28 FEMA -

FE W BR MR H b

FEWER @)
BisE : (4)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(i) BEBERERELIN &
EERBRZIEEHRRE
& & B 35 & Sk Kk T A
EER MR N2
A R E| 8 2 e U BR 51
BRE R-E—E
+=ZA=+—H8" ' HE4
(¥BEafeEEREZ
F& Uz Bk 3k A&1,900,000
B (ZE — = §F:
4,200,000/ 7T) ° It &
B 7K B 81 7 3 ST HR R
RS BYEEER -

BRERERERIN  AAREE
EPREAT D - HEWKIRKIA
BEESTZER -

RZE—NNE+=RA=+—
H - A#18,300,000 T (==
— =4 :10,900,000/% jt) 2
FEUREBR X KRR E R E 2 A E
AR e o

AKE 2B BRERR
s 43K 2 B 7 L B T 51
WEHE

currencies:
2014 2013
—2-HmF —T—=F
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEET BEAT
Hong Kong dollars BT 6.7 8.9
Renminbi AR 481.3 743.0
488.0 751.9

There are bank borrowings secured by certain of
the Group's trade receivables with carrying values of
HKS$59.8 million (2013: HK$40.9 million) (Note 33).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

28 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER 28 FEMR > J?ELI&EE%&&E{&

RECEIVABLES (continued) EH&/TA
Notes: (continued) ax - (88)
(f) Movements on the provision for impairment of trade (f) JEWEBRE TR 2 R ERMEE E T -

receivables are as follows:

2014 2013
—E—OF —FT—=
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEBTT BB
At 1 January R—A—A~ 10.9 12.4
Currency translation differences [EHREEE (0.2) 0.2
Write back of provision for SE 1B B )
impairment losses (0.1) (0.5)
Trade receivables written off 4 Y 5 R AT U [
during the year as uncollectible 2 FEREE (2.3) (1.2)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H”H 8.3 10.9
(g) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting (g MRHBEERHzeaEERRA
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable FaFBREKG ZREE - &
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral SEYESFEMAHERRIEE
as security. R o
(h) Included in prepayments and other receivables were (h)y  FF ATEN 3K E A U R A()
(i) deposits held for property resettlement schemes MMELBFEFE AT S
of HK$234.6 million (2013: HKS$409.3 million) and 234,600,000% T (Z & — =
(ii) input value-added taxation recoverable of HK$22.6 £ : 409,300,000/ 7T) M lii)fE
million (2013: HK$24.3 million) arising from purchases W 3 TH 32 (B #22,600,000/% 7T
of property, plant and equipment. (ZZF — = 4 : 24,300,000%
Jo)  TIRBEIBEYE - SR

R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

29

30

RESTRICTED CASH 29 ZREEREE
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEETT
Restricted cash represents: ZRHIF S
Deposits placed with banks ERRZRIBITZTER
— for securing banking facilities granted — ERAEEET
to certain buyers of properties VI B RIER
of the Group IRITRLE - 3.2
— for securing certain bank loans — ERETIRITER 300.1 =
Escrow accounts relating to deposits REERP P RZIEY
held for property development projects ERRAE TS 464.9 1,060.8
765.0 1,064.0
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30 RERFAESEEY
Group Company
A& NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NE —T—=F —E-MEF —H==4
HKS Million HKS Million ~ HKS Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBT BEBT BEAT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY
comprises the following: BENATHEE :
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFEBES 715.4 872.1 0.7 1.4
Short-term bank deposits EHIRITIER 1,152.4 1,556.2 - 37.8
1,867.8 2,428.3 0.7 39.2
Less: Restricted cash (Note 29) i : ZBR#HERS (Ff:E29) (765.0) (1,064.0) - -
1,102.8 1,364.3 0.7 39.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30 BEeRBREZEEY @)
(continued)
Group Company
35 x07
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-mF —F-=F —B-QmF T =
HKS Million HKS Million ~ HKS Million HKS Million
HEBR BEBT BB ABBT

Cash and cash equivalents and BeLBREZEMR

restricted cash XRHERE
(a) Placed in banks in the PRC:  (a) RHTERRITEE :
- denominated in Renminbi - UAREES 1,421.6 1,835.1 - -
- denominated in — BT EE
Hong Kong dollars 123.0 143.0 - -
— denominated in US dollars - UETHE 1.1 3.3 - =

(b) Placed in banks in Hong Kong: (b) REBEZRITEE :

- denominated in Renminbi - UARELEE 193.7 339.8 - 37.8
- denominated in — A TEE
Hong Kong dollars 127.4 105.9 0.7 1.3
- denominated in US dollars - UETEE 1.0 1.2 - 0.1
1,867.8 2,428.3 0.7 39.2
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date REEB 2ERFZEAT :

were as follows:

2014 2013

—B-mF —F=%

HK$ RMB HKS RMB

BT ARH BT ARE
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 0.01%-2.91% 0.35%-3.79%  0.01%-2.91%  0.35%-3.23%
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting RBEAPEHz&SEERRA
date is the carrying value of the cash and bank balances EXFratz R e RRITESRER
stated above. 8-

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(continued)

The short-term bank deposits of the Group and the
Company have original maturities of three months or less.

Cash and shortterm deposits of HKS1,545.7 million
(2013: HKS1,981.4 million) held in the Mainland China
are subject to local exchange control regulations, under
which the balances could not be exported freely out of
China. The repatriation of fund out from the Mainland

30 BERBREZEEY @)

AREBENARREHRRITFERZIR
HHER/=EHARIAT -

FRFPBEAM 2R &S TR
1,545,700,0008 ;T (= T — =% :
1,981,400,000/87T) 5 & . 51NE &
fERBIPTARIR - B2 AEER T BE B H i b
E - EPBERMBALES - AR

China is possibly conducted by way of dividends or other B E A B AR Bk H A i 1€
means as complied to the regulations. 17 °
31 SHARE CAPITAL 31 B=&
Number Ordinary
of shares shares
g 4= B
Note (Million) HKS Million
M5 (B8) BEBT
Authorised HE
At 1 January and R=ZT—=%—H—-Hk
31 December 2013, +-A=+—H"
1 January and “E-mE-A-BK
31 December 2014 +=-A=1+—8H 30,000.0 300.0
Issued and fully paid BRETRHRE
At 1 January 2013 and R=ZT—=F—F—-Bk
31 December 2013 et s A=+—H 11,241.9 112.4
Exercise of bonus TR IR [1403]
warrants “1403" (a) 353.9 3.6
At 31 December 2014 R=—ZT—ME+=-fA=1+—H 11,595.8 116.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 16 October 2014, the Company issued
2,248,377,085 units of warrants (Warrant Code: 1403)
on the basis of 1 warrant for every 5 existing shares
of the Company held by the shareholders (“bonus
warrants”). The holders of bonus warrants are entitled
to subscribe at any time during 16 October 2014 to 15
October 2015 for fully paid shares at a subscription
price of HKS0.17 per share (subject to adjustment).
353,881,140 new ordinary shares of HKS0.01 each
were issued upon the exercise of 353,881,140 units
of bonus warrants for the year ended 31 December
2014. As at 31 December 2014, 1,894,495,945
units of bonus warrants remained outstanding. Among
the 353,881,140 newly issued ordinary shares,
339,203,742, 13,738,000 and 30,000 new ordinary
shares of HKS0.01 each were issued upon the exercise
of 339,203,742 units, 13,738,000 units and 30,000
units of bonus warrants by Creator Holdings Limited
(“Creator”), Genesis Capital Group Limited and an
executive director of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2014 (2013: Nil). Creator and Genesis are
substantial shareholders of the Company.

Share options are granted to employees, senior
executives or officers, managers, directors or
consultants of any members of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

The exercise price must be at least the higher of

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant;

(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and

31 AR (@)

G

(a)

(b)

R—_ZTE—MWFE+A+,8"
AAREBRESRHERRE
R EEIMDRRERE 2 E
# . #%772,248,377,0851%0 iR A%
EEGRIREE R 1403)
(AL A RRIERE ) o 41 7R
EERBBABER=-ZT —NF
+A+A"BE-_Z—HFT+A
+ 7 B HA A A B ] LA R BB (B
BRO.17B T (AT FRE) R
BHERD BE_T—NF
+—_A=+—HLFE"
353,881,140/ & % m 160.01
B ZzHERRE RNITE
353,881,14017 4 #) 3R I #& &
BT - R_ZT—NE+=-A
= 1+ — H - 1,894,495,945%
MFRBREEEEITE - HE
—Z-WE+-_AF=+—8H
IF F E » $353,881,1400% #1
17 E @A 0 339,203,742
f% ~ 13,738,000% X30,0000%
FROOIB L ZHEBR
HElE&E@AERALRA (A
Z|) - ZRAEBERAAK
RRNR—BRTESEITEEY
339,203,7421 ~ 13,738,000
17 %30,00017 4T F1| 37 AR 4 & B
BIT(ZT—=: |- BlER
ERYAEARRNEEEZME ©

ARBRAEEE N ERKE
NAFEMREERZIES
BRITERABHETEZAE &
2 BEFRHERKOERE -

TREAKIRATESE :
(i) IR R HX B HA TR B 32
iR ®REXRMIIKT
1B

(i) BOERRLAHIR
BEEXBAEBRIAEH
BEXRMIFHWT
B R

EERE (BR) ARAT « T MEER @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued) (b)
(iii) the nominal value of a share.

An option must be exercised within ten years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as the
Board may specify at the time of grant. An offer of the
grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of ten business days from the date of offer and
a consideration of HKS1 must be paid upon acceptance.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their related weighted average exercise prices are
as follows:

31 KA @)
BT ()

(&)

(i)  fmEE -

BRRARE L BHEST T F
HEE R A LR B [ 15 B3
ZBEREATE- 2R H
ZBRER BIRE A B A+
EEXBHERNEEQFE
o MR ASNIETRE -

CESH-PA 'S T ED L
PIET ST EER BT -

Average

exercise price
in HK dollar Number of
per share options

FRF¥H
BITITEE BRERE
At 1 January 2013 R-—E—=F—H—H 1.053 190,282,346
Granted BT 0.269 107,500,000
Cancelled/lapsed Bl Bk 1.014 (25,270,082)
At 31 December 2013 R-_E—=%+—-_A=+—H 0.747 272,512,264
At 1 January 2014 R-ZET—WNE—HF—H 0.747 272,512,264
Cancelled/lapsed Bl Bk 0.325 (92,953,493)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—WNF+=-A=+—H 0.966 179,558,771

The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had
a weighted average remaining contractual life of
approximately 2.7 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 31 KA @)
Notes: (continued) fex : (88)
(b) (continued) (b) (&)

Number of outstanding share options at 31 December
2014 and 2013 are as follows:

RZE—NER-_FT—=ZF+
A=t BHEERTEZER
BHEWT .

Exercise price At 31 December

At 31 December

Date of grant Exercise period per share (adjusted) 2014 2013

BRTRE RZE-mE W-BE-=F
R AH figid (&8%) +-A=t-B +=A=t-H

(HKS)
(#70)

15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 14 December 2016
ZEENETZA+AE “EELE+_R+RAR-_E—"E+-AtRA 1.066 7,097,698 7,097,698
15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 14 December 2016
ZEENETZA+HE “EEN\E+-_A+RAE-_F—E+-A+tHA 1.066 12,162,732 12,162,732
15 December 2006 15 December 2009 to 14 December 2016
ZEERF+ZA+HA “EENET_ATRAE-Z-"E+-A+tHA 1.066 11,662,901 11,662,901
3 July 2007 15 December 2007 to 2 July 2017
“ZE+F+ A=A —ERFT_ATRAZ-_E—tFtAZH 1.726 6,664,518 6,004,518
3 July 2007 15 December 2008 to 2 July 2017
S e —ZR\F+-AtRAZ-E—tFtA-H 1.726 3,332,259 3,332,259
3 July 2007 15 December 2009 to 2 July 2017
S35t A=A “ERNFT_ATRAZ=E—tFtAZA 1.726 3,332,259 3,332,259
1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 31 January 2018
—“£%/\f-f-H “EENE_A-BE_ET-\f-A=1-H 1.242 16,661,271 16,661,271
1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 31 January 2018
—“$F/\f-f-H —E-ZT4-_f-BE-F-\f—A=1-H 1.242 24,991,920 24,991,920
1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 31 January 2018
—“£F/\f-f-AH —E——%_f-BE-"FT-\f—f=1—-H 1.242 41,653,213 41,653,213
1 September 2010 1 September 2012 to 31 August 2014
“Z-TFnA-A —E-—FNA-RAE-F-EFN\A=1-H 0.443 - 9,914,160
1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 31 August 2015
“Z-TFEnA-A T =FNA-BE_Z-REN\A=1—H 0.443 - 16,523,601
10 June 2011 10 June 2012 to 9 June 2014
S A R = —E——#XA+tHE_E-WE~ANA 0.327 - 2,203,146
10 June 2011 10 June 2013 to 9 June 2015
S A R = B A+tHE_E-R&E~ANA 0.327 - 3,304,720
10 June 2011 10 June 2014 to 9 June 2016
S R = “E-WERATHE_E—E~ANA 0.327 - 5,507,866
15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 14 April 2016
“Z-=#MAtHA “E-NENA+RAZ S FNATEA 0.269 10,400,000 21,500,000
15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 14 April 2017
—Z-=#NAtHA “E-RfNA+RAZ-E—tFMNATMEA 0.269 15,600,000 32,250,000
15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 14 April 2018
—Z-=#NAt+HA “EAENA+RAZ-E-/\FNA+MEA 0.269 26,000,000 53,750,000
Total faE 179,558,771 272,512,264
Number of options exercisable A {7{FEERk#ESL A 137,958,771 159,504,398

Other details of the share option schemes are set out in
the Report of the Directors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

32 RESERVES 32 f#E
Group AEHE

Capital Capital Employee Available-
Share  reduction  redemption Other ~ Property share-based for-sale
premium reserve reserve Capital ~ Contributed reserve  revaluation pensati Exchange i Retained
(Note a (Note c) (Note b) reserve surplus (Note d) reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
REEE BAHRRE RARERE EfbfE H WA e

(Mita) (Hite) (Wh)  EABE  HA2R (Wad)  EfEE  EEMSRE  EXBR  REEE  REMd 45
HKS Milion HKS Millon ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon  HKS Million  HKS Millon ~ HKS Million
BEET  AAET  BRET  FERT  PEET  EEMR  EEER EEfn  FEET  BEEn  BEET  EEER

Balance at 1 Januery 2013 RE-=5-A-BE4 81787 594.1 146 472 601.0 81 - 56.9 17348 25 L1127 12,3506
Translaton of financial statements of ~ BEFNERHBHR
foreign operations
- Currency transaction differences - EXREEE - - - - - - - - 4972 (0.1) = 4971
Investments avaiable for sale AftERE
- Gain n fair value - Dk - - - - - - - - - 09 - 09
Employee share option benefits EEEREER - - - - - - - 16 - - - 16
Release of reserves upon cancelled/  ERfER /4 7E
Iapse of share options EdER - - - - - - - 42 - - 55 13
Proftfor the year TERER N N } - - - - - - - 78 78
Balance at 31 December 2013 RIZ-ZF+A=t-RER 81787 594.1 146 472 601.0 81 - 53 22320 33 11910 129243
Retained by: TGRS :
Company and subsidiaries ARARKEAR 81787 594.1 146 472 601.0 81 - 53 16202 33 W3 11368
Associated comparies BEME = = = = = = = - 2631 - 213 5144
Joint ventures AT - - - - - - - - 387 - 1344 1,083.1
81781 594.1 146 472 601.0 81 - 53 22320 33 11910 129243
Balance at 1 Januery 2014 WZE-BE-F-RES 81787 594.1 146 412 601.0 8.1 - 543 2,2320 33 11910 129243
Transiton to no-ar value regime R-F-ME=f=RA8Z
on 3 March 2014 (Note ¢) EEERRHE (Hite) - (594.1) (145) 608.7 - - - - - - - -
Trenslaton of financil statements of &5 £ #EHRE
foreign operations
- Curtency transltion diferences - ExfiE%E - - - - - - - - (296.5) 0.1 - (296.4)
- Currency translation differences - REEREELERAT
reclassied to proft or oss SREZENREEE
upon liguidation and disposal - - - - - - - - (26.3) - - (26.3)
Investments avaiable for sale Bl
- Gain in fai value - LVEkE - - - - - - - - - 21 - 21
(Gain on property revaluation nEEENE - - - - - - 117 - - - - 117
Exercise of bonus warants EHARER 56.6 - - - - - - - - - - 56.6
Employeg share option benefits [EERERERR - - - - - - - 12 - - - 12
Release of reserve upon cancellet/ BRI /K I
[apse of share options EltkE - - - - - - - (4.8) - - 6.2 14
Loss for the year FEEER - - - - - - - - - - (87.2) 87.2)
Balance at 31 December 2014 WoE-BET-A=T-RER 8,233 - - 655.9 601.0 8.1 117 507 1,909.2 5.5 11100 12,5874
Retaned by: FHRE:
Company and subsidiaries FRARKEAR 8,235.3 - - 655.9 601.0 8.1 117 50.7 1,385.8 55 2824 11,2364
Associated companies BENT - - - - - - - - 2239 - 1040 3219
Joint vertures 2807 - - - - - - - - 2995 - 7236 10231

8,233 - - 655.9 601.0 8.1 117 50.7 1,909.2

o

5 L1100 125874

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

32 RESERVES (continued) 32 fﬁﬁ (#&)
Company P NN
Employee
Share share-based
premium Contributed  compensation Exchange  Accumulated
(Note a) surplus reserve reserve losses Total
RHEE WG
(Hta) SABH  EEMLRE Eife ZiER g

HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BE#T BE#T BE#T BE#T BE#T BE#T

Balance at 1 January 2013 RZE-=F-P-B&k 8,178.7 730.7 5.9 926.8 (172.7) 9,720.4

Currency translation differences B} & ZE - - - 2769 - 2769

Employee share option benefits B2 BREREA - - 1.6 - - 1.6

Release of reserve upon cancelled/ EEiRiEsTs / &k

[apse of share options Bl - - 4.2) - 4.2 -

Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (47.7) (47.7)

Balance at 31 December 2013 W=ZF-=%#+-F=t-H&H 8,178.7 730.7 543 1,203.7 (216.2) 9,951.2

Balance at 1 January 2014 R-E-NE-P-B&s 8,178.7 730.7 54.3 1,203.7 (216.2) 9,951.2

Currency translation differences B HEZSE - - - (223.9) - (223.9)

Exercise of bonus warrants fEANARES 56.6 - - - - 56.6

Employee share option benefits & ERERF - - 1.2 - - 1.2

Release of reserve upon cancelled/ EMRiEs s / & e

[apse of share options Bk - - (4.8) - 48 -

Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - (7.8) (7.8)

Balance at 31 December 2014  W-F-ME+-A=+-Hfg 8,235.3 730.7 50.7 979.8 (219.2) 97713

Notes: MosE -

(a) The application of the share premium account is (a) s EBRZBEETARE—
governed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as NN—RRVEERT ARFTE 8 -
amended).

(b) The application of the capital redemption reserve account (b) EAREBELORGEREZHAERXYER
was governed by section 49H of the predecessor Hong BB RN MUEHIFEAHIGTEE -

Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RHE (&)

32 RESERVES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

On 30 September 2005, by virtue of special resolutions
of a subsidiary of the Company with the sanction of
an order of the High Court of the Hong Kong SAR,
the nominal value of all the issued and paid up capital
was reduced from HK$1.00 to HKS0.01 each, thereby
reducing the issued and paid up capital of a subsidiary
of the Company by HK$2,305.1 million and such amount
was transferred to the Capital Reduction Reserve
Account.

On 12 May 2010, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary
entered into sales and purchase agreement (“S&P”) with
the Group’s non-wholly-owned subsidiary to dispose of
the alternative energy business (“Target Business”).
Based on the S&P, the purchase consideration is
settled by way of issuing and allotting 1,385,170,068
convertible preference shares by such non-wholly-owned
subsidiary. The fair value of which, on the S&P date, was
HKS1,018.1 million. On 31 August 2010, the acquisition
was completed and the fair value of the respective
convertible preference shares changed to HKS853.8
million. As the Target Business remains as the Group’s
subsidiary upon the disposal, such disposal transaction
is considered as a transaction with non-controlling
shareholders. As a result, the Group has recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of HK$8.1 million
and an increase in other reserve in equity of the same
amount.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out
in section 37 of Schedule 11 to Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3 March 2014, any amounts
standing to the credit of the capital reduction reserve
and capital redemption reserve accounts of a subsidiary
has been reclassified.
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CERRC))

(c)

(e)

R-ZFFAFNAA=1TE "R
BREERESSERESH
EZARRNE B AT R
ARZESR FIACRITRES
B AN 2 EE B & A% 1.007%5 TR
Z£0.01)87T » At KA —
FMB AR ZEZETREER
AR 4>2,305,100,000% T - &
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R-ZE—ZFRA+-_H ' K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

33 BORROWINGS - GROUP 33 BN —FKH

2014 2013
—E—MfF —E-=fF
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBRT BEATT

Non-current ER B
Bank borrowings RITIEK 2,599.9 2,914.6
Finance lease liabilities BMEAEAE 112.8 131.0
Loans from non-controlling shareholders JEFERR IR R B 3R 255.7 52.8
2,968.4 3,098.4

Current B

Bank borrowings SRITER 1,183.4 392.9
Finance lease liabilities MEHREARE 15.3 14.1
Loans from non-controlling shareholders FEPERR AR R B R 12.3 11.5
1,211.0 418.5
Total borrowings AR 4,179.4 3,516.9

In 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by
the investment properties, prepaid land lease payments,
properties, plant and equipment, toll road income,
properties under development, properties held for sale,
trade receivables and restricted cash of the Group (Notes
16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 26, 28 and 29), certain of which are
also secured by the corporate guarantee provided by the

Company or its subsidiaries.

R-FT—MEF - AEEZRITHER
HAREZREY X - AN HE
B3 WX - HERERE - WER
BRIWA - BRPYE  FHES
wmZE - BUERR LR HIR
< (ff #+16-17-18-19-20"
26~ 28%29) tFHE A - AP HET
AITHARBREMBATREZ
RRIERIEEM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

33 BORROWINGS - GROUP (continued) 33 ‘fiEltjj'Ek — ZF% (#&)
In 2013, the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by MNZE—=F KEBZRITER
the investment properties, prepaid land lease payments, MAEBR ZKEYE - BN THHE
properties, plant and equipment, toll road income, B3 E - BENEE - WEA
properties under development, properties held for sale A - BEREMYE - FEERR
and trade receivables of the Group (Notes 16, 17, 18, 2R EWERR (16 - 17
19, 20, 26 and 28), certain of which are also secured 181920+ 26%28) &1 4 -
by the corporate guarantee provided by the Company or HphEFEITHAARISKENE A
its subsidiaries. AR 2 EERIEER -
(a) At the balance sheet date, the Group’s secured (a) REEBR AEEZHER
bank borrowings were repayable as follows: RITIERZERBAT -
2014 2013
—E-OE —T—=F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
Within one year —FR 1,183.4 392.9
In the second year F_F 777.7 714.8
In the third to fifth year E= DR 1,086.8 1,327.2
After the fifth year hEi& 735.4 872.6
3,783.3 3,307.5
Wholly repayable within five years BERAEFREIEE 2,087.0 1,585.9
Wholly repayable after five years BRAFEREHESR 1,696.3 1,721.6
3,783.3 3,307.5
(b)  The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest (b) AEEERAREER2FE
rate changes and the contractual repricing dates gL eaHEFEERR L
at the balance sheet date are as follows: T
2014 2013
—E-nmEF —F—=
HKS Million HKS Million
BHESBT AEBTT
6 months or less 6@ A=k AT 3,440.1 2,829.0
6 — 12 months 621218 A 351.3 411.8
3,791.4 3,240.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

33 BORROWINGS - GROUP (continued)

(c)

33 f&

The Group has finance lease liabilities at the (c)

balance sheet date as follows:

F—AEEH @

RNEER  AEEZBEMR
EREWT -

2014 2013
S —
HKS Million HKS Million
BEER BEET
Gross finance lease liabilities — REHEEEFEETE —
minimum lease payments SIXRAE B
Within one year —FR 22.8 22.6
In the second year i 23.5 23.3
In the third to fifth year E=F=FhE 74.7 74.2
After the fifth year hFi& 35.2 62.3
156.2 182.4
Future finance charges on BEHE 2 RRBME
finance leases b=9:3] (28.1) (37.3)
Present value of finance REHEEEZRE
lease liabilities 128.1 145.1
The present value of finance REMEaBEZRE
lease liabilities is as follows: W
Within one year —FR 15.3 14.1
In the second year FE_F 17.0 15.6
In the third to fifth year FZEFERF 62.2 57.7
After the fifth year hE% 33.6 57.7
128.1 1LA4l5 78
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

33 BORROWINGS - GROUP (continued)

(d)

(e)

As at 31 December 2014,
controlling shareholders of HK$268.0 million are
unsecured, of which HK$202.1 million is carried
interest at over five years’ PBOC lending rate
per annum and the remaining balance is interest
free. As at 31 December 2013, all loans from
non-controlling shareholders were unsecured and
interest free.

The loans that are not expected to be repayable

loans from non-

33 BER—FX&EH@W

d R-FE-—WHFE+-_HA=+
—BBFEERRZE
7%268,000,0007% JT /& & K
# - H 202,100,000 7T
BEBPBEARRITEFEMN
LFERERM=EE B - FEREE
DPREB -RE =%+
—A=+—8B FBE¥E
Bl RzERBERML R

B o
1T

B TERART—EAR

within twelve months are classified as non-current EBEREZERWSEAIERE
liabilities. The balance is mainly denominated in BE #HREFTZUARES
Renminbi. (=3

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet
date were as follows:

(e) MEBERZERFM=RLT :

2014 2013
—B-mF —F-=%
HK$ RMB HKS RMB
BT AR% BT AR
Bank borrowings IRITIER 0.95%-4.08% 4.19%-7.38%  0.95%-3.21%  5.90%-7.21%
Finance lease liabilities MEMERRE - 5.75% - 5.75%
Loans from non-controlling 3B R &
shareholders - 6.55% - -

(f)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are

()  ERZEEERNIIEE

denominated in the following currencies: 18 :
2014 2013
—ZE—MF —T—=fF
HKS Million HKS Million
BEAER BEET
Hong Kong dollars BT 323.7 180.9
Renminbi AR 3,855.7 3,336.0
4,179.4 3,516.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

33 BORROWINGS - GROUP (continued) 33 B — XKE @)
(g2 The Group has the following undrawn borrowing (g) AEEBETIARBAMBKIE
facilities: g
2014 2013
S —F=F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEET BEATL
Fixed rate expiring beyond one year A —%1% 3| Hi%
EE A=A 85.0 -
Floating rate A A P
— expiring within one year — R—F R EEA - 151.0
— expiring beyond one year — RN—FE &3 H 2,667.4 3,083.5
2,752.4 3,234.5
34 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 34 ENERFREMENK
Group Company
PN | PN/
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-MmE =% —E-mE —T—=fF

HKS Million HKS Million ~ HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEET

Trade payables JE{TBR X 69.0 135.5 - -
Retention payables TERB I 177.0 193.3 - -
Properties sale deposits received B2 U2 ssEIR S 461.6 530.8 - -

Other payables and accruals H b R B AT
(Note c) &/ (fizEce) 1,146.4 1,093.6 4.6 3.9
1,854.0 1,953.2 4.6 39
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34 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(continued)

(a) The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

34 ENRRREMEMNRK @

(a)

RERE  AEBRNER

at year end was as follows: ZERER DT ¢

2014 2013
— —F—=

HKS Million HKS Million
BEBTT AEETT
0 to less than 2 months T=DR2EA 37.9 123.6
2 to less than 6 months 2Z L 61E A 0.2 1.9
6 to less than 12 months 621218 A 0.1 0.2
12 months and more 121@ A KA £ 30.8 9.8
69.0 135.5

(b) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
other payables are denominated in the following

(b)

7K £ 1B 8 1~ B 0 B L At FE A
R2EHERATEED

currencies: ' :
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
Hong Kong dollars BT 32.6 41.5
Renminbi AR H#E 1,523.6 1,632.7
US dollars ETT 297.8 279.0
1,854.0 1,953.2

(c) As of 31 December 2014, the fair value of
financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss is HKS$297.8 million (2013: HKS$S279.0

million).

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR ME (8)

35 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 35 EZFEB AR
The deferred income tax liabilities recognised and PR ZIELEMRET B E R EES)
movements are as follows: R
Group
158
Fair value Adjustments
adjustments on prepaid
on investment  Depreciation land lease Other
properties  Allowance Taxloss  payments items Total
RENEL Bt
AYERR ERfE HEFE HEXSE HftIEH fam
HKS Million ~ HKS Million - HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million ~ HKS Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BE#T BE#T BE#R
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=%-A-H 681.9 - - 436.2 8.6 1,126.7
Currency translation differences EiREES 210 - - 118 2.1 409
Net of amortisation capitalised REEPYEEEAL
in properties under development V& 32l = - - (6.2) - (6.2)
(Credited)/charged to income REHR (K%)/
statement (Note 12) 1k (WEE12) 38 - - (41.2) 04 (37.0
At 31 December 2013 RZE-Z%+-A=+-A 712.7 - - 400.6 ML 1,124.4
At 1 January 2014 R-Z-ImF-F-A 112.7 - - 400.6 111 1,124.4
Currency translation differences EAREES (13.6) (0.5) 0.1 (8.8) (0.5) (23.3)
Net of amortisation capitalised RERFYECEAL
in properties under development BRI - - - (1.3) - (1.3
Charged to reserve (Note b) AR (D) - - - - 5.0 5.0
Charged)/[credited) to income WERENR/
statement (Note 12) (%) (H12) 1015 26.5 (135) (18.4) (26) 935
At 31 December 2014 RZE-PE+-A=1-H 800.6 26.0 (13.4) 312.1 13.0 1,198.3
Notes: Mz -
(a) Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses (a) fisi 75 O] RE 28 3B AN 2R B AR 5 v A1)

carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefits through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of HK$327.8 million (2013: HK$343.3 million)
in respect of tax losses of HK$1,593.3 million (2013:
HKS1,667.5 million) to carry forward against future
taxable income. These tax losses have no expiry dates
except for the tax losses of HK$695.1 million (2013:
HKS801.5 million) which will expire at various dates up
to and including 2019 (2013: 2018).

B REFZEE - A2
i MIBEERRELEMENR
BE - ASEWERBIEESR
1,593,300,000% jc (= & — =
£ :1,667,500,0007& ) HERIE
JE BT 15 7% 78 & E327,800,0007%
7T (ZZF—=4 : 343,300,000
JC) Al {EAEEE - FAIREE BB FE
PRI A o ZERIAB BT EE
EAE - 695,100,000/ (=&
—=4 : 801,500,000/ 7T) 2%
HEEBEEREZE-_ZE—hF (8
EZE) (Z2—=F: ZF—N
F) FREBHAEIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR R (F)

35 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 35 EIEMEBHERE @

(continued)

Notes: (continued) BosE : (88)

(b) The amount represents the tax charge relating to the (b) RESHEEEMES W AT Y
gain on property revaluation in other comprehensive H¥EHNEEECBIERY ©
income.

36 COMMITMENTS - GROUP 36 i —AKHE

(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREE
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but RNEEHEREBRMKRES
not yet incurred is as follows: AR

Group
REHE
2014 2013
—E-OE — ==
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBTT
(i) Capital commitments undertaken (i) ZKXZEEF > &R FHE
by the Group
(a) Property, plant and equipment (@) nZ - Hes k1B
Contracted but not provided for EHENEES L 2.1 141.4
(b) Property development projects (b)%EREER
Contracted but not provided for EEENEES L 2,506.9 2,615.2
2,509.0 2,756.6
(ii) Capital commitments undertaken (i) & &2\ 5] 2 EFAHE
by the joint venture
Property development project YIEBERIER
Contracted but not provided for EHEMNEES L]
— the Group’s share — ANEEE(G 1,110.1 1,136.4

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE B RNE (&)

36 COMMITMENTS - GROUP (continued) 36 7?‘('1}% - Z'K% (#&)

(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) BREKERE Z&AE
The aggregate future minimum lease payments BEEHAT W REFZTA
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect B EHE 7 KR KKK
of land and buildings are as follows: SREEWR

2014 2013

—B-NmF B =

HKS Million HKS Million

BEER BEBT

No later than 1 year —F R 7.2 3.6
Later than 1 year and BB —FRAFA

no later than 5 years 7.7 2.7

14.9 6.3

(c) Future minimum rental receivable (c) RAREREKEWHES
The future aggregate minimum rental receivable BETAHELCEHE 2R
under non-cancellable operating leases is as RxEEWHESERZRINT :
follows:

2014 2013

—E-NF —T-=F

HKS Million HKS Million

BEER BEBT

No later than 1 year —FR 105.1 99.9
Later than 1 year and BB —FRAFA

no later than 5 years 168.6 263.9

Later than 5 years BidmAF 24.7 107.7

298.4 471.5

The Group leases out investment properties under NREBRBERKEHEBINE

operating leases. The lease runs for an initial w2 FE o RV A H—

period of one to ten years, with an option to renew E+E WA EREEELER

the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease HIRRES  ERFTEIEXR

payments are usually increased annually to reflect HAEHETE e —HKe

market rentals. No contingent rent was recognised FE FHALARETESERS -

in the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014. FARBEHREAEHE-F

—=F R _E—NFE+_A
=t+—BItFEFRER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Group

(a)

The Group’s investment property located in
Shenzhen, the PRC is subject to housing facility
fund pursuant to ORIILEFEREFERMEEE
1&41) adopted on 1 November 1994. Contingent
liabilities of RMB75.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$94.8 million) (2013: RMB75.8
million (equivalent to approximately HKS$96.9
million)) arising in this respect have been assessed
by management with reference to the legal opinion
previously obtained. Management have requested
relief from the relevant local government
authorities on the grounds that certain amounts
of maintenance costs were already spent for the
purposes as specified under the requirement of
housing facility fund, hence no further provision
for the fund is considered necessary.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group
arranged bank financing for certain property
buyers and provided guarantees of HKS$307.6
million (2013: HKS170.2 million) in relation to the
repayment obligations for those buyers. The Group
had not suffered from any loss resulting from the
above guarantees in the past, which was mainly
because the guarantees concerned were only a
transitional arrangement for property buyers prior
to the completion of mortgage registration and
were pledged against property rights, in addition
to the fact that they will be released once the
mortgage registration is completed. Considering
the above factors, the Board is of the view that
the possibility of default by buyers is minimal, thus
the financial guarantees measured at fair value is
immaterial.

@ HKC (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014

37

HAREE
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(a)

BRER—NANEFE+—A—
Bz CRINE BT R E
TEMEBTEGED) A&
B A BRY 2 —HIRE
MEXBRFEELBRESR
RES  BEEEERXRZ2EE
BB ZEREBRE &4
HEEEAZHRABRAR
#75,800,0007T (X4 & ¥
94,800,000 7T) (= T —
=%F: AR ¥75,800,000
7T (%) 8 & 196,900,000
BIL)) c HREREBEEER
AR ERESRTE MRS
ERHXMNETRERAR
B EEECWMERE R
RN RR2EK - Fit
RRBAUETIFE— T
o

RZE—NFEER_T—=
F+_A=+—H8' &%
BAMEBELUETERS
ERITRE UHZEE
FHEREEREER
307,600,000 T (= & —
=4 :170,200,000/&7T) °
AEEBEWARRE Ll ER
SXAMBELR TZHRE
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B EA SRR BE N
ZH - BEBERERDE
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38

P WRME (&)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Company

At 31 December 2014, the Company provided guarantee
in respect of certain facilities granted to its subsidiaries
of HKS1,028.0 million (2013: HKS746.4 million).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the material
related party transactions during the year were:

(a) In June 2010, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement with Genesis Capital
Group Limited, one of the substantial shareholders
of the Company, for amending and supplementing
the revolving loan agreement dated 8 October
2007, under which the Company might borrow up
to HKS1,000.0 million for a period of ninety-six
months from the date of the said loan agreement.
The loan is unsecured and carries interest at the
Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2% per annum.
The Company is required to repay the loan and
accrued interest thereon at the expiry of the said
agreement.

There has been no outstanding loan balance since
31 December 2011.

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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HAEE @)
AT

W_Y WE+=—A=+—H &
ARARBTHBARZETZEER
B iRt 2 1% 51,028,000,000/%
T (ZZF— =4 : 746,400,000/

JT) °

BRI RS

Rt EFHRREMBOBRELZR
REEHIN  FRERNBB IR S
(N

(a) RZZE—ZFA ' AR
BEARANRHEAp— %EE;:HX?
ﬁ%ﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁ RIFI M 7T
ek AEFT R BEIR
_7$t¢+ﬂ)\5211§i&
Xz o Bt - AAF
R BB R = EIHH%_*HL
‘i‘/\flﬂ,ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁqfaj\ﬁﬁ
1,000,000,000% Jt ° 7% £
EXREER  RETHE
BHEM2BEFN KGR - K
NRIZAN il HEE B B R
BEERREFE -

BT —F+=A=t—
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) At 31 December 2014, a subsidiary of the Group

(c)

(d)

provided guarantee in respect of facilities granted
to an associated company of HKS150.1 million
(2013: HKS165.0 million).

At 31 December 2014, the Company provided
guarantee in respect of certain facilities granted
to its subsidiaries of HKS1,028.0 million (201 3:
HKS746.4 million).

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, a
subsidiary of the Group recognised an interest
income of HKS16.3 million (2013: Nil) on the
outstanding amount due from its joint venture
(Note 23).

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Key management compensation

Key management solely represents directors of
the Company. The compensation paid or payable

38 BEHMAIRSE @)

(b)

(c)

(d)

RZE—WOF+=ZA=+
A A"&EB8—HEHRBAF
R T — BB E R
EEmERHZERE
150,100, OOO/%E(*T—

=% :165,000,000/7T) °

R-ZE—NFEF+=—A=+—
B ARARBETFHEBAR
AIZAETEERMERHE 2
¥ 1R £1,028,000,0007% JT
—=F—=4% :746,400,000
BIT) °

BRARSY TMEARE L™

SRAIELAAE % T 2 BiE
%5 -
BE-F-mE+-A=+

—EIJJ:EF 7K 55 1B — ) P

RAMEEKE E QA
5&%%%@6& w2 A
16,300,000/ T (= F—=
F ) (fEE23) -

BB 5 TREARE F
SRAIEIAAE R T 2 e
%5

FTEEEENEZHE

TREEEKBERAAR
EZ -ENENTERE

to key management is shown as below: BEKEZMHERT :
2014 2013
—2-mEF B —
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEAETL
Director’s fees EEWS 1.5 1.5
Salary and other benefits He hEMER 21.0 26.2

Employer’s contribution to RREETE 2

pension scheme BEHK 0.1 0.1
Share option benefits B A RE A A 0.7 0.7
23.3 28.5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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39 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH 39 REBEEHRERME

FLOW STATEMENT

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash
(used in)/generated from operations

RenNEEEX® (M
R)/ FEREFRH K

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
Profit before income tax 4525 Al A1 218.0 162.5
Finance income B 7S UL A (48.8) (36.7)
Depreciation and amortisation e R 107.9 121.3
Employee share option benefits, net EEREBRERT - FE
(Note 11) (HEE11) 1.2 1.8
Fair value adjustments on BEYE 2 AFERE
investment properties (351.5) (1.7)
Provision for impairment losses EERBEBEZBE
on assets (Note 7) (PFEE7) 223.4 16.1
Gain on completion of liquidation TRBARBEZ
of subsidiaries — net sk — F 58 (16.7) (2.8)
Gain on disposal of an associated company HEHE A a2 WEE (36.9) -
Net exchange (gain)/loss X (M), BEFE (2.7) 17.6
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEYE  HWENREZ
plant and equipment — net (hzs) /B8 - 38 (0.4) 1.2
Fair value loss on financial BATEEERRIEC
assets and financial liabilities cREERSHARGZ
at fair value through profit ANEEE  FEE
or loss — net 18.8 16.3
Write back of costs provision Bl X AN 2 B i - (1.6)
Finance costs B & AN 151.6 135.5
Share of profits less losses JE (5 B A2 N B35 1 SR B 4B
of associated companies (65.4) (100.5)
Share of profits less losses FE{EA &2 R EFIRER
of joint ventures 10.9 (75.9)
Operating profit before working LEESEBRILE
capital changes yaa ) 209.4 253.1
Increase in properties under development  Z£E e V280 (468.2) (1,150.8)
Increase in prepaid land lease payments  FE{J T8 & 20 (110.8) (23.0)
Decrease in properties held for sale YESHE Bz 2 MR 472.3 910.4
Decrease in inventories FERD 0.3 2.8
Decrease in other non-current E IR B E WGR A K
receivables and trade and JE W AR 0 N B Ath
other receivables WR 70.1 59.8
Decrease in other non-current HEMIERBER AR
payables and trade and FE AR E At
other payables R EOR A (177.7) (27.9)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations && %% (FiA)
Frisiie (4.6) 24.4

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures
FEMB AR  BEQATRSE QT

Listed below are the principal subsidiaries, associated companies TXREH I EEARAAE AEBREHE

and joint ventures which, in the opinion of the directors, PUFE+—-H=+— EIJJ:iF%ZE&/ZX
principally affect the result and/or net assets of the Group for éé@ﬁ*ﬁ_ HETENBARR - BE

the year ended 31 December 2014, NG NG
1 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 1 FEWEBAA
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
AL/ BERLR
1 LERRER ITEE BRARA/ENERER ARECERRAER
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE “%--f ZE-PmE -F--f
(a) Investment holding
REER
APC Wind Power Pte Limited**  Singapore Investment holding SGD10 SGDI0 54.13%  54.13%
Gk RERR 105 Mg 70 1057
China Renewable Energy Cayman Islands/PRC Investment holding HK$23,563,718 HKS23563,718  54.13%  5413%
Investment Limited*? RE#E/ 1 RERR 23,563,718 7 23,563, 71857
hEBERRE
AR A
China Harvest Holdings Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1,000,000 HKS1,000000  75%** 75%**
Limited* B4/ mE REARR 1,000,000%7% 1,000,000%7
rEEERAR
HKC (China) Management PRC, Wholly foreign-owned Provision of management U5$8,000,000 558,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited*2 enterprise services in the PRC 8,000,000% % 8,000,000%7t
ERERPEERER hE AEBELE PR E RS
Rl
HKC Guilin Expressway Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS1 HKS1 100% 100%
Company Limited &%/ %8 &R 17 15T
RGN
ARAR
HKC Ivestment Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$77,113,850 HKS77,113,850 100% 100%
BERRRERRAR Bk /e REER 77,113,850 7T 77,113 850%
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)

TEMBAT  BEQXARSENT ()

1

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/

1

FEHRBAR @)

BRAR:

operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
AR/ BERER
£ EERRED IBER BRARE/EHIRER AR ERRAER
2014 213 2014 2013
Z5-mE 3= ZB-mF -—%-=F
(a) Investment holding
(continued)
RELR ()
HKC (Linyi) Holdings Limited  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS1 HKS1  54.13%  5413%
bR () Bk BB/ RERR Lién 1%
ERAT
HKC (Nanxun) Holdings Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$2 HKS2 100% 100%
Limited VA RERER 2571 28T
BAER (33) B
BERERAF"
HKC Property Investments British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding Uss$1 USs1 100% 100%
(China) Limited-# RRELES/TE RARR 17 1%
FARRNERA (RE)
BRAF
HKC Shenyang Hunan Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS1 HKS1 100% 100%
Investments Limited BA/m RARR 137 1571
BARRRREERE
BRAR
HKE (Chongaing) Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding Uss1 USS1 100% 100%
Limited+* RBRLES/HE RARR %51 1%
HKE (Da He) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 HKST  54.13%  54.13%
ERIER (KT) 2k BB/ ¢ RARR 1ER 157

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)
FENBEAR HEARIRESE AT (&)

1  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1 TEHREBLQF @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
e/ EEBER
£ EERRED IBER BRTRA /BHERER AR ERRAER
2014 213 2014 2013
Z2-|F ZF-=F ZB-mF _%-=F
(a) Investment holding
(continued)
REER (&)
HKE (Danjinghe) Wind Power  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS4 HKS4  54.13%  B4.13%
Limited Bt/ RARR 43R 4B
BbATR (BET)
BaERA A"
HKE (Gansu) Wind Power Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS1 HKST  54.13%  5413%
Limited A RARR 187 1A%
BAARR (08 B
BRAR
Hong Kong Construction Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100% 100%
(Inerior Contracting) BB/ AR 10,000%7 1000037
Limited*
AR (REIR)
ERAR
Hong Kong Construction Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$462,000,000 HK$462,000,000 100% 100%
Tianjin Tuan Po Hu Bh /1 RERR 462,000,000/ 70 462,000,000
Investment Limited*
BRERAZEAM
RERRAR!
Hong Kong Construction (Hong Hong Kong Investment holding HK$150,000,000 HK$150,000,000 100% 100%
Kong) Limited &k RARR 150,000,000% % 150,000,000/
R (B8) IR
ERAR
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)
FENBEAR HEARIRESE AT (&)

1  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1 TEHREBLF @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
A/ EEBER
4 EEERRL" IBXH BRIRA/EHERER AREZERRTER
2014 213 2014 2013
“E-mE “2--% ZE-pF -5
(a) Investment holding
(continued)
REBR (&)
Hong Kong Energy (Holdings)  British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding Uss1 Uss1 100% 100%
Limited+* RBRLES/hE RARR B3 IS
BaR (12R) AR
I
Hong Kong New Energy Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$2 HKS2  54.13%  54.13%
(Si Zi Wang Qi) Wind Power &5 /S RERR 287 W1
Limited*
EafR (BTTHE) BsA
B
Hong Kong New Energy (Si Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1,000 HKS1,000  54.13%  54.13%
TiWang Qi ) Wind Power 7% /] FERR 1,000%% 1,00077%
Limited*
B (BT
—B) B ARAT
HKC (Shanghai Guangtian) ~ Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 HKS1 100% 100%
Holdings Limited* B/ RERR 147 15T
Bk (LERR) BRAR
R
Karbony Investment Limited*  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
&b/ KARR 10,000,000 1t 10,000,000/ 0

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)
FENBEAR HEARIRESE AT (&)

1  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1 TEHREBLQF @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
AMAY/ BERER
£ EERRED IBER BRTRA /BHERER AR ERRAER
2014 2013 2014 2013
Z2-|F ZF-=F ZB-mF _%-=F
(a) Investment holding
(continued)
REER (&)
Noble Quest Enterprise British Virgin Islands/ Investment holding Uss$1 Uss1 100% 100%
Limited® Hong Kong RERR IEH 1%71
RERLES/B5
Sinoriver International British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding Uss1 USST  54.13%  B4.13%
Limited+* AERSHS/HE AR 157 1%

| ERERA

Sinoriver International (Wind ~ Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$20 HKS20  54.13%  54.13%
Power) Limited* &5/ 18 RARR 20%7 2%

15 (B%) BR

R

The Legation Quarter Limited*  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$82,105,263 HKS82,105,263 70.9% 70.9%
MeREREERAR &%/ hE REARR 82,105,263 %7 82,105,637

R
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)
FENBEAR HEARIRESE AT (&)

REEEALE

Beijing, the PRC
REPESRMNEE

RERTE

1  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1 TEHREBLF @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
Y/ BEBER
£ EERRED IBER BRTRA /BHERER AR ERRAER
2014 213 2014 2013
2-|F 3= ZB-mF -—%-=F
(b) Property investment
Hong Kong Construction PRC, Whally foreign-owned Investment in shopping mall U5$85,500,000 5985,500,000 100% 100%
(China) Enginegring enterprise of South Ocean Centre, 85,500,000% 7t 85,500,000% 7
Company Limited+* hE A ERELE Shenzhen, the PRC
Bk (TE) IRERAR RARE R MR a0
&5
Karbony Real Estate PRC, Whally foreign-owned Investment in offices, and US$155,000,000 1$5155,000,000 100% 100%
Development (Shenzhen) enterprise shopping mall of Shun Hing ~ 155,000,000% % 155,000,005
Company Limited** BB NEEELE Square, Shenzhen, the PRC
WRRERE (R RERERIMERERY
ERATH WAZRES
Sky Universe Limited® British Virgin Islands/PRC Property holding of 9/F., Us$1 UsS1 100% 100%
AERAEE /hE Tower 1 South Seas Centre, 17 1%%
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
FRUREBNERDE
TR U ik
RIKSEE (LR) E5ER  PRC, Wholly foreign-owned Investment in property for US$18,200,000 15518,200,000 70.9% 70.9%
NG enterprise restaurants and retails in 18,200,000% 7t 18,200,000

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)
FENBEAR HEARIRESE AT (&)

1

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1 TEHREBLQF @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
e/ EEBER
£ EERRED IBER BRTRA /BHERER AR ERRAER
2014 213 2014 2013
Z2-|F ZF-=F ZB-mF _%-=F
(c) Property development
NERR
Huzhou Nanxun International — PRC, Wholly foreign-owned Development and operation of US$48,000,000 1S548,000,000 100% 100%
Building Market Center enterprise a building materials centre 48,000,000% 1t 48,000,000% ¢
Company Limited+* hE A EBELE in Huzho, the PRC
BB RRRE AR AT RAEAN SRR ERE
FHRL
Shanghai Guangtian Real PRC, Sino-foreign equity joint  Real estate development RNB2,300,000,000 ~ RMB2,300,000,000 60% 60%
Estate Development venture in Hongkou Districtin-~~~ A&#%2,300,000,000%  AK#%2,300,000,0007
Company Limited+@ HE - PIAERE Shanghai, the PRC
LEEARMEREERAT RPE LETIAE
REENE
Tianjin Jingang Real Estate ~ PRC, Limited liability company ~ Real estate development in RMB500,000,000 RMB500,000,000 75%** 75%
Investment Company wE - BREMAR Nankai District in Tianjin, ~ AR#500,000,0007 ~ AK#%500,000,0007
Limited+® the PRC
REmEAEFRERRAR" REEXETERE
RERILE
Tianjin Renai Properties PRC, Whally foreign-owned Real estate development HK$452,200,000 HKS452,200,000 100% 100%
Development Company enterprise in Tuanbo Lake of Jinhai 452,200,000% 7 452,200,000/
Limited* HE AEEELE County in Tianjin, the PRC
RETCEESER RPEREm A
ERAFH REENE
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)
FENBEAR HEARIRESE AT (&)

1  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/

1 EfBLAE @

operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
Y/ BEBER
£ EERRED IBER BRTRA /BHERER AR ERRAER
2014 213 2014 2013
“E-mE SS=F SRBEF CTEF
(c) Property development
(continued)
NERR (&)
Tianjin Ruigang Enterprise PRC, Wholly foreign-owned Real estate development HK$690,000,000 HK$690,000,000 100% 100%
Management Company enterprise in Tianjin, the PRC 690,000,000 7 690,000,000
Limited+* hE ERELE RAEREHRERHE
REMhELEERERAR
EhER (25) BR PRC, Wholly foreign-owned Real estate development at HK$928,000,000 HK$928,000,000 100% 100%
NG enterprise Ningbo Road in Heping 928,000,000 7 928,000,000/ 7%
hE - NEBALE District in Shenyang, the
PRC
R RETATEERE
RERHE
EEEL (IF) WEZERR PRC, Wholly foreign-owned Real estate development in RMB260,000,000 RMB260,000,000 100% 100%
Nap enterprise Jiangmen, the PRC AR%260,000,000%  AR%260,000,000%
hE ERELE RPEIF TR EE
(d) Infrastructure and
alternative energy
EERERRR
Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang)  PRC, Sino-foreign equity joint ~ Wind Power project in HK$100,000,000 HKS100,000,000  46.55%  46.55%
Company Limited**2 venture Heilongjiang, the PRC 100,000,000 1t 100,000,000% ¢
ENENEE (HAT) hE - ARERE RAEIRETZENES
ERARH EH

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)
FENBEAR HEARIRESE AT (&)

1  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1 TEHREBLQF @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
e/ EEBER
£ EERRED IBER BRTRA /BHERER AR ERRAER
2014 213 2014 2013
Z2-|F ZF-=F ZB-mF _%-=F
(d) Infrastructure and
alternative energy
(continued
ERRERER (8)
Chongging Huangju PRC, Limited liability company  Investment in ethanol energy RMB180,470,000 RMB180,470,000  70.65% 70.65%
Petrochemical Company 8l EREEAHA business in Chongging, ~ AR%180,470,0007% ~ AE&180,470,0007
Limited*3 the PRC. The business is
EERRAIERAA currently ceased.
RPEERTRE EER
£ o FEBERRLE
8,
HKC (Guilin) Expressway PRC, Wholly foreign-owned Construction and operation RMB543,900,000 RMB543,900,000 100% 100%
Company Limited-* enterprise of a toll road in Guilin, the ~ AR%543,900,000%  AR%543900,0007
ENARERAKER hE - AEEELE PRC on a Build-Operate-
G Transfer contract
RigRE - g5 -2ka
REREREETEAR
T E AR
Hong Kong Wind Power PRC, Sino-foreign equity joint  Wind Power project in HK$150,100,000 HKS150,100,000  46.92%  46.92%
(Muling) Company Limited*®  venture Heilongjiang, the PRC 150,100,000% % 150,100,007
BEENES (BR) AR HE PIRELXK RPEEETZBENEE
R R
BEMLENTFTIERSAR  PRC, Sinoforeign equity joint  Wind Power project in Siziwang  RMB166,480,000 RMB166,480,000  54.13%  54.13%
e venture Qi, Inner Mongolia, the PRC AF%166,480,000%c  AR%166,480,0007

RE - aELE
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)
FENBEAR HEARIRESE AT (&)

1  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1 TEHREBLF @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
Y/ BEBER
£ HREERD" IERH BRfTRS /BAEMER ARE ERRTER
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE SS=F SRBEF CTEF

(d) Infrastructure and
alternative energy
(continued)
EERERER (8)

Eaa RN TER AR PR, Sinoforeign equity joint  Wind Power project in Siziwang ~ RNMB172,526,500 RWB172,526500  54.13% ~ 54.13%

N venture Qi, Inner Mongolia, the PRC AR%172,526,500% ~ AR%172,526,50070
hE - RORELE FEREAETIEZRN
e

(e) Trading/property services

85/ NERK

Hong Kong Construction PRC, Wholly foreign-owned Trading on construction 15$85,500,000 15585,500,000 100% 100%
(China) Engineering enterprise materials 85,500,000% 7% 85,500,000% 7
Company Limited** e EBALE LEREH

ERER (1E) TRARDF

Shenzhen Kumagai Property  PRC, Sino-foreign equity joint ~ Provision of property HK$60,000,000 HKS60,000,000 100% 100%
Management Company venture management service 60,000,000/ 7 60,000,007
Limited-* hE - RERE RENFERRE

MIEANEERER
NG

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)
FENBEAR HEARIRESE AT (&)

2 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 2 FEBEANT

Place of
incorporation/ Group's effective
Name Issued share capital/registered capital operation equity interest
FMAEL,/
a5 ERATRA EMER K& AEBCERREAESR
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-ImF =5 “Z-mE —T-=F
(a) Property
LIS
Hong Kong Construction SMC HK$10,000,000 HKS$10,000,000 Hong Kong/PRC 40% 40%
Development Limited** 10,000,0003% 7t 10,000,000 &8 /i
ERRRBTERARD A
(b) Alternative energy
ERRER
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power RMB589,620,000 RMB589,620,000 PRC 21.65% = 21.65%
Company Limited+#2 AK¥%589,620,000t AX#589,620,000T
hERERE (HE) RNEE
BB AR
CECIC HKC Wind Power RMB545,640,000 RMB545,640,000 PRC 21.65%  21.65%
Company Limited+#2 AK¥545,640,000t AR¥545,640,000t HE
HhEfaEERRNEE (Rik)
BB AR
CECIC HKE Wind Power RMB323,260,000 RMB323,260,000 PRC 16.24%  16.24%
Company Limited+#® AE#323,260,0007t AR™323,260,0007
e B RN EE (RL)
BRA R
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures (continued)

TEMBAT  BEQXARSENT ()

3 PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURES 3 FESE QT
Place of
Form of business structure/ establishment/ Group's effective
Name Kind of legal entity operation equity interest
78 ERARKR EEERER BRI/ AR it 2 FEBZEBRRAES
2014 2013
BT —F=F
Property development
MEZRE
Shanghai Jingang North Wholly foreign-owned enterprise PRC 25% 25%
Bund Real Estate IEBELE CalE
Company Limited+*=
EESHBILIINEEE
BRAR
Notes: MisE :
o Unofficial English transliterations or translation for o JEER B FrES A EE MR

identification purposes only

i Interest held by subsidiaries
& Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
g China Renewable Energy Investment Limited is listed on

the Stock Exchange of which the stock code is 987.

The companies are considered as wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group from the accounting
perspective, as the 25% shareholders of such companies
are not entitled to receive any future dividends and
sharing of residual interest.

A The kind of legal entity is limited liability company, unless
otherwise stated.

* *

REAMBARRE

I Ik i 2 SRRl oK B & AT R E A5 P
Eix

TEBLRRREGRABINE
XL - B RSER987 -

HRZEF AR Z25%B R &7
W B AE AR 2R 2R BB B B A1 TR R
BE  BEFAEME @ &
ERAERASAEEZ2EK
NG

BREFIEN - AREEAER
AR -

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Five-Year Financial Summary

A FMBEERBE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NOFE —FT—=F —T——-F —T——F —ET—TF
HKS Million HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million
BHEAT BEBTT BEBT BEETT BEET

Consolidated income #Z&iEHE

statement
Revenue W25 881 1,441 329 696 499
Profit/(loss) before FRSRLATER

income tax (E518) 218 163 154 310 (414)
Income tax (expense)/  Fii5Hi ()~

credit e (169) (85) (42) (120) 18
Profit/(loss) for the year ZANEE3%F|

(&518) 49 78 112 190 (396)

Non-controlling interests JE#Z= % %5 (136) (5) (9) 51 102

(Loss)/profit attributable Zs2 &4z
to equity holders of A AEL

the Company (E8),/ % H (87) 73 103 241 (294)
Dividends f% 8 - - 220 217 -
Consolidated balance HZa&E&/ER

sheet
Net current assets e EE SR 2,666 1,929 11,875 2,014 1,993
Non-current assets IEREEE 16,610 17,656 16,570 16,393 16,036
Non-current liabilities FEREEE (4,180) (4,236) (3,232) (4,127) (4,384)
Net assets including BEFHE (B

non-controlling FEERR AR )

interests 15,096 15,349 14,713 14,280 13,645
Share capital R& 2R 116 112 112 108 104
Reserves s 12,587 12,925 12,351 12,380 12,398
Non-controlling interests JE#Zp% HE 2 2,393 2,312 2,250 1,792 1,143
Total equity SR 15,096 15,349 14,713 14,280 13,645

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E—mNE —FT—=F —E—=-F —ET——F ZIT-FTF
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
(Loss)/earnings per & (B8)

sharet EF#

— basic - EK (0.008) 0.006 0.009 0.023 (0.028)

— diluted - e (0.009) 0.006 0.009 0.021 (0.029)
Dividend per share AR B

— attributable to the - FEREN

year - - 0.020 0.020 -
Return on total equity 28 42%8 O] 3R & 0.3% 0.5% 0.8% 1.3% (2.9%)
Note: B
Return on total equity represents profit/loss for the year expressed as a 1% i 48 8 5] ¢ 3 /5 AN 5 [ i /S EBEN AR
percentage of the closing total equity for the year concerned. FEFRERBEZADL -
# Adjusted for bonus issue approved in 2010 & Eg{(ﬁ:;ﬁ*%iﬁﬁt?&?ﬁ‘ﬁﬂﬂif’ﬁﬁ
TR
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Schedule of Principal Properties
FEYE—BR

(as at the date of the annual report)
(MAE#H A H)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - COMPLETED ®RE¥Y¥ - S% /&

(Approx.)
(Approx.) Attributable
Share- GFA GFA
Location Existing use holding (sq.m.) (sq.m.)  Term of lease
(R#)

(%) L ]
BHAER BER

1t 2 BAIR%E MR (EHK) (£5HK) HER
The shopping mall, all car parking spaces Offices and shops 100% 31,000 31,000 Medium
and 1/F, 2/F and 58/F offices, MAERHE ]

Shun Hing Square, Di Wang Commercial Centre,
No. 5002 Shennan Road East, Luohu, Shenzhen,
the PRC

iz p R BRI 28 8 R A R 5 500255
FEBZMEEERONENES
FIAEESRIE  2ZEROSERAE

Various shops, Shops 70.9% 17,100 12,100 Short
No. 23 Qianmen, Dong Dajie, Gl pieh=t
Dongcheng, Beijing, the PRC

i A B R SR AT P R A 2355 A

%REEE
Various shops in Zone B & C, Shops 100% 97,000 97,000 Medium
Construction Materials Market, &3 bl

Nanxun Economic Development District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
R BN TR RN TR S ERER
BEREEMEERBERCEMNS HEE

Three apartment units, various shops and Shops and residential 40% 35,300 14,100 Medium
705 car parking spaces of CITIC Plaza, AEREE i
No. 233 Tianhe Road North, Tianhe District,

Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, the PRC

IR B E R A BN T A & KA 3k %2335

FEBSRIAEEEN - ZHBHE RIS ERER

Units 1 to 7 on 28th Floor, Offices of City Centre, Offices 100% 1,487 1,487 Medium
Junctions of Xikang Road and Chengdu Road, WAE i

Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC
e BRI T & AR Sk HE R O -
EBEARL2BERNEL-TEN
155,687

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Schedule of Principal Properties (continued)

FEYE-—BR (&)
(as at the date of the annual report)
(RAFFRAE)

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

a) For sale purpose

HRPYE
a) FHEREZR

(Approx.)
Expected (Approx.) (Approx.)  Attributable
Share- Stage of year of Site area GFA GFA
Location Intended use holding completion completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(R#)
(R#) (R#) EfEE
ik WEEE BEAER BEE
3 RERR RE EREER ERER (EHK) (EHK) (EAHR)
A parcel of land along  Residential 100% Planning stage - 804,000 836,000 836,000
the eastern shore of 2% REER
Tuanbo Lake, Jinhai
County, Tianjin, the PRC
IR REIR 2 TE 5%
EnfnR s E R
T
Three parcels of land Residential and 100% Construction 2015-2019 67,000 266,000 266,000
(Zone A, B, C) located  shops stage and —Z-1%%
at Ningbo Road, FERBEE Planning stage “T-NEF
Heping District, TEREER
Shenyang, the PRC RERER
i EEGTATE
BRI
(A-B:CE&)
A parcel of land (for Residential and 100% Construction stage 2016 30,000 92,000 92,000
Phase 3) located at north shops TiEER ZERF
of Hong Kong-Macau Pier, % R&/E
Jiangmen, Guangdong
Province, the PRC
fir B ER & LR
BREEILA R
(BRE=5)
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Schedule of Principal Properties (continued)
FEYX—BX (H)

(as at the date of the annual report)

(RAEFHmAE)
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT BRPYR @
(continued)
b)  For investment purpose b) ERERZ
(Approx.)
Expected (Approx.) (Approx.) Attributable
Stage of year of Site area GFA GFA
Location Intended use  Share-holding completion completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(R#)
(R#) (X#) S EE
ik WEEE BEAER AEE
2 RERE MR KR ERER (E5HK) (EHK) (EHK)
A parcel of land located  Offices, hotel 25% Construction in 2016 57,000 259,000 64,750
in the north side of the  and shops progress —ERE
International Passenger  #HAZ TR#EAH

Transportation Cruise  JEERAEE
Terminal of Hongkou

District, Shanghai,

the PRC

fir e B E g i O &

BB BaREEILR 2

—fE i

A parcel of land Offices and shops 60% Construction in 2016 29,000 161,000 96,600
located at Lot 108, RAZREE progress ZERE

No. 4, Sichuan North TiE#TH

Road, Hongkou District,

Shanghai, the PRC

i LTI NE

71|36 B U A2 1 085

1k

161,350

EAEE (2R) HRAT « —T MEER @



Schedule of Principal Properties (continued)
FEYX—BX (H)

(as at the date of the annual report)

(RAFFRAE)
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE HEHERZZWE
(Approx.)
(Approx.)  Attributable
GFA remain  GFA remain
unsold as at  unsold as at
(Approx.) (Approx.) 31 December 31 December
Site area GFA 2014 2014
Location Intended use Share-holding (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(RA) R (RH) BER
“Z-|mF —E-ImE
+=A=+-H +=A=t-H
(K4) (K4) i R HE 2 HAREEZ
AR EE BEARE BEAERE EEAEE
1th 2 RER%Z R (FHK) (F7HK) (£HXK) (£HXK)
The shopping mall and all Shops 100% 5,523 6,300 6,300 6,300
car parking spaces, Gl
South Ocean Centre,
Dongmen Road Central,
Shenzhen, the PRC
AR BRI R PR B B0
MEYEE R REES
Various shops in Zone B & C, Shops 100% 68,000 83,000 36,400 36,400
Construction Materials Market, Gl
Nanxun Economic Development
District, Huzhou City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC
R R BT B BN T R B A
REREERESHHEABE R
CEMZRHEE
Various residential units in Residential 75% 54,000 150,000 104,300 78,200
Tianjin Eka Garden, South of FE
Hongai South Road,
Nanki District, Tiajin, the PRC
i B R Z T R AL E R B
NREZERTER ZHET
Various residential units and shops  Residential and 100% 65,000 97,000 36,556 36,556
(for Phase 1 and 2) in Jiangmen shops
Eka Garden, Jianghai District, FEREE
Jiangmen, Guangdong Province,
the PRC
iR EERE TIPSR
ZTREE (F—Kk=H) 2
ZREEREE
157,456
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HKC

EERR

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
BBER (ZR) BRAF

9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

EBNBERDEREME 75 TP 0 1 o2

www.hkcholdings.com
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